AGENDA

This meeting will include the boards of Sheridan Fire District, SW Polk Fire District and West Valley Fire District

West Valley Fire District
875 NE Main St.
Willamina, OR 97396
July 9, 2020 at 6:00 pm

The public is welcome to attend on our virtual platform. Masks are encouraged for any board members and staff attending
the meeting in person. In accordance with Governor Brown's Executive Order 2020-12, our stations are not currently open to
the public. The public is encouraged to relay concerns and comments to the Boards in one of three ways:

* Email at any time up to 12 p.m. the day of the meeting to mprescott@sheridanfd.org

» If attending via telephone only; please sign up prior to the meeting by emailing mprescott@sheridanfd.org

» If virtually attending the meeting; send a chat directly to Admin Assistant, Mariah Prescott, to request to speak and use
the raise hand feature to request to speak, once it is your turn, we will announce your name and unmute your mic.

Join from computeror smartphone: https://meetings.ringcentral.com/j/ 1490929112
Or Telephone: +1(623)404-9000 Meeting ID: 149 092 9112

Call Meetingto Order
Pledge of Allegiance
Roll Call
Election of Board Officers........c.ccuvvnmirieneneenenseed ALL s v e cee e ceeeenn... DisCUSsion /Action
Swearin Board Member........c.ccovivinirinninnecc WVFDL.c.. v ... Discussion/Action
Approval of Minutes/AllAgencies
Financial Report
A. Sheridan B. SWPolk C. WestValley
Audience Participation
9. Presentations
A. Conflagration presentation by Chief Schulze
10. Old Business

Nou,swnNnp

ol

A. Fire & EMS Coalition......ccococvmvierereereverenresssrcnssns sesns s ALL. sasisvisnsinaisnnmsin Discussion
B. Fire Authority Model.........ucin e s e ALL....ccrvvieerinrnnnsnrnnnne. Discussion
C. Equitable Sharing........c..curimemcecneenccnsseesersienesea AL e . Discussion/Action
D. Establish guidance..........cvinmmrmincemnnmene o ALL e sesesnesn o Discussion/Action
E. Relief Nursery MOU.........covvvrerrvrcenrenreenesessnssneene s WVFDu e ene. . Discussion /Action
11. New Business
A. Employee Handbook.........ccccevrenienrcicncicnnssecsnenewALL e DiSCUSSION
B. Surplusof Ambulance.........curermaernenninimee e WVFDu s DiSCUSSION /A CEiON
C. Board MeetingSchedule.........cccoevceninnnnnimenreacecnnALL e DisCUssion /Action
D. Board DiscusSion TOPICS........eeveeerrernreerrarsssessesesessenere s WVVFDu st inise i ie s eseseeeenne . DiSCUSSION
12, Chief’s Report
13. Director comments and/oragendaitems for next month

14. Adjournment
a. Nextmeeting August 13, 2020 at Sheridan Fire Station



Sheridan/SW Polk/West Valley Fire Districts
Joint Regular Board Meeting
275 N Main St. Rickreall, OR 97371
June 11, 2020 6 PM

Meeting was held virtually via RingCentral Meetings.
ROLL CALL

Fred Hertel — SFD/SW Polk/WVFD Fire Chief
Damon Schulze — SFD/SW Polk/WVFD Deputy Chief
Les Thomas- SFD/SW Polk/WVFD Division Chief

Sheridan Fire District SW Polk Fire District West Valley Fire District
Scot Breeden Rod Watson Chris Greenhill
Tammy Heidt Bob Davis Rick Mishler
Brice Ingram Keith Moore Gary Brooks
Dennis Rogers Frank Pender Don Shelton
Carol Harlan Bruce Sigloh Roy Whitman
Audience
Todd Brumfield Daniel Cummins RC Mock
Damon Schulze Luke Nodine Rob Foster
Cody Heidt Jakob Sessa Jay Payne
Becky Prevett Mike Elliot Jake Rosenbalm
Brian Prevett Cody Coonrod Brad Weaver
Steve Warden Patty Brooks Trisha Young
Ross Williamson Connie Brown Judy Breeden
Jason Crowe Les Thomas

President Rod Watson, SW Polk Fire District, opened the meeting at 6:20 pm.
Each agency has a quorum of directors and will allow deliberation, decision making and will take public comment
per the posted agenda.

FLAG SALUTE

Enter EXECUTIVE SESSION authorized under ORS 192.660(2) (e) to conduct deliberations with persons
designated by the governing body to negotiate real property transactions, (f)To consider information or records that
are exempt by law from public inspection, and (h) to consult with counsel conceming the legal rights and duties of
a public body with regard to current litigation or litigation likely to be filed.

Return to open session.

Approval of Minutes - All agencies

SFD/SW Polk/WVFD

Motion: Frank Pender Second: Gary Brooks
Move to approve the minutes from the joint board meeting. Motion passed.
Discussion:

SFD: Heidt; aye Breeden; aye Rogers; aye Ingram; aye Harlan; Aye



SW Polk: Watson; aye Davis; aye Pender; aye Moore; aye Sigloh; aye
WVFD: Brooks; aye Greenhill; aye Mishler; aye Shelton; aye Whitman; aye

Motion: Rick Mishler Second: Gary Brooks
Move to approve the minutes from both of West Valley’s budget meetings. Motion passed.

Discussion:
WYVFD: Brooks; aye Greenhill; aye Mishler; aye Shelton; aye Whitman; aye

Motion: Dennis Rogers Second: Brice Ingram

Move to approve the minutes from both of Sheridan’s budget meetings. Motion passed.
Discussion:

SFD: Heidt; aye Breeden; aye Rogers; aye Ingram; aye Harlan; Aye

Motion: Frank Pender Second: Bruce Sigloh

Move to approve the minutes from both of SW Polk’s budget meetings. Motion passed.
Discussion:

SW Polk: Watson; aye Davis; aye Pender; aye Moore; aye Sigloh; aye

The oversight meeting minutes were reviewed as a group. No comments were made.

Financial Report — All agencies

SFD
Motion: Tammy Heidt Second: Carol Harlan
Move to approve the financial report as written, pending clarification on the bill for Brad’s Overhead
Doors. Motion passed.
Discussion: There was a bill for Brad’s Overhead Doors. It was unclear if it was a bill for Sheridan Fire
District or not. Chief Hertel will investigate.
Heidt; aye Breeden; aye Rogers; aye Ingram;aye Harlan; aye
SW Polk
Motion: Frank Pender Second: Bruce Sigloh
Move to approve the financial report as written. Motion passed.
Discussion: None
Watson; aye Davis; aye Pender; aye Moore; aye Sigloh; aye
WVFD
Motion: Rick Mishler Second: Roy Whitman
Move to approve the financial report as written. Motion passed.
Discussion: None
Brooks; aye Greenhill; aye Mishler; aye Shelton; aye Whitman; aye
AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION-

Becky Prevett and Trisha Young read resignation letters aloud.



Presentation- Chief Hertel and Chief Thomas gave presentation on the transition out of COVID-19
pandemic precautions

Trainings will begin to be held in groups at Sheridan and Rickreall to ensure the groups are small enough to be
within regulations. These training will start with basics to ensure response personnel are comfortable with the
equipment and apparatus again and that all personnel are trained the same.

Fire stations will begin to open to the public with sign in sheets to help with contact tracing.

OLD BUSINESS

Fire & EMS Coalition — All
This item is left on the agenda at the request of the three boards. No discussion at this time.
Fire Authority Meodel — All
This item is left on the agenda at the request of the three boards. No discussion at this time.

Opened budget hearings for Sheridan, SW Polk and West Valley Fire Districts at 8:00 PM
No public comment.
Closed budget hearings for Sheridan, SW Polk and West Valley Fire Districts.

Equitable Sharing- All

A request was made for staff to come up with a percentage of the collected amount from Medic 193 calls that
would cover the costs to SW Polk for the calls their staff cover Sheridan calls.

NEW BUSINESS

Establish Guidance- All

Discussion was tabled until board members can review information provided during executive session.

Ford Family Foundation Grant- SW Polk

Motion: Bruce Sigloh Second: Keith Moore

I move to accept the Ford Family Foundation Grant in the amount of $228,936 and to use the funds as the
application intended. Motion passed.

Discussion: None

Watson; aye Davis; aye Pender; aye Moore; aye Sigloh; aye

Oregon Business Seismic Rehabilitation Grant and Spirit Mountain Community Fund Grant- Sheridan

Motion: Dennis Rogers Second: Brice Ingram

I move to accept the Oregon Business Seismic Rehabilitation Grantin the amount of $2,092,758,
expend funds as the application intended and allow the Fire Chief to sign any necessary contract or
documentation and begin execution of the processes required. Motion passed.

Discussion: None.



Heidt; aye Breeden; aye Rogers; aye Ingram; aye Harlan; aye

Motion: Dennis Rogers Second: Brice Ingram

I move to accept the Spirit Mountain Community Fund Grant in the amount of $23,874, expend funds
as the application intended. Motion passed.

Discussion: None.

Heidt; aye Breeden; aye Rogers; aye Ingram; aye Harlan; aye

Relief Nursery MOU- West Valley

There has been a request from the Lutheran Services and the Willamina School District for the Fire Chief to
sign a memorandum of understanding (MOU) allowing a Relief Nursery to continue with occupancy and
permitting with the intent that they will meet fire codes in the next 3 years. Currently, there is not enough
funding to proceed with the necessary upgrades to meet fire codes. The Board instructed Chief Hertel to not
sign the MOU due to the liability that would be put on the District should something happen before fire codes
are met.

Surplus of Ambulance- Sheridan

Staff report was given to the Board recommending that the ambulance (M0711) be sold as surplus due to
mechanical issues. The repairs to the ambulance would be $7,000-10,000. The money from the surplus could be
redirected into a reserve fund to purchase a new medic in the future.

Motion: Tammy Heidt Second: Carol Harlan

Move to surplus the ambulance (M0711) per the staff report, allow the Fire Chief to sign any
necessary documentation, and place the fundsin the equipment reserve fund. Motion passed.
Discussion: None.

Heidt; aye Breeden; aye Rogers; aye Ingram; aye Harlan; aye

Lexipol Policy

Motion: Frank Pender Second: Gary Brooks

I move to approve the new Lexipol Tattoo Policy 1025.3 as presented. Motion passed.

Discussion: The question was raised about how enforceable the policy is considering that there are
personnel have existing tattoos against the policy. It was clarified that the policy allows for the Fire Chief to
use his discretion to work with those employees.

SFD: Heidt; aye Breeden; aye Rogers; aye Ingram; aye Harlan; Aye

SW Polk: Watson; aye Davis; aye Pender; aye Moore; aye Sigloh; aye

WVFD: Brooks; aye Greenhill; aye Mishler; aye Shelton; aye Whitman; aye

SFD
Motion: Carol Harlan Second: Brice Ingram
Move to approve Resolution 2019-05 adopting the budget, making appropriations, imposing the tax,
and categorizing the tax. Motion passed.
Discussion:
Heidt; aye Breeden; aye Rogers; aye Ingram; aye Harlan; aye
SW Polk



Motion: Frank Pender Second: Bruce Sigloh

Move to approve Resolution 2019-06 adopting the budget, making appropriations, imposing the tax,
and categorizing the tax. Motion passed.

Discussion: None

Watson; aye Davis; aye Pender; aye Moore; aye Sigloh; aye

WVFD

Motion: Don Shelton Second: Roy Whitman

Move to approve Resolution 2019-07 adopting the budget, making appropriations, imposing the tax,
and categorizing the tax. Motion passed.

Discussion: None

Brooks; aye Greenhill; aye Mishler; aye Shelton; aye Whitman; aye

Chiefs Report

Written report was provided in the board packets.
Verbal report was given on Yamhill St. fire in Sheridan. Two volunteer firefighters were first to arrive on scene and
made heroic efforts in attempt to rescue the occupants of the house. The fire was escalated to a three-alarm fire

calling foradditional resources from neighboring agencies. Additionally, Lt. Cody Coonrod assisted at the scene
with heavy equipment use.

DIRECTORS COMMENTS AND/OR AGENDA ITEMS FORNEXT MONTH
West Valley Board Director Don Shelton submitted his resignation, effective June 30, 2020.
Next Meeting; July 9, 2020 at 6 pm at West Valley Fire District, Willamina Fire Station.
Meeting adjourned at 9:35 PM
Motion: Rick Mishler Second: Don Shelton

SFD: Heidt; aye Breeden; aye Rogers; aye Ingram; aye Harlan; aye

SW Polk: Watson; aye Davis; aye Pender; aye Moore; aye Sigloh; aye
WVFD: Brooks; aye Greenhill; aye Mishler; aye Shelton; aye Whitman; aye

Respectfully submitted,

Mariah Prescott



Sheridan — SW Polk — West Valley
Fire Districts

FIRE DISTRICT

June 15, 2020 4 PM

Oversight Committee Notes

e COVID-19 update
o Stations will be slowly opening to the public. This will require guests to check-ins with at least the
first name and phone number to be able to assist with contact tracing. Social distancing and
other requirements will remain in place.
o The Governor has set a week-long pause on counties entering the next phase to monitor the
increasing cases in the state.
o China is experiencing another wave of cases and has begun entering back into shutdowns.
o Wednesday's All Member Meeting Postponed due to COVID-19
* Chief to visit each agency’s drill in interim
e Cooperative Services Study
o July 1 1800-1930 at McMinnville Council Chambers- 200 NE Baker St. McMinnville- Oversight
committee to attend
o July 2" 1800-1930- If desired we have this slot for all three districts
e Employee Handbook Feedback
o There are holes in Lexipol. There needs to be additional guidelines in addition to Lexipol to
ensure all bases are covered.
o Final oversight discussion will happen during next oversight meeting.
e Review Board Meeting
o Executive Session during June Board Meeting
= Ross Williamson Presentation
= Property Discussion
o Discussion regarding next steps for the three districts to continue at next board meeting.
o Request made to get a plan for budgeting for the next fiscal year, including borrowing any
money and making up deficiencies.
e Fred will be off Friday- Monday, June 19-22
e Medic 193 Reimbursement percentage
o This discussion will continue at the next board meeting

SITERIDAN FIRIE DISTRICT SW POLK [FIRL: DISTRICT WEST VALLEY IR DISTRICT
230 SW MILL ST 275 MAIN STRET 825 NI MAIN ST.
SIERIDAN, OR 97378 RICKRIEALL, OR 97371 WILLAMINA, OR 97396

(503) 843-2467 (503) 623-6186 (503) 876-2004



Special Board Meeting Minutes
West Valley Fire District
825 N Main St.
Willamina, Oregon 97396
June 29, 2020 at 1:30 pm

Called meeting to order at 1:32 PM.

Pledge of Allegiance

Roll Call

Board: Staff: Audience:
Chris Greenhill Mariah Prescott Kenna West
Roy Whitman Damon Schulze Keith Moore
Gary Brooks Fred Hertel Patty Brooks
Rick Mishler Connie Brown
Vacant

Board Member Interviews

Interviews were conducted for Connie Brown and Charles Chapin. Interviewees were each asked the
following questions:
1. What have you done to prepare for becoming an elected official?
2. What formal educational and background experience do you have related to this position?
3. Why are you interested in being an elected official?
4. During your term as an elected official, you may experience verbal abuse and demanding public
members. How would you hand these situations?
What would you consider your professional shortcomings?
What challenges can you identify in the fire district?
7. How up-to-date are you on what the three districts, Sheridan, SW Polk and West Valley, are
doing as a collaborative mission?

o u

Two other applicants, Rod McAllister and Mike Alger, were unable to attend for interviews at this time.
Their interviews will be held on July 9, 2020 at 5 PM in a special meeting prior to the regular joint board
meeting.

Meeting adjourned at 2:20 PM.



Sheridan — SW Polk — West Valley

Fire Districts

FIRE DISTRICT

June 29, 2020 4 PM

Oversight Committee Notes

COVID-19 update
o Masks will be required for all of Oregon indoor public spaces.
o CARES reimbursement for Sheridan has come in and West Valley’s is due any moment.
Cooperative Services Study Reminder
o July 1° 1800-1930 at McMinnville Council Chambers- Oversight committee to attend
o July 2" 1800-1930- If desired we have this slot for all three districts
Employee Handbook Final Review
o Notes made given to the Chief to make prior to going to the full boards.
WVED Financial Projection Document
o Draft projection document given to the committee prior to going to the full boards.
Financial Systems Review
o Athird-party company will be meeting with the administrative team next week to review the
financial system and see if there is a way to streamline.
Dissolution and reformation Process
o Debt service distribution plan
® Discuss that this is a plan that three districts will need in order to proceed with
dissolution and reformation.
o GISData
®* Draft map presented
Board Agenda Review
o Additions
" Two Board meetings per month?
= West Valley Financial Conversations
e Agenda ltems
= Board Officers

SITERIDAN FIRE DISTRICT SW POLK I'TRIE DISTRIC'T WEST VALLEY FIRE DISTRICT
230 SW M1 ST 275 MAIN STREINE 825 NI MAIN ST
SITERITDAN, OR 97378 RICKREALL, OR 97371 WILLAMINA, OR 97396

(503) 843-2467 (503) 623-6186 (503) 876-2004



Special Board Meeting Minutes
SW Polk Fire District
275 N Main St.
Rickreall, Oregon 97371
June 30, 2020 at 8:00 am

Called meeting to order at 8:05 AM.

Pledge of Allegiance

Roll Call

Board: Staff: Audience:
Rod Watson Fred Hertel Luke Nodine
Frank Pender Mariah Prescott

Bob Davis Damon Schulze

Bruce Sigloh

Keith Moore

Financial Resolution 2019-07

Motion: Bob Davis Second: Frank Pender
Move to approve Resolution 2019-07 adopting a supplemental budget for fiscal year 2019-2020.
Watson; aye Davis; aye Pender; aye Moore; aye Sigloh; aye

There have been multiple extra expenditures during construction of the three new stations. Additional
expenses could be recuperated by cancelling one of the engines that have been ordering or reducing the
add-ons on the engines. The down payment on the chassis for the engines has already been made and
may not be refundable. The suggestion was made that one engine remain ordered as is and cancel one
engine.

Financial trend chart from the last six years was presented to the Board. The revenue stayed steady,
expenditures increase in the past year due to the addition of the paid staff which has caused a decline in
the end of the year balance.

Meeting adjourned at 8:49 AM.



sebiey) I  SuswAed N

pamojlesia [

PaWa.l4 g pa3jiooun

spodai ysodap Ajyjuows o3 aj1ouocdal Jou |im Aay)  sebieyd s, ypuow Yoea 0} A|30a1Ip 9)B[21 UMOYS Sjunowe ||y

LiovZ'Les 6lL'L02'0zZ- G8'.186'CLE- GS°190'7- 15°1$0'991- £EvHS'v68 (414
%78  BETSTTL % 0 000 %€l 0080961~ % 0 000 % 9 L9'619'8- 00'0v8'ZSL z8 ocunp
% .S  €7'998'08 % 0 000 %8  ¥l'G20'0f- % L 9L 9V /- % YL LLvig'0e- 0s'zlo'eyl 9. oz fep
% B  69'GHY'OF %0 000 %0F  9LvZL'Th- % 6/ °Sv6- % 0T 92'9£8'0¢- 05°20%' 0L /S 0c 4dy
%Ll 8.°€L0'WC % 0 000 %G5S  009/8'G/- % 00¥¥0'L- % 2T 2T 980'8¢e- 00'0.6'SEL . 0c ‘ey
% GZ  6£7CSC'9e % L 0000S'L- %0S  85C0.'Li- % L 00°0G0'L- % €2 £5°2/9'ee- 0S2L'vpL 1/ 0z 924
% E€E  20'S6Y'TS % 0 00005~ %0  ¥5G6e5'Co- % 0 00'G/2- % LT V6'LYS T~ 0S /0¥'8GL V8 Og uer
%8S  GG'/08'Z %6€  0802C's- % 0 000 % 0 000 % € PAeTo o zleTr'ElL 8 61 22Q
%S. Co'lel'ol % ¥C L9vSpe- % 0 000 %0 000 % L 00'Ss- £9'99Z'r1 8 61 AON
%9l /E£0.LL % ¥8 €cere'e- % 0 000 %0 000 % 0 000 092152 4 61 PO
%cS 00ZL'€ %6C  6£69/'L- % 0 000 % 0 000 % 61 G5'8CLL- ¥6'120'9 € 61 dog
%TS TETHO'L % ¥ 000¢E!L- %€  £8650'L- % 0 000 % L g6 lge- L0'99L'e Z 61 bny
%00l 1g'LoL'y %0 000 % 0 o000 %0 000 % 0 000 18'10L'y Z 6l Inp
%S,  OV'868'E %SC 9062 L- % 0 000 %0 000 % 0 000 95'881'S € 6L unp
% Bbuipuad % pajasfjooun % pamojjesiqg % paaai4 % syuswied sabseyp SI9oIl  puop

ueplsys Japiaold

uepuaysg Auedwon

0 S9010AU|

. 0c0C/0E/90 90IAIDS JO 91eq

6102/10/90 30IM9G JO 8jeq

SOILSILVLS NOILDITI0D TVNNNY
ueplisys

0cozielL



T T T

| Juswajels 0} Pa|IouoIaI SSJEIIPU|[p

zeer'siy’t $10000) §]vzozk $](zioso'0ee) ¢ [6662562€S [eLz6rSIY L $ sjejoL
00'95 $Jooos  [ooo$ 00'0$ 00'0$ 00'96 $ yseQ Ajed|
60'1elz6c $ (0005 s 00°000°08$- 6c'8/8'G1L$ | G€052'957  $ sueg sn/Bunjoayg
19790%50') $ [01°08-  [6€81L1s  [00°03 £8'19718 | evyizon0 $ di97
p5'19269  $ (0005 [00°0$ 21°069'057$- LL'6/6'0028 | 68'116'81L  $| [elapad 1sud/buiioay)
3ONVIVE | S33d | 1SIUTLINI| IVMVHAHLIM | 11ISOd3d | JONVIvE

Bunssy pieog 0zoz AInr 104

020¢ "0¢ sunr

dUkleg pun4 Uoday ysed

}21ys1qQ 9114 UbpUYS



2:17 PM Sheridan Rural Fire Protection District

07/02/20 Profit & Loss
Cash Basis June 2020
Jun 20
Income
GF Revenue
CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 84,646.97
ESTIMATED TAXES TO BE REC'D 13,921.08
Yamhiil/Polk Prior Taxes 1,880.10
MISCELLANEOUS INCOME 77,393.25
USER FEES & FIRE MED 68,342.61
Total GF Revenue 246,184.01
Total Income 246,184.01
Gross Profit 246,184.01
Expense
General Fund
MATERIALS AND SERVICES
Dispatch & Radio Services 2,482.25
Equipment
EMS Equipment 49,749.14
Total Equipment 49,749.14
General Supplies 1,418.55
Miscellaneous 1,504.64
Professional Fees 3,554.72
Repairs & Maintenance 5,742.95
Travel & Education 113.19
Utilities 2,180.88
EMS Supplies 1,177.69
Insurance 3,086.00
200910 - Contract Services 10,385.63
Total MATERIALS AND SERVICES 81,395.64
Total General Fund 81,395.64
008 - Building Maint. Fund
2100080 - B.M.F. Repair and Upkeep Bldg. 118.42
Total 008 - Building Maint. Fund 118.42
01 - Payroll
Administrative Staff 55,342.99
Firefighter/Paramedic & EMT's
100056 - Paramedic 41,192.04
Total Firefighter/Paramedic & EMT's 41,192.04
Over Time 6,314.96

Page 1



Sheridan Rural Fire Protection District

2:17 PM
07/02/20 Profit & Loss
Cash Basis June 2020
Jun 20
Health Insurance 27,202.80
PERS 19,752.54
Workers' Compensation 45.56
104700 - FICA 7,868.02
104900 - Unemployment Insurance 0.00
01 - Payroll - Other 0.04
Total 01 - Payroll 157,718.95
Total Expense 239,233.01
Net Income 6,951.00

Page 2



9 4o | abed

82'819'G- lloxhed ¥ Uesg 'alXxoH  0Z0Z/0£/90 yoayohed
01°€66°¢- lloshed g [slueq IswoH  (zZ0z/0£/90 soayoked
21'6e8'c- lloihed o uepuaig ‘Weq  0zZ0Z/0£/90 joayoked
98°96¢€ v~ lloJked Jeuuoq ‘IewweH (0z0z/0£/90 yosyohed
0v'G8l'e- lloihed o [FBYIIA RoIIT  0Z0Z/0£/90 soayohed
1€186'¢- lloJAed 7islueq ‘suwwngd  0Z0Z/0£/90 Yoayohed
L0'26)°}- lloiked S YeOIN ‘umolg  0z0Z/0£/90 soayohked
$8'/92°¢- lloihed 7 Apnr ‘uspslg  0Z02/0€/90 yosyohed
625066 lloshed ¥ uoser ‘amo1)  0z0z/0£/90 %03yohed
GE'//6'20)- Iv10L
05'Ge- sosuadxg jjoihed

SL'6¢- sasuadx3 [joJhed

0£'966°} - Jisodeq jo8u1Q

08'G26'0¢- soxe) [|ohed 30ISS |j01hed SY00GNOIND  0202/62/90 %0849 Anger
G8'G/9'L- Iv.i0l
00'60}- sesuadx3 |joshed

0S'L- sasuadx3 [[oiheg

GE'G9G'L- soxe} |joshed 0IMBS [|0shed SY00GXIIND  0202/22/90 0849 Ajligen
6sele- auoydsje| junhinued  020z/20/90 A98YD- 1ud |Iig
0L'o- abieyo yueg yeee/dIOT  0202/10/90 40849

junowy pied Junossy auweN ajeq wnN adf]
020¢ sunp
Iteyaq %99y

02¢/20/L0

Jo1ISIQ UORD3j0Id i [eINY UepLBYS o



9 J0 g abeg

10°99- 161 - selmn 394 0202¢/60/90 suluo A03Y2D- 1d [i'g
VG Les- 061 - seln 39d 020¢/60/90 auluo A9Y3- id g
0'050°e- uoljonpap |l0Jked Suonnjog juswaimsy epimuolieN  0Z02/50/90 auluo %0840 Aiqer
00°00.- sanp kel 1981 [€007 ASJIBA 1SOM  0202/50/90 aujuo %089 Aliqen
£G'96¢- auoydaje] SS3[BIIM UOZUBA  020Z/¥0/90  suluo 198YD-Juid lilg
20'.8- 861 - saliin 39d 020¢/¥70/90 auluo 8yQ-jud Iiig
98'066-

9¢'88.- H4/98€ VSIA MO

0§°20¢- ar G086/VSIA MO SpleQ IO 0202/£0/90  8uluo %984yD
£6'eee- sa|ddng #0140 BOLSWY SUORNIOS UOUBD  0Z0Z/0/90  SuljuQ 184D Jud (IIg
ZsloL'e llo:hed 3 8IIse7 'sewoyl  0Z0z/0€/90 soaudhed
89'9ve‘/- llohed [ Youspaid ‘;PUeH  0202/0€/90 %oayohked
9EvLY'Y- ljoiked Y uoweq ‘aznyos  0zZ02/0€/90 %0ayohed
G0'GE0'e- lloJhed Y euuezng ‘ueky  0z02/0€/90 soayaked
£€'68LC lloihed N Yelely Bodsald  0zZ0Z/0€/90 yoayoked
88'G9L'¢- lloihed IN SBIOYDIN ‘192204 (Z20Z/0£/90 yoayoheqd
STACA Y llohed J H8qoy Yoo 0Z02/0€/90 %0ayoked
68'9V.L'e- lloAed v Yeueyoez ‘yble7  0z0z/0€/90 3o8yohed

junowy pled Juno9IYy sweN aleq wnN adA1
0c0¢ sunp
ife}aq %29y

J0U3SIQ UoNIBJ0Id Al |eINY UePlIBYS

w10l

02/20/L0
Nd 10:€



9 jo ¢ abed

GL6LL-
L0°19- Buiuie.] a4
8C'LL- SOAIJUBDU|/SpJeMY
V2’12 SOAJUSOU|/SPJEMY
65°€l- sayddng soyo

Slilq 0¢/0¥/0% Joulsiq aul4 AsjieA 1S9M 0202/ 1/90 0619¢ 034D
G2'89- safes asenbg lousiq a4 AsjleA 1S8M 020271 1/90 6819¢ 3o8yd
08'¢cyy- uoponpap |[oked aosnr jo Juswipedsq uobalo  020z/10/90 8819¢ o2y Aiger
olee- SY3d S¥3d uobaio  0Z0Z/92/90  BuluD X240
161y auoydaje] NUMAIMUeY  0Z0Z/LL/90  BuuQ 39340~ jud |Ilg
009G~ /61 - ssjlnn PIsIq 18l suleld psy-leng  0Z0¢//L/90  suluQ XO3UQ- Jud lIlg
06'l¢g- L6} - sslin sjsep uoBeiQ WelseM  0Z02/LL/90  SuUO A03YD- ud [iig
99'68}- 061 - samN S)SEM UOBRIO Wesep,  0Z0Z/LL/90  dUNuUO Xo2YD- 1wd [ig
¥6°9G)- saj|ddns asnoH sbuuds [ejskid  0z0z/91/90  suluQ 4o3yQ-jud IIig
L00vl- uononpap |loJked Jelly (0¢0¢/SL/90  8uluo %08y9 Aylgen
vv'62L'61- Sd3d waysAg Juswouney seafoidwz oland  0z0Z/ZL/90  BuuO 184D
18'%9)- 061 -saln UepLaus Jo KD 0Z0Z/0L/90  duluQ X08YD- 1ud (Iig
¢e8l- 861 - selunn SEQ |BIMEN MN  020¢/0L/90  aujjup X03yD- Jud [ig
9LG})- 061 -saln SeQ [eJnleN MN  0202/01/90  BuijuQ 1o8yd- jwd |iig

junowy pred Juno2oy sweN djeq wnN adA]
0¢0¢ sunp
Iteyaq 3o0yo

JoL3SIQ Uoldj0Id Bil4 [eINY UepLAYS

Wiol

02/20/L0
Ad LO:€



9 Jo  abed

09°/8- ERITTET TR Sled O}ny UosiAeq  0Z0Z/LL/90 L6192 ¥o8yD- Jud (g
r8lL- ‘Bpig deaydn pue sredey "' N'g Od 'slosjiyoly abunp Jisp uosped  0Z0z/LL90 96192 ¥08YD- Jud Iig
G60.8- 10 %3 [end ‘0 IO Jeneyneig  020Z/L1/90 56192 %08YD- lud g
G8Til- soueusjulel 8jaIyaA U] JSOMUMON unelg  0Z0Z/LL/90 6192 ¥o8yD- Juid [Ig
000 aloA $100(] peaYIoAQ speig  0Z0Z/LL/90  €6192 ¥09yD- ud g
£°19¢- so|/ddng SINT OT1 [eolpajy @81 punog  0Z0Z/LL/I90  26L9T %08y~ Juid [IIg
££°009't-
8l 'vl- 90UBUBIUIBIY BJoIyBA
1LGl- sa)/ddng 8010
or'co- spunois pue "dng Juiepy ‘bpig
06'6¢- spunoig pue ‘dng ‘jurey “Bpig
00°0€.- selddng [essuss)
6G'e9- spuno.s) pue "dng ‘jutey bpig
66'C1- sa/iddng soy0
pl'gl- spunoig) pue "dng “juiepy ‘Bpig
LV selddng SN3
0£'8G1- spunou) pue "dng ‘Jurejy ‘Bpig
00°€Z- Buues] SW3
ov'LL- spuno.g) pue "dng “Jutey “Bpig
5291 saljddng 80O
1866 spuno9 pue ‘dng ey ‘bpig
66'65- solddng 800
05.- sal|ddng N3
26°0)1- spunois) pue “dng Jure} ‘bpig
ov'0G1- spunoi9 pue "dng juiely Bpig

S{lig "osiw Jousig auid Aoll_A ISOM  0Z02/LLI90  16LSZ iecllle}

Junowy pied Junosdy awepN ajeq wnN adf]
0Z0Z aunp
|reyaq 3o9y9o

Jou3SIQ UoNOj0Id ll4 |einy UeplIdYS

W10l

02/20/L0
Ad 10:€



00°002- $994 [BUOISSB)01d sullwesns  0z0z/LL/90  €1292 %08U0- wid (18
05'€88- SUOOS]3 PUE SBINISS JOid OT1MoH Jeeds  0z0Z/LL/90  2129T %08YD- Juid IIIg
05 vy~ spunoig pue “dng jurely ‘bpig sielajely buipling uepusys  0Z0Z/L1/190 11292 %¥08y0- wid |I'g
8.'669'¢- oUeUBJUIEIN SIOIYSA ouj ‘'syoni uosialed  0Z0Z/LLG0  0LZ9T 303YD- Jud llig
00°0%- 861 - SaMIIN ussy Jajep dnsewoq afephuad  0Z0Z/LL/I90 60292 309y0- Juid 119
0008- suonduasgng % seng “UiUPY 8OO 90IMBS Bll4 YO/ YOSHO  0Z0Z/LL/90 80292 308YD- Jud fig
95’1 ¥5- Buispenpy Io)siboy-sMaN  0z0Z/LL/90 20292 308D Jud llig
00005~ SUO}09|3 PUE SADIAIBG JOiId omje Bupisa] jeuoneN  0z0z/L1/90  90Z9C %o8y0- Juid (19
LL9EY spunoi9 pue "dng ‘Jutely ‘bpig o33 USINNOW  0Z0Z/L1/90  G0Z9Z %08YD- Juud g
0€'59Z'- sleaishyd eleD YesH ojelpaw] S{IAUUINON  0Z0Z/LLS0  ¥029T 308Y0- Juid [Iig
618G} se|ddng S ou| ‘JsIsSy-jIT  0Z0Z/LL90  £0292 308YD- Jud lIig
AN soyddng SN3 U] ‘90in0sqe  0Z0Z/LLI90 20292 303U0- Juid g
VoSILL- papunjay d/0 ‘quy MN 84} Jo Ue|d YlleaH uoliepunod Jasie)  0Z0Z/41/90 10292 Yoay0- Jud llig
66'L ¥t papunjey d/0 "quy YOMON YllesH Ayunwwodssiul  0Z02/LL/90 00292 3¥93Y0- Juid llig
00°0¢- salddns SW3 ou| ‘Aiddng Buipjop [emsnpu|  0Z0Z/LL/90 66192 %09YQ- uid [lig
50501 SUOJOd|3 pue S30IAIBS J0id OTTAien0osy 43 0Z0Z/LL/I90 86192 ¥08yD- uid [1g
junowy pied Junoday aweN ojeq wnN adA|
020Z aunp
ieyeqg 3o93yo

301)SIQ UOI399J0.d ali4 [einy uepldys

02/20/L0
Ad 1L0:€



g9 40 9 abed

26'96.°C- llo:hed d Pleuoy ‘uoswodlen  0z0Z/61/90 ¥2¢9¢ s0ayofed
£9'G8€'0}- Juswasinquites Beyuod vo Joulsiq a4 AsjleA 1som  0202/61/90 €2¢9¢ 493490
v1'6v.'6Y-

00°000°02- SjueIS

L 6v.'6¢e- Juswdinb3 SN3 'di0Q [e3lps T10Z  0202/61/90 44414 434D
€7°1£8'8Z- aduelnsu| yjesH 1SN 80IAI8S s}jeuag sakoldws  0Z0Z/80/90 TAAATA %08y0 Aligen
08¢y uojonpap |0Jked oSN Jo juswedaq uobeig  0202/61/90 (XAATA %0849 Afiger
6¢°.6€- [0 B tend Pusig alid Jiod MS - 0202/11/90 02c9c 434D
TAA A yojedsig Kouaby uoReslUNWWOY [IYWeA  0Z0Z/11/90 6129¢ 493U3- JWd g
00'980°¢- souelnsuy| fousby souesnsu| yHM 0202/} 1/90 8129¢ %93yQ-jwd II'g
00601~ Buisienpy yojedsiq Areq oyl yO4M 0202/} 1/90 L129¢ A034D- JWd lIlg
09°/¢- sa||ddng [euoyuer 0D UOSI|aN 3 Jsllem 020¢/11/90 9129¢ A03YD- Jud [ig
00°'1€C- Buisiienpy pieog upaiing syl 0202/} 1/90 Gic9e 384D~ jwd g
v0¥29’L- SUOHI8|3 pue s8JIAL8S Joid 011 ‘IseM ubiseq swislshks  0z0z/11/90 | ATA T4 A03YD- juid liig

junowy pied JUn09sYy aweN ajeq wnN adA

020¢ aunp
lleyaq ¥99yo

3213S1Q UoNd3)0id all4 [einy uepLays

1oL

02/20/L0
Ad L0:¢



| abed

%881 00°0.¥'0LE L- 00'9ZL'v19'L 00°962'¥0¢ anuaAay pund “jurey Bulpling - 8y [ejoL
%000} 000 00'952'v0¢€ 00°95¢'¥0¢ asuejeg pund Bulpu3z ‘4 ‘W’'g - 08000Z¢
%00 00°0.¥'0LE L- 00°0.¥'0LEL 000 awodu] juelg dlwsleg
anuaAsy pund jurely Buipjing - 8y
%Z'86 00°001L- 00°22¥'s 00°22€'s 'A9Y pund [eLIOWSIN Jaydue4 uyor - [y [ejo
%<C 86 00°001L- 00°L2v¥'S 00°.2€'S "leq puny Buipuz "W'J'r - 02000Z€
*A9Y pun4 [elIOWS Jaydueq uyor - /y
%v'80L 00°000°GE 00'GZS LIy 00°62S 'Sy pung aAlasay juswdinb3 "uso - ¢y |ejoL
%0001 000 00°000'62 00°000°52 pund-uag Jojsuel] "Y'3'O - 050050
%680} 00°000'G€ 00'Gzs'z6e 00°6es'Lev aoueleq Bulpua "¥'3'D - 050002¢
pund ansesay juawdinbg 'uag - 6y
%8 %0l G8'9/8'c0l 00°000'¥8LC G8'9/8°/8¢2°¢ SNUBASY 49 [ejol
%168 0€°0.L'0L- 00°000°'059 0,'622'6.S a3 3414 @ S334 ¥3sN
%G'€Le GE'€G9'CL 00°000'¥9 GE'€G9'9¢l JINOONI SNOANVYITIIOSIN
%\ ¥. 6.°GLL'G- 00°000°02 LZvee'vl saxe] Jold Jlod/lliyweA
%Z 70l vrLoL'Lz 00°000°¢S9 v¥'101'089 d.034 39 Ol SaAXVI A31VINILST
%001} G1°890'08 00°000°26.2 G1'890°2.8 S3DIAY3S TVNLOVILINOD
9NUBAJY 49
%1 '8El 00°1.€'60¢C 00°000°0SS 00°L.£'652 Junovdy Bulouejeg |ejo
%1 '8€l 00'L.£'60C 00°000'0SS 00'12£'65. aoue|eg Bujuibag puny essusn
Junosdy Buiouejeg
awoou|
19bpng jo 9, 196png 180 § 1obpng oz une -6}, Inp
020z aunr ybnouyy 6102 AInp siseg ysed
[enjdy ‘SA nwmv—._m $S0T R l1jodd 02/20/.0
J0113s1g UO0I}0d}0id 8dl4 [einy ueplIdys Nd v5:2



2 obey

%€ 86 89'292'2- 00°00S'OLY Ze'/€2'601 SIDIAYAS ANV STIVIMILVNI [ejoL
£9°68¢°0l S991AI0S JORIUOD
%9'88 06'8.6'c- 00°000'sE 05°120'LE @ouelnsuy|
%E 901 68'98G'L 00°000'62 68°98G6'9Z saj|ddng ST
%G'S0L €Z'¥89'L 00°005'0€ £T¥81'ZE sanN
%Z OF 08'G6'vL- 00°000'62 0Z'¥50'0L uopeanp3 R |aAel|
%Z L0l V6 6vZ L 00°000'001 ¥6'6¥2 L0) aoueusjule g sijedey
%LZ6L G8'6£2'CE 00°000'GE G8'6£Z'/9 S804 [eUO|SS9}0.d
%6'GL 8¢'L8Y'9Z- 00°00S'LE z9'810°S suuoyiun @ 3dd
%0°€6 1GvEL- 00°005°0} £¥'G9.'6 snoauej|adsIy
%0°00L 000 00°000'0Z 00°000'02 sjuels
%."95 ¥’ 128'0L- 00°000'S2 €5°TLL'YL sol|ddng jesauss
%b 8v lzzie'ol- 00°000'02 €1'/89'6 Bunysa] juswdinbg
%8'8€EL 11°€80'01 00°000'92 11°€80'9¢ juswdinbg
%E"06 oo¢lLge- 00°000°€E 00'/8.'62 S921AI8S oIpey B Yojedsig
SIDIAYTS ANV SIVINILVYIN
pun4 [eJausc)
asuadxgy
%662 G1'2ZE'v96- 00'829'86.'v G8'SSE'vER'S Jj0l1d ssois
%6'6. G1'2ZE'v96- 00'8/9'86.'% G8'GSE'PES'S awoou| [e3o
%926 00'000'2- 00°000'22 00°000'SZ RAuoyiny Buipuads ¢ uoness - 6y [e10]
%0°001 000 00°000'6Z 00°000°'62 pung |eJauas - uj Jajsued |
%00 00°000'Z- 00°000°'C 000 3WOodUu| Snodue||aasIy
foyiny Buipuadg g uonels - 6y
3obpng yo 9, 1obpng 48n0 ¢ Jobpng oz unr- gL, Inp
020z aunr ybnouayy 610z Ainp sised yseo
[en}oy "sA }abpng sso B Jjoid 02/20/L0

Jou3sIq uonoajold aii4 [einy uepuays d ¥S:T



¢ obed

%926 00°000'2- 00°000'22 00°000'62 fAuoyiny Buipuads 6 1S - 600 |€30L
%926 00°000'2Z- 00°000°22 00°000'G2 weiboid uonerosiddy - 0600012
Auoyiny Buipuads 6 1S - 600
%0 LE°€/6'€09' |- 00°9Z.'7L9'L €950 pund jurely Buipjing - 8oo |ejol
%00 00°9S2'vG- 00'95Z'%S 000 g43n ute Buipjing [ejo) - 1L.8000LZ
%E ¥ 1£°/¥2'6€2- 00'000'052 £€9'Z8l'0lL "Bpig desydn pue siedsy "4'IN'g - 0800012
%00 00°0.¥'0LE L- 00°0L¥'0LE'L 000 sapeibdn juets osjwsies
pung ‘jurely Buipjing - 800
%L'E 00°2/22'S- 00°22¥'S 00002 [eowsy Jayoued uyor - 200 |ejoL
%00 00'222'¢- 00°222's 000 g43N |elows|y J8ysued r |ejo] - 1200012
%0001 000 00°002 00°00Z Spiemy [enpIAIpUl ‘'S - 0L000L2
[ellowd}y Jayosue4 uyopr - 200
%G'C 00°2.6'901- 00'GZS LLY 00°87S'01 pund aasasay jJuawdinb3 jesauas) - 600 €30 L
%00 00°GZS'LLp- 00'GZS'LLY 000 g43n say b3 ueo |ejo) - LGLOLE
00'8%5'0L aseyoind juswdinbg "y'3'9 - 05101L€
pun4 aAlasay juawdinb3 JeJsuasg) . GO0
%688 8929¢'1G- 00°00G6'0LS zeLE2'65Y pung |eJauag |ejo]
%00 00°000'0S- 00°000°05 000 Kousbunuoy - 90 ejoL
%00 00°000'0S- 00°000'0S 000 Kouabunuoy - 001009
AousBunuos . 90
%0001 000 00°000'05 00°000'0S slajsuel] - G0 |ejoL
%0001 000 00°000'GZ 00°000°'52 fuoyiny Buipuads 6 IS - 006005
%0001 000 00°000'6Z 00°000'S2 pun4 ansesey ‘dinb3 jesauss - 009005
%00 000 000 000 eoueuajutely Buipjing - 00£00S
slojsuel] - 0
jebpng j0 9, 1obpng J18A0 $ jebpng oz unp- gL, Inr

020z aunr ybnouyy 610z AInp siseg yseo
|enjoy ‘sA }abpng sso 9 }1jodd 02/20/L0
}o113S1(q UO9d}0Id all4 [einy UeplIdYS Wd v5:2



¥ obed

%0001 £e'65Z'cly’l 00°0 £€'65Z'CLY'L awoou| JaN
%G 0 8y'18G'2.€'2- 00'8.9'86.'% 25°960'L2v'C asuadxg |ejo
%00 00°000°0€L- 00°000'0€1 000 g43 pejeudosddeun - 20 [e301
%00 00°000'0EL- 00°000°0€1L 000 g43n
g43 pajeudoiddeun - 20
%8'L6 S LyL'TLL- 00005280 1G'8GE'GL6'L llodAed |ejo]
¥0°0- J19Y)0 - [101heyq
%60 Ly 9Er- 00°00S‘L €6°€90°L @ouesnsu| Juswhojdwaun
%698 71°€8¢'vlL- 00°000°0L1 98'919'G6 VvoId
%.'812 99'G89'6C 00°000'S2 99'689'vS uonesuadwo) ,SIaNJOM
%EZ0L YS¥E6'y 00°000'012 R R4S Sy3d
%6'GLZ 199861 00°000'0L 1998612 awi]-Jed
%6} 00°€.G'sh- 00°000'0S 00°22¥'9 juswAsSINqUIdY AY
%2 'G6 18'Z86'1L- 00°000'0L€ 61°210'G62 @ouelnsu| yjesH
%Z'8L) 88°LLL'6 00°000'0S 88'L11'65 awj] JoAQ
%L Y. 18°7/8'C/1L- 00°000'¥89 €LZ2LLLS s,LIN3 ® dIpaweled/iaiybyali4
%0'20L GL'€62°CL 00°000°2£9 GL'€6.'619 Jje1s aAnesSIUIWPY
l1o4Aed
Jobpng jo 9, jebpng 1000 § jebpng oz unr-gl, Inp
020z aunp ybnouayy 6102 AInr siseg yseo
jenjoy “sA }obpng ssoT] R 1jold 02/20/.0
JoL}SIJ Uo}09304d adl4 jedny ueplays Nd vS:2



T T T T+

| Juswajess 0} pa|Iouodal Sajedipu] p

82'050'90L'y $ [(G1'G2) $ | ovSyl's §{(€2652'820'L) §|€2'€€0'0598 | €095L'62L'S $ sjejol
68'186'L€L°C §|S0°08-  [¥8'LICYS  |08'G9C'GRGS- 00°0$ 06'620°¢CEy $ o £709/dIO1
8y'eGlvce6 $ (010 |95L26$ 00°000°0€$- ¥€'821'68¢$ |[89269'899 § 788Y/dIOT
eSry6'ae  $ (0008 00°0$ vy aees- 00°0$ L6'6.2°9¢ $ JUeq eiquinjod/138JUnjoA
ge'0/e'el  $[00°Ges- |00°0$ 66',69'7G1$- 68'706'79¢$ | 8y'eviioL  $ Ueg elquinjod/o1sig
JONVIVE | S33d4 [1STHFLINI| TVMVHAHLIM | 11SOd3d JONV1VE

Bunesy pteog 020z AInr Jo4

020Z "0€ aunr
aoueleg pund uoday ysed

PUISIQ a1l Xjod MS




12:27 PM SW Polk Fire District
07/02/20 Profit & Loss

Cash Basis

Income

ESTIMATED TAXES TO BE REC'D

Polk County-Previous
Polk County-Current

Total ESTIMATED TAXES TO BE REC'D

Interest on Investments
MISCELLANEOUS INCOME

Total Income
Gross Profit

Expense
MATERIALS & SERVICES
DISPATCH SERVICES

GENERAL SUPPLIES
PPE & UNIFORMS
Repairs & Maintenance
Travel & Education
UTILITIES
Appreciation Program

INSURANCE
CONTRACTUAL SERVICES

PROFESSIONAL FEES
MISCELLANEOUS
Total MATERIALS & SERVICES

8000 - Capital Outlay
Faciliites (Stations)

Total 8000 - Capital Outlay
Total Expense

Net Income

Jun 20

1,661.95
17.704.50

19,366.45

5,148.99
5,000.00

29,515.44

29,515.44

1,985.00
139.05
542.18

4,494.32
125.20
654.41

35.44

1,928.00
47.822.76

1,598.20
41.15

59,365.71

355,361.85

355,361.85

414,727.56

-385,212.12

Page 1



¥ jo | abed

9.228'Ly- S8JIAISS [ENJIEIUOD 10U}SIQ uonIBl0ld Bl [einy uepusyS 0z0¢/) 1/90 8619 %9840
86'99- SN ssauisng wnioads 0Z02/92/90 suluQ  Xo9yd-jud Iig
yi'Se-
Sv'9¢- gqeysy
66'8- wawdinb3

yueg Biquinjod 2e86 - STOA EJUBWY J0 yueg 0¢0¢/¢e/90 aunuo 39840
96091~ sajiin Jomod ouioed 0¢0¢/L1190 BUUQ  AIBYD- Wd |Ilg
WA auoydasja JurAinusg 0z0z/0/90 duUlUQ  o8yd- Jud Iiig
00°6Z- sabieyo yueq jueg eiquiniod 0¥86 020¢/S1/90 #9840
0o sabieyo yueg ¥88¥ dI197 020¢/10/90 %9840
800 sableyo yueg d197puog 020¢/10/90 284D
junowly pied 1UNo20Y aweN 3jeqg wnN adA|

0Z0Z aunr
['e3a@ ¥29y9
JougsIq adld Mlod MS

10L

02/20/L0
Wd 90:¥



L 101
¥5°0¢g- uoieanp3 9 [oAel |
¥9'8- saliddns |eieuag)
09¢l- sa||ddns [eiouag)
089 saliddns |essuag)
0¢/oy/0y louisiq @114 AsieA s 020Z/11/90 8619 499UD
S068 101
0085 suouun ® 3dd
86'GC- aoueuslUlel B Slleday
00°0G¢- SouBUBJULE % Slleday
102G soueusjulBl B Slleday
S|liq osIN Joujsiq aui4 As|leA 1S9 0202/11/90 1619 A994D
19%6Ges- 10l
9eel- sa|/ddns |essus9)
Sy'e sa||ddns [essus9)
08¢ $99) |BUOISSBJ0Id
08'69- UOIIEONPT B [SABI|
00k~ uonesnp3 9 [oABJ L
95'v1- uoieanp3 9 [eAel |
9l'14¢- $99) |BUOISS8J0Id
ob'ecl- $99) [BUOISSBJ0Id
ov'6e- s9)|ddns [elauag)
08'6- sa)|ddns [eiausg
009}- Snosue|99sIN
00°18- $99] |BUOISSBJ0.d
00°00L- $98) |BUOISSBJ0Id
00°Gl- salddns |eJauag)
veey- $99) [BUOISSSJ0Id
007 $99) |BUOISSSJ0id
02/0¥/0¥ JouIsIg uonasjold il [einy Ueplisys (¢0¢/1 1/90 9619 A08YD
Junowy pied JUnogoYy aleN ajeQ wnp adh]
020¢Z sunp
[1e3aQ %29yo
02/20/L0

pugsIg adid Mlod MS

Nd 90:v



¥ jo ¢ abeg

00'686'}- yojedsig 30O sHUBYS Aunog sjod 0202/11/90 ¢lc9 o8yD-jud iid
00°0v- saliN 0ssy Jejep olsawioq aephuiad 0202/ 1/90 1129 o3yD-lud g
¥9'196- souBUSIUIE| B Sileday wales jo Auedwog 100Q pesyssAQ 0Z0z/L 1/90 0129 o8yd-ud Iiig
0e8e- SalIiN [ednieN MN 020¢/11/90 60C9 o8YD-wd g
LE'Y0€E- SULOHUN @ 3dd ues|9 Ajojes 1semypoN 0z0z/1 1/90 8029 08YD-ud IIig
£0'¢98- IO B Iend dONW 0¢0¢/1 1/90 2029 09YQD- ud liid
00°08- $99] [euoIssejo.d 3IeD UHesH sjelpawiw] SfIAUUININ 0202/1 1190 9029 09YyD-jud [iig
66'255°}- souBUBJUIB} ' SJleday se|led Jo IO 020z/11/90 G029 Mo/YyD-uid |Iig
GE'6Y0'Ge- (suope)s) seyfioe Od 'S}oa)yaIy JIBA uosped 0zZ0z/| 1/90 ¥0Z9 408yD-Jud |Iig
GO'8LL- saiN "oU| ‘90MI8G Aleyues sipueld 0Z0Z/11/90 €029 o8yD-lud g
00°G08- (suone)s) sayioe ou| ‘Bubsaulbug youelg 0z0z/} /90 ¢029 98YD-iwd g
06°205'62¢- (suone)s) ssyioe ou| ‘uoanuIsuog Jepoe ueg 020¢/1 1/90 10¢9  Y93YD-jud lilg
00°986- soueuUsjulEl B slleday 90l1A9S 01das g 8 ¥ 0202/1 1/90 0029 98yD-ud |ig
\g'eve-
100y
00°0%- sal|ddns [eseusg)
02'29¢- $99) [BUOISSSJ0Id

Siiiq "SIy 10uIsIg uonosiold il [einy ueplisys 0z0z/11/90 6619 pRElle)
junowy pled 1uno2ay aweN aleq wny adf|

0¢0¢ aunp

l1e3aqg ¥99Yo
J}ou3sIg 2414 Y|od MS

10l

02/20/L0
INd 90:v



¥ jo ¢ abeg

000 PIOA $100( peayisnQ s,pelg 020¢/11/90 8129 X99YD-wd iig
18'66¢- SWOHUN 3 3dd uea[D Ajojes 1semyHoN 0g0z/1 1/90 L129 09YD-ud g
00'826°}- souelnsu| Kouaby soueinsu| YHM 0202/} 1/90 9129 o8yD-lud liig
00119 $99] [euOISsD0ld 071 oH 188dS 0202/} 1/90 Glg9 Ho8yd-ud liig
00°'£0}- S0UBUBJUIE| B Sileday sjollo] a|qeHod ysnid [eAoy 0zZ0g/11/90 7129 094D jud (i'g
00ty sanimN Jolep Apunwwod [feaniory 0z0z/)1/90 ELC9 ®o9YD-lud |9
Junowy pied JUno20Yy sweN ajeq wnn adA .
0Z0¢ sunp
lle}ag ¥29Yo

02/20/L0
JoLIsIq adld Ylod MS Wd 90:%



| abed

%E'ES 95'€€e'2- 00°000'S vp'999°C
%ST 00'7/8'%- 00°000'S 00'9z1
%P '8EL 68'996'0L 00°005'2Z 68'990'8¢
%250} 86'LV.'VT 00°009'LLY 86'/7E'96Y
%0'86 05°00€- 00°000'G} 05'669'71
% vS 20'7$8'SZ- 00°0%2'96 86'G88'0€
%Z'S6 5. '€9¢- 00'006'8 5Z'9L'8
%G°801 05'8€€ 00°000'% 05'8€€'Y
%9'68¢ 69'G15'LZ 00°006'6 69'610'2€
%L'G8 102V 00°000'0L €2'195'8
%206 01'S9p- 00°000'S 06'¥ES'Y
%0°El £9'89€'¥2- 00°000'8Z 1£71€9'E
%¥'L8 85'58.'9- 00°000'%5 LTy
%0°0 000 000 000
%0°0 000 000 000
%S'19 0L'226'}- 00°000'S 06'220'€
%G'19 0L°226'L- 00°000'S 06220
%0°0 00°000'022- 00°000'02. 000
%Lv6 ov'695' L0V~ 00°086'2€9'2 ¥S'010'9€Z"L
%L '¥6 91'69G'L0b- 00°08G'2€9', ¥5'010'9€2'L
%0°004 000 00°0v.2'22 00°0v2'L2
%Z'EL 1Z°90%'1Z- 00°000'08 €£1°€66'85
%9'€01 LL'SPO'E 00°000'004 LL'GPO'E0)
%0°101 0L°09L'6 00°00€'848 01°09¥'288
%0°0 000 000 000
%0'¥6 00'696'Z6€- 00°0¥S'155'9 00'L/5'851'9
196png jo % 396png 1910 § 19B6png 0z unr - 61, Inf

SNOIANVITIOSIN
ININDIND3

$334 TVNOISS340¥d

S3IVIAYUIS TVYNLOVAILNOD
JONVINSNI

weiboid uoneidsaiddy

S3aLLAILN

uoneosnpy g [9ABIL

soueusjUIel\ B sileday

SWYOLINN 8 3dd

$31T7ddNS TVA3INIO

INIVIN ININJIND3T ? SNLVYVYddY

S3ADIAYIS HOLVdSIa
SINVYO

JONVNILNIVIN ALITIOVS
S3DIAY3S TINNOSHId lelol

uonesuadwon S194J0 M
SIVIAYIS TINNOSYHIAd
SADIAYIS ? STIVI¥IALVIN

leg pun4 Buipu3z pajeudosddeun - gg61
asuadxgy
}jo.d Ssol5)
awodu| [ejoL
J0ybyauid-49 u| Jaysuel)

JINOINI SNOANVTIIDSIN
SJUSWISAAU| UO JSaIaIU|

Q.03d 39 O1 S3XVL d3LVIILSE
$334 ¥3sn

aouejeqg Janohiien/Buiuuibag
awoouj

020z aunr ybnouyy 610z AInp
[en}oy "sA }abpng sso % 11J04d
1o13S1q 3di4 M|od MS

siseg yses
02/20/L0

Nd 0t



Z obed

%0°LZL'V6 8L'650°LOL'Y 00°000°G 81'670°00L'Y
%L €E ¥9'819'201'G- 00°085'2€9'. 9€'196'625'C
%0°0 000 000 000
%0°00L 000 00°0v.'22 00°0¥L L2
%b e 26'80L'€SE - 00°00%'29L'S 80'169'80F'L
%0°0 00°00%'z- 00°00%'Z 000
%00 00°000'004- 00000001 000
%90 LLVZEVEB L 00°000'652'€ €2'6/9'veE’L
%G°E SL'¥86'9LEC- 00°000'L0¥'Z $8'GL0'48
%8'66 RIS 00°000'G6€ £2'92Z'v6E
%966 LUELL- 00°000'00Z €2'92Z'661
%0°00L 000 00°000'S6L 00°000'G61
%0°0 000 000 000
%196 $6'GEL'8C- 00°0bY'L2L S0'¥0€E'669
%00 00°009'22- 00°009'22 000
196png jo 9, 396png J3A0 ¢ 196png 0z unp - 61, InF

awodu| }19N
asuadx3g |ejo)

Kousbuyuod - 0266
0€L uonels o} 19jsuel] - L066

Aepng [epde) - 0008 [e10L

1910 - Aepno [ended - 0008

dinb3 fsjeg @ Bunubiyeury

(suoneys) sayioey

jusweoejday snjeseddy
Aepno [endes - 0008

S30IAY3S 1930 Iejol

sjuswAied 3sataju|

suswied jediouud

S}S09 aouenss| puog - 9972
S3DIAY3S 1930

SIDIAYZS B STIVIYALVIN [EJOL
19410 - SFDIAYITS B STVIIILVIN

0202 aunp ybnoays 610z Ainp
|enjoy “sA }aBpng ssoT R Jijoid
JougsIq adi4 Y|jod MS

siseg yse)
02/20/20

Nd o¥:¥



sabley) I swowAed BB pamojlesid BB

PaWaJl 8 Pa1d3]I00u

spodail ysodap Ajypuow o} s[19u0231 Jou |IMm Aay]  “sabieys s,yjuow yoea o} APo3lIp aje|al UMOYS SJUNOWE ||y

$€'568°€92 ze' L0k 't 98'10£'908- 18'299'L}- L2 0 v0S- 09'110'689°L ZLe
%18  /1'€55'66 %0 000 %Gl S0'ZE0'8L- % 0 000 % ¥ 8229t~ 0s'/62'22) 29 oz unr
% 1S 20'90£'8S % 0 000 % .E  80'966'Ch- %0 000SZ- % L1 oy orl'cl- 05269V LL 0. 0z fep
%2 08'96F'EC % 0 000 % /S 6L/£5'19 %0 00°05¢- % LT LE'ovE'se- 00'SZ9'80L jete] 0z 1dy
%9l  T6TOS'LT % 0 000 %95  8£686'V.- % 0 00°0SS- % /T 0LZle'ee- 00GLY'eEl 89 0c lep
%ZL  00G06'9L % | 00'00G'L- % /S 0Z.l8'es- % L 9G'651'L- % 62 vZ'eee'ey- 00'S06'GYL 6/ 0Z 924
%cCl  0£Gel'6l % T 00 0F9'c- %65  YTT86'TE- % 0 00°'62s- % 9T Sy 'zre'Li- 00682851 18 oc uep
% 0 Le'18y % Z 02’80/ 'C- % IS  £5TLL'6G %0 00062~ % S¥ e/ ZARN KD ov'geL'clLl 99 61 22
% Ll ¥Z9sC'LL % ¥ 0ZELL'Y- %Sy 9vZev'op- % | 00'08G- % 6€ 0/'8/€'01- 09'08.'20L 9S 61 AON
% | 08'veL'L % 0l 0v'L9G'ZL- % TS  /L6L¥8'vo- %0 00°00%~ % L€ €8'986'Gh- o0o'Lzs'se) €l 61 190
% ¥ LL'v96's %G /8¢l 2- % 6v  88'698'99- %€ oo'elg'e- % 82 ¥1'086'LG- 000S2'GEL z8 6l dag
% C ozvee'e % ¥ oV LLE Y- %6V 1879026 % L 1¥'250'L- % S¥ cl'ees'ze- 00682211 S9 61 Bny
% Z ov'sse' % ¥ /6'288'G- % €S  LTOGL'69- % L re2£9'L- % OF 8/°0v6'1G- 02Z'299'0E) () 6L Ine
% 0 /6'6EL %9 8T L¥S .- % ¥S  97TTe'ss- % | 00'6Z6 % 6€ 69'8£9'81- oF 295'GZL Zl 61 unp
%  Bulpuad % pajosijodun % pamojjesiqg % Paaal4 % sjuawied sobieys SINIIL  Yyiuoy

A9|[BA 189N Japirold

A9|[en 1sopA Auedwon

0 S92I0AU|

020Z/0£/90 0IMBS JO 2jeg

6102/10/90 913G JO 3l

SJILSILVLS NOILD3TI09D TVNNNVY

A3|leA 1s9M

0c0z/elL



[ juswale)s 0) pojiouosal sejedipul p

(r056%88) $1 - sTirer  §oisez)  $[e1iz9izs [e6178026  § s|ejoL
pi206'8)  $Joo0s  [Lr81$ 00'08 905'8/2'9% [ /9%6097)  $ 0795/dIDT]
£9°050'02 $ (0008 0003 LV9LLETLS 298ve'6028 [218lrv8  § Buoay) yueg sn|
JONVIVE | S33d |1SIYALNI| IVMVHAHLIM | 11ISOd3d | JONVIVE

0Z0Z ‘0g sunr
aoueleg pun4 1oday ysed

Bunesy pseog 0z0z AInr Jo4
1oUysIa 2114 ASJIDA ISOM



West Valley Fire District
PROFIT AND LOSS

June 2020
TOTAL
Income
INCOME
Contractual Services 146,996.84
Current Taxes 5,473.20
Miscellaneous 16,126.17
Previous Taxes 769.78
User Fees and FireMed 44,124.79
Total INCOME 213,490.78
Total Income $213,490.78
GROSS PROFIT $213,490.78
Expenses
MATERIAL & SERVICES
Contractual Services 36,066.21
Dispatch Services 1,836.42
EMS Supplies 742.15
Equipment
Medical Equipment 43,193.40
Total Equipment 43,193.40
General Supplies 1,073.85
Insurance 1,636.00
Miscellaneous Expenses 950.95
Professional Services 5,760.80
Repairs & Maintenance 2,690.19
Travel & Education 220.94
Utilities 2,538.57
Total MATERIAL & SERVICES 96,709.48
PERSONNEL SERVICES
FF/P & FF/EMT 38,269.58
MEDICAL INS 8,295.26
P.E.R.S. 7,383.11
Payroll Taxes 3,460.04
Salaries -12,890.04
Volunteer Reimbursement -1,083.46
Total PERSONNEL SERVICES 43,434.49
Total Expenses $140,143.97
NET OPERATING INCOME $73,346.81
NET INCOME $73,346.81

Cash Basis 171



[1e39p 3934 unf A4AM T 98ed
05'188- JUlBW BJOIYSA gemyog sa1 - 992§ (oayQ) uewhed g 0z20/11/90
£9'298- JUIBW OIS anjowony 8j9|dwio) SUOP  G97G (woeyQ) uewhed g 020/11/90
0091~ se|ddns N3 ou| ‘Aiddng Bulpjopm [eulsnpuj 92§ (08y0) Jualiked g 0z02/)1/90
000t~ "PY 9pUOY pueID 098 Joujsiq Aleyueg opuoy puel  £9z5 (oey0) wawhed g 0z0z/11/90
0072 ‘PY 9puoy puel (798 Iojep Ajunwwog spuoy puerS  Z9z§ (woeyQ) uewhed |1 0202/11/90
00'v8- 59} UoloadsuUl JOJeAd|]  S8OIMISS Sseulsng g JsWNsUoY Jo Juswpedsq  19zS (0eyD) yuswhed lIlg  0Z02/} 1/90
66'6€ - Julew jolyaA Sled ojny uosireq 0928 (woey0) ewhed I1g  0202/11/90
68'062- 081 1S BUILLBIIM JO AND 6625 (WoeyD) yuewhed 11 0202/ 1/90
£6'216" "JUiBW BjOIYBA selleqo A0 §5zs (oayD) Juawhed (g  0Z0z/41/90
66'29- "JulBW BjoIYBA 18)usd Oy UIAJOD ¥ONYD  /GT§ (0ay) Juawhed 119 0Z0z/}1/90
62651 "Julew S[oIyaA Jsanbiey 96z (08y0) Juswided lig  0z0z/L1/90
€86 lond 00 |I0 Jeneuypalg  GGZ§ (oay0) Juawhed g 0202/11/90
56129 JuawiAediano aoue|nquy sueld UyesH oLy $S2§ (03y0) Juswhed l1g 0202/} 1/90
00'716- uoyonpap fjoiked aoysnr jo juewnedeq €575 084D 0202/1.0/90
00'9}- uononpap jo1ed aosnr Jo Juawpedeq 679 ¥08U0  0202/1.0/90
00°0€9- sanp Aey 1987# (8007 441 16T ¥09UD  0202/10/90
junowy uonduosagjowpy aweN wnp adA] uopoesuel] aeqg
020z aunre
Ile3aq ¥o8YD

Jou3siq aud Aafjep 1som



|1eI3P 3I3Y3 3unf G4AM 7 93ed
09'6€} 0202/2/9 Siamsuy YH
7162 0202/1/9 eURIS B
AN 0202/61/G eusIS BT
06’y 0202/61/G eusIS €7
09°02 0202/62/G YOI uepuays
00'SS 0202/1 1/G HOSOIIN
7€'205 0202/1/9 8ieD sjelpswiwl| oW
02'8.2 0202/1€/G YAoH Jeads
08'85 020¢/1/9 pieog uns|ing
09'6} 0202/1.€/G Je)s1bay-smaN
00'Z¢ 0202/8/9 YOS40
0029} 0202/92/S Yoredsiq Ajreg
00°002 0202/21/G YomjaN Bunisa] ‘e
05’2 0202/8/S Uos|aN 3 Jajem
8Y'¥8 0202/0€ /v HOSOIIN
00'8 0202/0€ /v HOSOIIN
¥8'829')- 0Z/0v/0y Jo1siq i uepusys /s %0840 0202/ 1/90
96'290'}- len Auedwo |l uopjays 12§ (1o8yD) uswhed |1g  0202/1 1/90
66°1L28°01- 8oueINsUI y)esH sIaS 025 (osyD) wswhed g  0z0z/11/90
A Juswdinb3 Aiddng uued lesnpory 6925 (o8yD) yuswAhed |Ilg  0Z0Z/) /90
9G°12¢- Buysiiand Jo)sibey smeN 8976 (o8yD) JuawAhed 1g  0Z02/) /90
00'6/2- JustAediano soueinquiy Uoqoy ‘puBMeN /92§ (08yD) Juswhed |1g  020Z/ 1/90
junowy uondussagowsy aweN wnp adA] uoioesuel] ajeq



|1e39P %9942 3Unf QIAM

¢ a8eq

00'746- uoionpap |loihed 0ljsnf* Jo Juswypedsq 826 084D 0Z02/0€/90
00°9}4- uoijonpap jjoiked aosnr jo uswyedaq €875 %0840 0Z0Z/0£/90
00°04- $99} Jas SSJeIo0ssY % peleNer 282 %0840 0Z02/11/90
00222'L- [eba Od YoH Jesds 1826 (108yD) Juswhed I1g  0Z0Z/11/90
0£°089- sjeoisAyd olUlID 8JeD Y)[eaH SleIpswil| SIIIUUINO 082S (08y0) Juswihed |1  0Z02/L 1/90
7’968} yojedsiq fousby suojesiunwwo) Iywes  6/25 (osyD) JuswAhed 18 0Z0Z/1 1/90
00'9€9°L- soueInsuj fousby soueinsu| YHM 8725 (o8yD) Juswhed 19  020Z/1 /90
00°0Z)- Buisiuanpy pleog usling eyl /g5 (108y9) yuswhed 18 0Z0Z/11/90
00°Gle- $99) [eUOISSBJ0ld SUOIN|OS SnjueY) [BOIUYDS]  9/2§ (1o8yD) wswhed I1g  0z0z/11/90
0r'zes’L- Buniig ougnquiy 071 159 ubisaq swashs 6.z (08yD) Juswihed g 0z0z/11/90
00'85. 10 ulwpe
12'990'9¢ 0202 fep
12'¥28'9¢- lejoL Joasiq all4 uepusys  +/25 %084 0Z0Z/14/90
00°22 0202/1/9 PJeog una|ing
06'SE} 0202/1.€/G Ja1siBay-smaN
£8°9/) 0202/.2/G 8811 punog
6Tl 0202/92/G 801n0gqeT]
£6'90% 0202/92/S 1s1ssy-a)17
8121 0202/£2/G 091800
01'8Y 0202/G1/G 8.eoy)esy ajelpaluw] WO
0008 (suespew ssaippe ) 0Z0Z/E1/S solydels) so1nusg
ANV 0202/1/G 1s1sSy-a)17
8/°G¢ 0202/0¢/v Oy uosiAeq
L9y ) siliq osiw Jousiqg aui4 uepusys  €/26 %0840 0Z02/11/90
junowy uonduassgowsaly aleN wnN adA] uonoesuel} aleq



1_39p 32342 BUNf gIAM 7 98ed

08'2¢- 08118 souejsig Buo leig  suuQ (08yD) uswhed 19 0202/22/90
1G'Gl- 08118 sseuisng 8ABA  BUIUD (08yD) JuswAhed |19 0202/22/90
¥5'991- 09 9zZ|nyos

67212 D9 sewoy |

G6'268'L- D0 Yooy

67'7€0'}- 00 8aMmoI)

er'659- 17 8IXOH

19°19¢- 29 19UsH

VG122 0202/02/5-12/% jueg SN sUIUO %0840 0202/44/90
00°0¢- "P¥ SpUOY puels 0858 0U}08|3 [eJBUSS) PUBIOL  BUNUQ (1o8yD) JuswAhed |19 0Z02/91/90
€001~ 081 1S uobaiQ waysep ABojoosy  suluQ (o8y0) uswhed |19  0202/51/90
L1'€8E" - e SY3d 8uluo esuadx3 0Z0Z/Z1/90
0022 sel|ddns [ejeuss sbuudg eusis  suuQ (108y9) swhed 18 0202/21/90
VG LyL- 08118 (8) 01u308|3 [esoUSY puBOd  BUNUQ (08yQ) swhed 1g  0202/Z4/90
86'8%9- auoydsja SSS[RUIM UOZUBA  BUKUQ (o8yD) JuswAhed |19  0Z0Z/Z1/90
00’} $89) JosN Aed g wiod suuO asuadx3  020Z/11/90
G8'8yl- 08l 1S feIneN MN  8ujuQ (408yD) wewhed 19  0z02/01/90
¥0°29%'01- SoXe} ||oihed SYl  auuo asuadx3  0z02/€0/90
£6'€2/2" sexe} ||oiked aNUaARY J0 Jusupeda HO  BUIUQ ssuadx3  (0Z02/20/90
6970¢- auoydaja . junlinus)  suluo (osy)) Juswhed |19  0202/20/90
or'e6)'Sh- PEO] Jamod uojesodio) sajes JeyAns 9826 (08y0) yuswhed |Ig  0Z02/6Z/90
00°0€9- senp aunp LO8Y# 18007 44V|  G8ZG %0840 0Z0Z/0€/90

junowy uondiosagjowapy aweN wnN adA] uoyoesuel] ajeq



[1e33p 3232 3uNnf Q4AM G 98ed
09'956¢- 0202/¥2/90-0202/52/S0 ‘poudd Aed V13VHOIN 'saoOM  ad ¥99UD  0202/0€/90
S6' Vet 0202/72/90-0202/52/50 :polad Aed ¥3d000 'S¥aLvM  ad ¥o8UD  0Z0Z/0€/90
8TeLY'E 0202/72/90-0202/52/S0 :poad Aed 'NVYAY ‘318NVA  Ad 308UD  0Z0Z/0€/90
6'7.€'¢- 0202/72/90-0202/52/S0 Pousd Aed gOoMYr ‘¥SS3S  ad 08UD  0Z02/0€/90
£62LLT- 0202/¥2/90-0202/52/S0 :pouad Aed ANAYd M AYF  ad o8UD  0Z02/0€/90
7'009°¢- 0202/72/90-0202/52/50 :podad Aed aNIGONEIMNT  aa ¥094D  0202/0€/90
€€'8G1'¢- 0202/72/90-0202/52/50 :poliad Aed AOHV YNNZXOW  aa %084 0202/0€/90
69206'¢- 0202/%2/90-0202/52/S0 :polied Aed OlM3'SaNIH  aad %9340 0202/0€/90
£9°210°- 0202/72/90-0202/52/S0 :poued Aed '400Vr '3HINOTY  ad ¥98UD  0202/0€/90
00'GLL- a9} ||oiked lloJked ajaidwio) ynjuj asuadx3  0202/62/90
junowy _._o_aa_._ommn_\oEms_ aleN wnN mn_.m._. uonoesuel | 2jeq



4

siseg ysen

% E6°LLE 972668 00°000'¥0L $9°266'L8L SADIAHIS 2 TVIHILVIA [EloL
%ELPLL $6°025'Y 00°000'2e ¥6°025'9€ Sain
% 96'2L v6'650"p- 00°000°S1 80601 uoieonps @ [eABL |
% €2'8G 1 98°8€6'VE 00°000°'09 98'8E6'V6 soueuBUIE B Sileday
% 9.°c6E 26'681'cL 00'000's2 26'681'86 S8JINBS |BUOISS3j0.d
% ¥6°08 £5°0ev'e- 00°000'8} Ly'695'y1 3dd
% 2l'L9 18°282'e- 00700001 612LL'9 sasuadx3 snoaue||aosiy
% LS'8L 0G'108°Z- 00°000'se 05'86v'/2 aoueInsuy|
% 00°0S 0070000}~ 00°000'02 00°000°0L Sjueln
% cle9 88°02.'8- 00°000's2 cL622'91 seyddng [eJsusn
% €9°90} 1S6LLE 00°000° ¥ 1g6LL'er juawdinb3
% 9L 8y .ve's- 00°000'SE 2s'esL'9e sal/ddng SN
% c¥'e8 SL0Lv's- 00°000'ce §8'6285'/S Ss8oIMeg Yojedsiq
% S¥'S01 0,°.8e'61 00°000'sse 0L'Le€'Vi8 $80IM8S [BNORIU0D
S30IAH3S B TVIHALVIN
000 000 Aouabunuoy
sosuadx3g
% 09°20} 61',66'8p$ 00'000'¢e8‘L$ 61°L66'EEE' LS 1Id0Hd SSOHD
% 09201 61°.66'er$ 00'000's88°L$ 61°L66'CEE'LS eLiocou| [Bjol
00°0 0070 1-awoou| Juawied yseo paljddeun
% 62901 €L'166'V6 00°000'015°t £L°166'709°} JINOONI 1oL
% 18°L6 2e'eoe'yl- 00°000°059 89'96/'SE9 Paadi pue sead Jesn
% 06°6¥2 26'vev'L 00°000's c6'verel Sexe | snojasld
% 80°PLL £1°860°L 00°000°0S £1'860'LS snosug|[@asiN
% 8L°€0| 81 L¥9'6 00°000'sS2 8Y" 179'v9e Saxe] slny
% 97'SLL 25'020's8 00°000°05S 25'020'se9 $80IAI8S [EeNOBJLOD
JNOONI
%€L'L8 ¥S'v66'Sh- 00°000's.€ 9+°500'62¢ aoueleg Bujuuibeg Jo
awoou;
139ang 40 % 135ang9 43A0 139ang vNLov
avioL

0zZ0zZ aunr - 6102 AInp

18d 0ZAd - 0202 6102 Ad ‘STVNLOV "SA 139ang
uIsIq all4 AsjleA 1sep



are

siseqg yse)
%000 £°'56.'222% 00°0$ £1°96/'222$ JNOONI 13N
%000 ev's6L'222% 000$ £'66.°222$ JWOONI ONILYHILO 13N
% 81'06 $2'86L'eL1- 00'000'c88'L$ 9L'102'H1L'L$ sesuedx3 [e10L

00°000'cZ- 00'000'SZ souefeg pund Buipu3 pejeudoiddeun

000 00°0 asuadx3 juswAed |iig yseo paiddeun
% LV'E8 88°062'28}- 00'000'901' L 21'602'c26 S3DIAYIS TINNOSHId B0l
% 92'68 95'022°c 00°000'0¢ Y'622'92 uoesuadwo) sJaxopm
% 50'Ge gLviyLe- 00°000°05 8252521 uswasINquisy J88IUN|oA
%GS119 0v°201'992- 00'000'S89 09°.68'8L¥ salees
%S6'18 ¥1'8€9°21- 00°000'0L 98'196'.S saxe |jolhed
% €9°56 15'8v2's- 00°000'021 6V LS. L ‘S'H'I'd
% 89°LL 06'vLY'2p- 00'000'051 01'525'201 SNI TVOId3an

68°L16'E81 68°L16'E81 LN3/44 8 d/44
%G9Sy 9t'95Y 00°000't 8v'95Y" | @ourJInsu| JuswAoldws

S$30IANG3S 1INNOSHId
139an9 40 % 135ang 43no L3s9ang vNLov
TvioL

020z sunpr - 6102 AiInp

18d 0ZAd - 0202 6102 Ad :STVNLOV "SA 139ANg
ouIsIq auld As|leA 1S



FIRE DISTRICT

Sheridan Fire District
SW Polk Fire District
West Valley Fire District
Employee Handbook

2020

Sheridan, SW Polk and West Valley Fire Districts Revision Date: April 24, 2020



Table of Contents
Sample Employee Handbook

WELCOME TO SHERIDAN, SW POLK AND WEST VALLEY FIRE DISTRICTS! ... .ciiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieesisinesssssssssssesssessssasssesaess 2
OUR HISTORY ettt e e e e oo et e et e et e e e et e e e e e s s eeeaes ettt st s be s bt e 84544444t 2 e s e s e b e aasebaabaasaaasasassinse 3
ABOUT THIS HANDBOOK ......oinnniiieieeeeeeetee et et a et e ee st e e e e e e e e e e et e e e st te s et et eas s eesen s s e basban s bt bass b s as b ssbmeneassaans 4
EMPLOYMENT POLICIES . ... cmmeemmretemeernesessessssesstetirermmmmmesssesrrostesststesssssesssssssssssssssssssssssosssssssssssssssssnsssanss 5
EMPLOYMENT RELATIONSHIP .......uuturiiieeitiaeesteeesessrabansasessrssnnssssssmssasssssnnssssnmsssnsssssssesessnssssssesasnssesssssssssssasssesssssanssns 6

EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY ...iiiuvuvieeteeesesrsrunseressssossrensanssssssassssssesssasnssssssesssessasssssssassossnssssssssssssnsssssessanssns |
AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT 1ieiiuvureereiessiiararessesesionssssssenssnssasssesssessassssssssssesssssssssssssionssssssnsssssssssnssssessssses 8
HARASSMENT L.ttt s et e s s s e e et baa e e e aeese s bas s easerssssase s seen s essare s s s s ee s e s st s e s ean s s s e sean s s a4 s eearananasenansrrns 9

Reporting INCidents Of HAPASSMENL...........coouiieiiiiiiiieeeiiiiieie st sss e sse et seva s ssa b s saa s ensa s enssrsesaessasansenss O
WORKPLACE BULLYING .eeiiiiuiitieisiiesresseseessseseesssassesesssssssessrossassssssessserssrassssssnssssssssssssessssnsssssensssnssnsssssesassssssesseres |0

DISPUTE RESOLUTION .uvvtiiiiiisetssetisisneinensinsssnnesssstsnessonsseranessssnsessteeesenssseesemeessnss s idesdinssmsisias siassiniimsis s biassansioiis 12
Reporting Issues Other than Harassment/DiSCPIMINGLION. .............cccc..o..oooueeeeieeiiieeiiseesie s eeieeseeisesese s erss e esaes 12
APPDEAL PFOCESS ...t et et ettt et e ettt b et en e eree /2

You may, from time-to-time, be temporarily transferred or assigned to perform work outside of your regular job
classification, schedule, shift, or department. Depending upon the circumstances, you may be subject to a wage
adjustment while performing such work. We may also reassign employees on a long-term basis whose placements
are determined to be unsuited to their individual skills, and transfer any employee who has an illness or disability

that requires modified duty without posting the position.NEW EMPLOYEES, PROMOTIONS, AND TRANSFERS ............ 13
NeW EMPLOYEE OFIEHEALION. .............ocoeeeeeieaiiaii et etee ettt ettt 14
TRIPOTUCIOFY PEriOdl .............ooeiuiiiiiiie ittt s ettt van s, 14
Promotions and Transfer Training PeriOd..................c..cccooiiiiiiiiiiiiie it e, 14
RE-EMPIOYIMIERIL ...t ettt ettt 14
Credit fOr PPIOF SEHIOFILY ...........coiee ittt ettt et ettt ettt eas et e e ]
Employment CLASSIfICALIONS ............ccccoomiiiiiiiiie ettt ettt evea e 15

EMPLOYMENT RECORD KEEPING ...c.utiuiiiiiiiiiiiic ettt sttt ra e sate st e ere et e ea it e 16
ACCESS 10 PEFSONNEI FilES.......o..oooiiiiiiii et ettt 16
Change in PerSONGL DAL .................cccoueoiiiiii ettt 16

EMPLOYMENT RELATIONS AND CONDUCT ....cccicineemrssissesssesasimssesessssarsssesnmeassasasessassesasssasossesssssssassessnass 17

ETHICS e e o e R R S R s W B o o S RS OV S R S B O3 18
CORFIICE Of INUGFESL ... s G S o VS S TSt A S S B Fan S R Ve 5t D
MUSPEPYESCRIGQLION. ... e S S S S S e N s B S 18
GPOTUTHCS/GIIS ..o S S BB B S B B O e S B vk A i 18
Outside Employment ....................ccceeiviveireiiiiiniins S O B A e A o 19
Off-Dutty CORBUCL. ..............o.e. s e e oS S N s e S oV S A ST v s oV 19
Solicitation and Bulletin Boards .csswssassmsasmmasnsmssimisssnsmiaim snanmmmsmensassaimmmmasmssa 19

CONFIDENTIALTTY 1o cuivinusin e e s s s s s B e S e S o 20
District QNd CUSIOMEFS ...........c...ccoviviiiriiiiiseiiiisiaeins s raiae s sirs s i L S S S R 20
EMpLOYEe ROCOVUS. .......c..ooe s s o s s B o L S o s S a5 S 20

Sheridan, SW Polk and West Valley Fire Districts Revision Date: April 24, 2020



Electronic COMMUNICAIIONS SYSIEINS ............cc...oviiieiiii et e ettt et e a e s eense e s rsansenrens
EleCtronic Mil SYSIEMI ..............cccooeiii ettt e ae e e e e
LAPIOD SECUFILY. ...ttt ettt ettt e n ettt et en e e e e e a et es
MODiIE DEVICES ........oiiiiii et e e enas
Use of Internet, VPN (Virtual Private Network), and Commercial Online SyStems.............cccoveeevvvreereeoreeersnenns
Social Media and NetwWORKING ............ccooooiiiiiiii oo oot
TelEPRONE USQLE ...ttt ettt et
V0ICE MQIL SYSIEI.........oeii it e b et n s by a ettt e rre s
CU PHORES ...ttt e e e e R A R TR

PAY ADMINISTRATION ......iiiiiiiitititteeeteteeeetee e e e eeeeeeaeeeeeseeansastntseessseseestessenessreseesassssasnssnnnssne s snnesssansnnsnnnsantnsees
PAY INCFEASES ... e e e bt a e
PAY PRACTICES . .iieieiiiitee ettt e et e e et et ee e e e e e e et s eeeeaaa s e ens s aass s s e se s s e esabaneaseeenasansse st ss b nn e s ee s s asan b nssesenssnnnn

PAY AGAVANCES ...ttt ettt a et en et et s
DeliVery Of PAYCHECKS ..............cccoiiiiii ittt e e s sent s s st e e e st e e s s e e aneene e s srnens
MEIROA O PAYMENL ...t ettt et st sas e e ae e aa e eae e smsa s aae e e e e e e s
Employee Withholding Allowance Certificates (FOPM W-4)...........ccccvviieeiieisvemieiissrisisessessessssesisssssessessssesisssns
Time Records for Non-EXempt EMPIOYEES ...........c..cccooc.iioeeeeeeeeeeeeeas s iae e st eenssesses s asesesnteesansassssnsaneaesees
Time Records for Exempt EMPLOYEES.............cc.ccoveoiieiiiieeeeeeeee e eeeees s s e eneessan s e bsasannasesennn s amns e nsaneanseesses
Dispute Resolution Process JOr PAYCAECK FFFOFS .............ooeeeereeeeeeeeesreeeseestseeaessssseansassssassserssnssansssesnessnsssennens
FURQEPAYCRHECK ........cveoeeiieieeeee ettt e e e st e bt e s e e s st e s s e e bt s e esas s e ns e e s s s e s ennt e s e et sesares
HOURS OF WORK AND WORK SCHEDULES .....ccutiiitiatirermaeinnesisresssnsessssserassssnssarmessssssssssasesssnesnsaessnssssssssssssesssssase

Inclement Weather and Emergency CLOSUFES ............cccoeoeeevieeseeeeeesseeseesesessesseeasssssessseenneessnssesssseesnesesseessssenns
EMPLOYEE-INCURRED EXPENSES AND REIMBURSEMENT ......c0eioueeraeentieaasasnnseessnssressssmasassessssnessmnsssssassssemssnsrsssssees
Mileage REIMDUFSEIMENL. ...................ccc.ui et st et e s s e e e et e s et s eesmtt s e rss a2 s enbs s et sseanre e e eran b e enn e
PAY EQUITY STATEMENT ....ocviiiioieiessrameassaemessaassesssssseasssssasessssnssesasssssesasssssesansssssssessessassssssesssnnsessessssssssssstessassasss

BENEEITS wa. i cooes s couaivsmssansas soet s e s svs 5a5saa3s03v 404845404580 434 3454044340348 4E 4044005483454 T 4T 4SS P A S S S e SR SRS SR TR S e e a e e

PURPOSE AND POLICY I e OO e e e e SR R B SR A YA TSN T SR TS A SRRy
Benefit Pro-ration and Employee COSt SHAVING......c..ccvuivueiiiiecieeiuicsaeisiessessisssssieessessaessessessesessaasssesssssassaesos
Benefit Design and MOIFICAIION .................c..cociiovureiveiireeiieeseeraessssessessesssesssos s sessasbses e sseees s sasssesrearsserssessans
BENESTl PLAN DOCUMEHLS ........ocooeiiiiiie i sieeisabssssreesse st e sre e s s b emb st e et s ek bbb es s e s s b et s e b e esbaebeen b e ebbsensens

HEALTH INSURANCE BENEFIT .....utiiiiiiiiiiiitii ittt itts s esstssas e s s est s s s st s s s e baa et 4 st se s s bt smna e
ELIGIBILIEY. ...ttt s e etk e ens et et
PLAN ERPOIIMENL. ...ttt s bbb bs e g e s st e b e s kb ms s bbb a e b s s bbb reenreer e rbnens
D T T I 0o Xy SO S
Portability/Conversion of Health PIAN.................ccooocviiiiiieciiee i siiaee e erese e sassanne s i paaeenns s e s e raeesnes

39
39
39
39
40
40
40
40
41

DENTAL INSURANCE BENEFIT ...t eeeeee e ettsbmrssssasaessssssmsnsssasssassssasssnsnsassssssssssssssesessarssssasasesssesesnsensnssssasan 41
L TP 41
OTHER INSURANCE BENEFITS ....0iciiivireassseeesassssnessaesnenssmessssssssssssssesssssnsssesssssssssssssesssnsssssassssssessnssnsasssssssasssrsasessins 4]
GFOUD Life INSUFANCE. .........ooouvieiieiiisieiiiiiieie ittt ee ettt esa ekt ets e et e e s kb e nn e et e e et e e e st e enn et 41
LONG Termt DISABIIIEY .......oouvovevicirecsieinseereeiseeses i ess et bt et et shb etk bbb bbb sk ek s ek e e bb e b e nbeeb 42

VACATION BENEFIT L..ooiiiiniiiiiiisiaesesssessasssraess o sssmsnsasnsssssasssssasssasssssssasasssssnssssssnsssssssssssssesssesiessossesssessensessseeessass

.43

Sheridan, SW Polk and West Valley Fire Districts Revision Date: April 24, 2020



SICK LEAVE ..o o e T N 4 T i B S S 44
PAID HOLIDAY BENEFIT ....uiitiittttieti e e e e eeeeeeeitvesssrnessesssseassesas sebn s iae s e e s ea sa bass s s be b as s ba s bad ba b s m st s s sb e e besaaeasanain 44
EHGIBILIEY. . iiiei vt e e o B T 0 0 S 0 0 S A0 44
OTHER BENEFITS ...ceiiiiiiieiiiiiiiec e eececeeieenereesesan e s e e o e 0 e s O S e e G T S B SR 45
Employee ASSISIANCE PPOQFPAM ...............ccocuoiiii et eis et e s oo e b sb e e ih e eesb e e s e e e e s s e e 45
Employee-Funded 457 Deferred Compensation PION................ccccccocivoviiiiiiiiiciinieiieiivaeiessiiaesiesaiiee s enneen 43
LEAVES OF ABSENCE......cccovvcvmrueeninnaansans w46
LEAVE OF ABSENCE ... e oo o ARSI W N i 47
BEREAVEMENT LEAVE ...ttt eiiiiie s vre e e eseeeseee s s ssnnaeee s e e e s eeeeannnna e e o SUaVRa b s 0o S V0 S i s 3 ey 5 48
CIVIC DUTY LEAVE ...t ee e e e e iV b0 b b S S M w b S 49
Jury or Witness DULY LEAVe................oocviueiiiiviiniiicciiee e eeene e e e S0 e e a5 50 Ea s 0 0 49
L0 AN A (o 1Y S 007 V4 o U 50
DOMESTIC VIOLENCE LEAVE L. ..ottt ettt ettt e e e s e e e s et et s ba s e s e e b4 d b s bbb e e e s e e s e e e e aad b e aen 51
FAMILY AND MEDICAL LEAVE OREGON DISTRICTS WITH 25-49 EMPLOYEES .....ccocicviviiivmnirinssnisssisisissessienssiisiasinannen 2
LEAVE TO DONATE BONE IMARROW ...ttt eeetetae e s et eee e et sts a4 s 5444 os e s dd b s bbb e e et b e eaeaaais 53
PERSONAL LEAVE OF ABSENCE ........ oot i b et st st i s s st s nai i saveveinin D 4
UNIFORMED SERVICES LEAVE AND RE-EMPLOYMENT ...ccooviiiiiiiiiiiiiniiiiisiss i s sin s s sisbssasssnssns s ssbassssbarssssssissnssanisannse 39
OREGON MILITARY FAMILY LEAVE ...ttt eeeiits s ee s b a e e e aaaa s e e e e e b b e s e e e e e nabaaas e e e bbnnasaeean 57
HEALTH AND SAFETY iiiiiiiiicciiiinecnniecsssssmnsessssssnssssssssasssesessesssssssssnersesssssssssssssssssnsasassssssssssssnsrssssssnssssessssen 58
DRUGS AND ALCOHOL ..vvvevinerireneeererieervsienrssssivssertsssessennessoner s ssbisissisioaveasssins isvinsivoasio sisnsbsnseversasissuases sobsvsviarinins 59
WORKPLACE VIOLENCE ....cuieiteeiitaeeeersrecnnnnsnteerneeeneseeeeeee s ssebb Goi b s i s it s s s ssv el s b s vns s s s pamnsssatumaina 62
EMPLOYEE HEALTH AND SAFETY 1nniiieiiiiiittieseeeeeiiissseeeitnrreeesssesesssesssasasasasnsnssss sasnssssassessaesasnsasssesansassassaasasaeasasaeans 63
EQrly Return 10 WOrK PROZFAM ...........c..cocoeeuiaiiiii i e et e e s e e e s e st e e ek en s e e ss e e e smn e et snma e armnns 63
SMOKING i1 the WOFKDIACE............cc..oi itttk s h et e et b sb s e ns 64
Employee Right to Know/Hazard Communication PFOQIamML.................cccccouevcieeiiiiieiiueeiiiseiiesiissoisesiiseeisesssseenes 64
EMPLOYMENT SEPARATION ....iiitiiiiimiiiiniiiiieniieinsiimssssssssssssssssmiomeannmmmmssrasssnnnnmmmessersanssnnsssnsassssansnsssessansassssesses 67
SEPARATION FROM EMPLOYMENT L.eiiiiiiiieiiiiiiseiioisuseeiesesrissessssssasssssseanaesnsssnssnssaesaesssnssessassesssnssnessssesnsnntensessnssnsess 68
RESIGUALION. ...........ooiiiiiiiie ettt e et e e n s st e et e s b e e s e e e e e b e et s e e e e e e nnne e e s 08

JOb ABAndonment .........oi.........coooccciieee s it R TR S AR p s h s e s e S S T s B e oS 68

Job Elimination, Reduction in Work HOUFS..................ocooiviiiieeeeeioe oo v eesennen e O8
DUSCRAGPZE ..ot ettt ettt ettt ettt ettt nne e 69
EXIINIGFVIEW (... et a e e e 69
ReLUFT OF DUSIFICE PFODEFIY.........cvieeieiiiiii ettt ettt ettt ettt eb e et eteeeae b 69
HANDBOOK RECEIPT ACKNOWLEDGMENT FORM ......ccccoimmmmmiiriiiiieeteteirisinnssseessnessessnnssessssssmsssssesanas 71

Sheridan, SW Polk and West Valley Fire Districts Revision Date: April 24, 2020



INTRODUCTION

Sheridan, SW Polk and West Valley Fire Districts | Revision Date: April 24, 2020



WELCOME TO SHERIDAN, SW POLK AND WEST VALLEY FIRE
DISTRICTS!

We’re happy to welcome you to Sheridan, SW Polk and West Valley Fire Districts — we’re glad
you’ve joined us! We take pride in selecting people such as you to join our Districts, and we truly
believe you will be a positive addition to our most important asset — our employees.

We hope you will enjoy a productive and pleasant association with us. We have created a work
environment, compensation and benefits program, and interactive culture that we believe fosters
positive work relationships. We expect that you will enhance the atmosphere by contributing your
best efforts in whatever is asked of you.

We believe that you can contribute significantly to our success and want you to share in the growth
of our future. We also feel that the best way to help you achieve is to help you understand our
Districts and your role in them. This Handbook has been prepared as a guide to give you a better
understanding of the Districts’ policies, procedures, and practices. Please familiarize yourself with
its contents and keep it handy for reference.

Our Districts value two-way communication, and our “open door” policy encourages you to ask
questions if there are policies or procedures you don't understand. We welcome your ideas and
suggestions for ways to improve our operations and services or to save unnecessary costs during
your employment with us.

Again, welcome to our team. We wish you success in your new position and truly value you and

the contribution you make during your employment with us. We sincerely hope you will like it
here.

Fred Hertel

Fire Chief
Sheridan, SW Polk and West Valley Fire Districts

Sheridan, SW Polk and West Valley Fire Districts 2 Revision Date: April 24, 2020



OUR HISTORY

SHERIDAN FIRE DISTRICT

Sheridan Fire Department began in 1886 as part of the city of Sheridan. It served a population of
approximately 200 people and about forty square miles to include the city of Sheridan and the
farming community around it. As the city has grown and the surround area has become more
populated the Fire Department transitioned away from a city department to a special district, not
limited by the city boundaries and becoming a separate entity from the city all together. Sheridan
Fire District now covers 103 square miles made up of forest land, farmland and the communities of
Sheridan, Buell and Ballston. Additionally, Sheridan Fire District’s ambulance service area is
nearly 150 square miles.

SW POLK FIRE DISTRICT

The Southwestern Polk County Rural Fire Protection District provides rescue services to the rural
communities of Polk County, Oregon. The District was formed in 1947 to provide more adequate
protection for rural residents, their homes, and crops. Additionally, the District was formed to have
the immediate effect of reducing insurance premiums on all property within the boundaries of the
District. Currently, SW Polk Fire District covers approximately 123 square miles including
Rickreall and the communities of Bridgeport, Oakgrove, and Salt Creek.

WEST VALLEY FIRE DISTRICT

West Valley Fire District (WVFD) is located in the West Willamette Valley in the foothills of the
Oregon coastal range, spanning two different counties: Polk and Yamhill. Willamina Fire District
was formed from two separate agencies combining Willamina Fire District and Willamina
Ambulance Service. Then, West Valley Fire District was formally organized in 2004. The
emergency service delivery systems date back to 1948. The fire district coverage area spans 62
square miles and the ambulance service area is approximately 264 square miles. Service is provided
to the City of Willamina, unincorporated area of Grand Ronde, and The Confederated Tribes of
Grand Ronde. The resident population is approximately ~5,000 in our service area, and a transient
population of ~9,500 daily at Spirit Mountain Casino.

THREE AGENCIES WORKING TOGETHER

Sheridan, SW Polk and West Valley Fire Districts are working collaboratively. They share a joint
administration as well as share apparatus, equipment, and supplies. The three districts together
cover over 500 square miles of fire district and ambulance service areas.

Sheridan, SW Polk and West Valley Fire Districts 3 Revision Date: April 24, 2020



ABOUT THIS HANDBOOK

This Employee Handbook is a guide to help you understand our employment provisions and
expectations. The Handbook applies to all of our employees. It is intended to be a positive
document that begins to establish the relationship between us.

Please remember that this Handbook contains only general information and guidelines. It is not
intended to address all the possible applications of or exceptions to general policies and procedures.
Our policies are based on the belief that common sense, good judgment, and consideration for the
rights of others are paramount to our ability to serve our customers and ourselves. While we have
tried to anticipate many of your questions, keep in mind that this document won’t provide every
answer. [f you have any questions concerning eligibility for a particular benefit or how a policy or
practice applies to you, please contact you supervising Battalion Chief.

We know that employees have varied skills, goals, perceptions, and values, and that such diversity
may create situations not fully addressed within this Handbook. In that event, we’ll try to make fair
and equitable decisions while making sure that the best interests of the Districts are served.

Neither this Handbook nor any other District document confers any express or implied contractual
right to remain in Sheridan, SW Polk and West Valley Fire Districts’ (District[s]) employ, nor does
it guarantee any fixed terms or conditions of your employment. Your employment is not for any
specific period of time and may be terminated at will, with or without reason, and without prior
notice by Sheridan, SW Polk and West Valley Fire Districts or you for any reason, at any time.

The procedures, practices, policies, and benefits described here may be modified or discontinued
from time-to-time. We recognize our responsibility to keep employees informed of changes that
may affect them and will provide replacement pages so you can keep your Handbook current.

Some subjects described in this Handbook, such as benefit plan information, are covered in detail
in official policy documents. You should refer to these documents for specific information since
this Handbook provides summaries only. Please note that when discrepancies occur between
benefit language in this Handbook and in the official policy documents, the terms of the written
insurance policies are controlling. We encourage you to use caution when making decisions with
long-term impact based on our current benefit offerings, given that we may find it necessary to
make changes to these programs.

You are encouraged to offer suggestions for improvement to these policies, employment practices,
or working conditions. Please read through the Handbook carefully and share it with your family
members so they will also understand your work environment. At any time, if this items in this
Handbook are found to conflict with the Collective Bargaining Agreement (CBA), the CBA will
take precedence. If you have additional questions or need further details, please talk with your
supervisor, who can advise you or refer you to the appropriate resource.

Sheridan, SW Polk and West Valley Fire Districts 4 Revision Date: April 24,2020



EMPLOYMENT POLICIES

Sheridan, SW Polk and West Valley Fire Districts 5 Revision Date: April 24, 2020



EMPLOYMENT RELATIONSHIP

You and Sheridan, SW Polk and West Valley Fire Districts are engaged in an “at-will”
employment relationship. Therefore, employment at Sheridan, SW Polk and West Valley Fire
Districts is for no definite period of time and may, regardless of the time and manner of payment of
wages and salary, be terminated at will. This means that either you or the Districts may terminate
the employment relationship at any time, with or without reason or advance notice.

No one in the Districts has the authority to enter into any agreement contrary to this “at-will”
relationship except the Fire Chief. It cannot be altered, except when in writing and signed by the
Fire Chief and you. Sheridan, SW Polk and West Valley Fire Districts will not make and will not
be bound by any oral promises concerning the length or terms of your employment.

Sheridan, SW Polk and West Valley Fire Districts 6 Revision Date: April 24, 2020



EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY

Sheridan, SW Polk and West Valley Fire Districts are an equal opportunity employer and, as such,
considers individuals for employment according to their abilities and performance. Employment
decisions are made without regard to race, age, religion, color, sex, national origin, physical or
mental disability, marital or veteran status, sexual orientation, gender identity, genetic information,
or any other classification protected by law. All employment requirements mandated by local,
state, and federal regulations will be observed.

Our Districts recognize same-gender domestic partners, consistent with the law. If you have any
questions regarding this matter, please direct them to the Fire Chief.

The Districts employ affirmative personnel measures to ensure the achievement of equal
employment opportunities in all aspects of employment and the work environment. These policies
of nondiscrimination will prevail throughout every aspect of the employment relationship,
including recruitment, selection, compensation, promotion, transfer, layoff and recall, termination,
training, and dispute resolution.

In keeping with our philosophy and applicable laws, our advertising and recruiting materials will
contain the following statement to encourage qualified applicants to apply: “Equal Opportunity
Employer.” Our policy as an equal opportunity employer is to employ those legally entitled to
work in the United States without regard to citizenship status, ethnic background, or national
origin. However, in conformity with the relevant immigration statutes and regulations, our policy
is to hire only those who are eligible to work in the United States. Verification documentation is
required of ail new hires.

All employees in the Districts are responsible for following and carrying out this policy according
to the spirit and intent of our equal employment commitment. Management provides and supports
a dispute resolution procedure for complaints alleging discrimination. Employees are expected to
bring any questions, issues, or complaints to Management’s attention. If you believe you have
been harassed (see page 9), or if you witness or suspect any violation of this policy, you should
report the matter immediately to your supervisor. We will not retaliate against you for filing a
complaint or cooperating in an investigation and we will not tolerate or permit retaliation by
Management or co-workers.

Sheridan, SW Polk and West Valley Fire Districts 7 Revision Date: April 24, 2020



AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT

The Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA), amended by the ADA Amendments Act of 2008, is a
comprehensive federal civil rights law that specifically protects individuals with physical and
mental disabilities from discrimination in the workplace.

Individuals are protected under the ADA if any of the following conditions exist:

e They currently have a physical or mental condition that significantly restricts their ability to
normally conduct a major life function (walking, seeing, hearing, breathing, bodily
functions, etc.);

e They have a history of such impairment; or,
e They are regarded as having such impairment.

The ADA also prohibits discrimination on the basis of an individual's relationship to someone
(parent, sibling, child, spouse, friend, etc.) with a disability.

Sheridan, SW Polk and West Valley Fire Districts offers equal employment opportunities to
qualified individuals who may have a physical or mental disability, but are still able to perform
essential job functions with reasonable accommodations. Essential functions are defined as the
fundamental non-marginal duties of the position being held or sought. A job function is essential if
the position exists for the performance of the function, there are only a limited number of
employees available to perform it, or it is so highly specialized that an expert is required to perform
it.

Reasonable accommodations are available to employees and applicants, as long as the requested
accommodations don't cause an undue hardship on the Districts. Individuals protected by the
ADA/ADAAA should discuss their needs for possible accommodation with the Human Resources
Department.

Sheridan, SW Polk and West Valley Fire Districts 8 Revision Date: April 24,2020



HARASSMENT

Sheridan, SW Polk and West Valley Fire Districts will not tolerate conduct by any employee that
harasses, disrupts, or interferes with another's work performance or which creates an intimidating,
offensive, or hostile work environment. All forms of harassment are prohibited. We want to
maintain a working environment free from all forms of harassment, whether based upon race, age,
religion, color, sex, national origin, physical or mental disability, marital or veteran status, sexual
orientation, gender identity, on-the-job injury, genetic information, or any other legally protected
characteristic or status. Retaliation associated with a complaint of harassment is also prohibited.

Sexual harassment consists of unwelcome sexual advances, requests for sexual favors, and other
verbal or physical conduct of a sexual nature. Conduct such as sexual or sexist language, jokes, or
innuendoes; nude, profane, or obscene cartoons, drawings, or photographs; whistling; staring; and
inappropriate touching are not tolerated at Sheridan, SW Polk and West Valley Fire Districts. Cell
phone use, including text messages and other similar electronic communications, can also be
considered harassing behavior.

Each supervisor has a responsibility to maintain a workplace free of any form of sexual harassment.
No supervisor shall threaten or insinuate, either explicitly or implicitly, that an employee's refusal
to submit to sexual advances will adversely affect the employee's employment, evaluation, wages,
advancement, assigned duties, shifts, or any other condition of employment or career development.
Sexual harassment in the workplace, whether by managers/supervisors, non-managerial employees,
or outside individuals (vendors, customers, etc.) is prohibited.

This policy explicitly applies conduct in the workplace, at social functions sponsored by the
Districts (holiday dinners, picnics, sporting events, etc.), and at business functions (conventions,
trade shows, etc.). This policy applies to any conduct, however, as described above, which impacts
the Districts or work environment, regardless of where it occurs.

Reporting Incidents of Harassment

[f you believe that you have been harassed, have witnessed harassment, or suspect any violation of
our harassment policy, you must immediately report the matter to your supervisor. The Fire Chief
is responsible for ensuring that all complaints are promptly and thoroughly investigated without
prejudice or retaliation. The investigation will be conducted promptly, but no specific timeframe
can be guaranteed because each situation is likely to be different, and individuals may have varying
schedules. Every effort will be made to complete the investigation within two weeks. In all cases,
you will be notified of the outcome of the investigation.

Any employee or manager who is found, after appropriate investigation, to have engaged in
harassment or to have retaliated against an individual for reporting harassment will be subject to
appropriate corrective action, depending on the circumstances, up to and including termination. For
further information on discriminatory harassment see Lexipol policies.

Sheridan, SW Polk and West Valley Fire Districts 9 Revision Date: April 24, 2020



WORKPLACE BULLYING

While harassment due to a person’s protected class is prohibited, so too is inappropriate behavior,
such as incivility, due to personality clashes or issues. We want our focus to be on customer
service, productivity, and the ability for each employee to flourish here. This makes it essential
that our employees treat each other and those with whom they come into contact with courtesy,
respect, and professionalism. Further, we require that employees work cooperatively and
constructively in resolving issues or problems on-the-job to foster satisfactory working
relationships. In that light, bullying or similar disruptive behavior does nothing positive to enhance
our working conditions and will not be tolerated here.

Sheridan, SW Polk and West Valley Fire Districts defines bullying as “repeated or one-time
behavior, which is inappropriate and which may be verbal, non-verbal, or physical; either direct
or indirect; conducted by one or more persons toward a victim(s); and which generally occurs at
work and in the course of employment but may also apply to off-site behavior exhibited by
employees that negatively impacts the working relationship.” Such behavior, whether exhibited
between co-workers, management and staff, vendors/customers, another outside party, or a member
of the public, violates our policy on how others should be treated while at the workplace or
engaged in District operations. This policy also applies to off-site behavior exhibited by employees
that negatively impacts the working relationship.

Bullying may be intentional or unintentional. Where an allegation of bullying is made, the
intention of the alleged bully will be considered. The purpose of this policy is to communicate to
all employees, including supervisors, managers, and executives, that Sheridan, SW Polk and West
Valley Fire Districts will not, in any instance, tolerate bullying behavior. Employees found to be in
violation of this policy will be subject to corrective action, up to and including termination.

When determining whether or not bullying has occurred, we will consider the following examples;
however, this is not considered a comprehensive list. Any actions that create the same or similar
result will also be considered. Verbal bullying can include slandering, ridiculing, or maligning a
person; persistent name calling that is hurtful, insulting, or humiliating; using a person as a butt of
jokes; or abusive and offensive remarks. Physical bullying can include the obvious, such as
pushing or shoving or a threat of physical assault, as well as damage to a person’s work area,
personal possessions, or property. Other examples of emotional bullying include threatening
gestures or glances, which can convey the same message, and excluding someone socially at work.

Additional examples include:

» Making comments on Facebook, texting, misuse of other forms of social media

* Public humiliation in any form

* Constant criticism on matters unrelated or minimally related to the person’s performance or
job description

* Spreading rumors and gossip regarding individuals

« Interfering with the ability of someone to perform job duties or consistently assigning
menial tasks not central to the job.

» Taking credit for another person’s ideas

Any Sheridan, SW Polk and West Valley Fire Districts employee who has experienced bullying
should immediately report the behavior according to the reporting process outlined in our policies.

All reports will be investigated and addressed. Making false/baseless or malicious complaints of

Sheridan, SW Polk and West Valley Fire Districts 10 Revision Date: April 24, 2020



bullying will be regarded as a serious offense, which may also lead to corrective action, up to and
including termination.

Sheridan, SW Polk and West Valley Fire Districts 11 Revision Date: April 24, 2020



DISPUTE RESOLUTION

We believe that undisclosed problems will remain unresolved and will lead to impaired work
relationships, dissatisfaction with working conditions, and a decline in operational efficiency.
Therefore, the Districts have established this dispute resolution procedure to solve problems as
quickly, fairly, and thoroughly as possible. This procedure is a method for impartially hearing the
complaint and is intended to resolve problems and provide a fair and objective review. All issues
will be handled without prejudice or retaliation.

Reporting Issues Other than Harassment/Discrimination

Any other questions or concerns you may have should be discussed with your immediate
manager/supervisor, absent special circumstances, as soon as you are aware there is a problem or
have a question. Your manager will generally follow-up to your concern, in writing, within one
week.

We realize there may be valid reasons to forego this initial step; in those circumstances (i.e., a
concern involves an immediate managet/supervisor), you may go directly to the next level of
management or to the Fire Chief for assistance.

Appeal Process

Honest differences of opinion occur, and some situations will require the review or decision of a
higher management level. A higher-management review, however, is only intended to occur after
you have discussed a situation with your immediate supervisor and a satisfactory solution has not
been reached.

If you feel a policy has been inappropriately applied, or you have been unfairly treated or unjustly
disciplined by your supervisor, you may present the matter to the Deputy Chief. The Deputy Chief
will review the issue and make a decision. If you are not satisfied with this decision you may
present the matter to Fire Chief for review and settlement. The decision of this individual will be
final.

All cases will be reviewed on an individual basis and without regard to precedent.

Sheridan, SW Polk and West Valley Fire Districts 12 Revision Date: April 24, 2020



EMPLOYMENT

It is our goal to fill employment vacancies with the most qualified applicants, whether recruiting
internally, externally, or in utilizing both options. Job applicants will be considered on an equal
basis for all positions without regard to sex, age, race, color, religion, national origin, marital or
veteran status, sexual orientation, gender identity, genetic information, a physical or mental
disability, or any other characteristic protected under applicable law.

We will always try to select the most qualified person for each available job, favoring existing
employees over outside applicants when possible. External recruiting may be initiated
concurrently with the internal posting process, but no hiring commitment or decision will be made
until the position has been posted internally for a minimum of five (5) working days. Sheridan, SW
Polk and West Valley Fire Districts reserves the right to deviate from this policy as it deems
appropriate.

Former employees and relatives of current employees will be considered for employment in the
same manner as other applicants. We may refuse to place a spouse, domestic partner, or immediate
family member under the direct supervision of a spouse, domestic partner, or family member, if
such placement adversely affects supervision, safety, security, or morale.

In order to be eligible to transfer to a different job, the transfer must be complaint with Civil
Service Rules and you must not be under any corrective action.

You may, from time-to-time, be temporarily transferred or assigned to perform work outside of
your regular job classification, schedule, shift, or department. Depending upon the circumstances,
you may be subject to a wage adjustment while performing such work. We may also reassign
employees on a long-term basis whose placements are determined to be unsuited to their individual
skills, and transfer any employee who has an illness or disability that requires modified duty
without posting the position.

Sheridan, SW Polk and West Valley Fire Districts 13 Revision Date: April 24, 2020



NEW EMPLOYEES, PROMOTIONS, AND TRANSFERS

New Employee Orientation

New employees are expected to attend a thorough orientation within the first week of employment.
This helps to ensure positive integration into our operations and helps new employees start a
productive and satisfying employment relationship. At the orientation, you will receive detailed
information about general policies, procedures, benefits, and basic information on pay and leave
policies. Orientation sessions are documented using the New Employee Orientation Checklist,
which is signed and dated by you and the person conducting the session and will be kept in your
employee personnel file.

Introductory Period

As a new employee, you are hired on a 12- month introductory period. The introductory period is
an extension of the employee selection process. During this period, you are considered to be in
training and under observation and evaluation by supervisors. Evaluation of your adjustment to
work tasks, conduct and other work rules, attendance, and job responsibilities will be conducted
during the introductory period. This period gives you an opportunity to demonstrate satisfactory
performance for the position and provides an opportunity for us to see if your abilities and the
requirements of the position match. It is also a chance to see if we meet your expectations as an
employer.

Your performance will be evaluated at the end of the introductory period, and a decision about your
employment status will be made. If you have successfully completed the introductory period, you
will be moved to regular status. If your skills border on satisfactory, but fall a little short, the
introductory period may be extended if there is reason to believe that your skills will improve
within 60 days. This period may be extended only by approval of the Fire Chief. The request for
an extension won’t be approved if it is submitted after the normal conclusion of your introductory
period. If expectations are not met or if your skills are not satisfactory, it is unlikely that your
employment will continue.

Completion of the introductory period does not alter the at-will employment relationship.
Employment may be terminated at our will or discretion or by you at any time during or after the
introductory period, with or without reason or notice, if either party regards it as necessary or
appropriate.

Promotions and Transfer Training Period

If you are promoted or transferred to a new position, you must also complete an introductory period
of 12-months to determine the suitability of the placement and your ability to satisfactorily perform
the required work. If it is determined that the job change is not working during this period, you
will be returned to your original job if a vacancy exists. Otherwise, you will be assigned to any
other vacant job we deem suitable. If no such job is vacant, your employment may be terminated.
If you are placed in a job other than your original job, the pay and benefits may be adjusted.

Re-employment

Employees who resign from the Districts in good standing may be eligible for re-employment
consideration. Applications received from former employees will be considered and processed
using the same procedures and standards that govern all other applicants. Previous performance
with the Districts will be evaluated if the reference check phase is reached. We are not obligated to
rehire former employees.

Sheridan, SW Polk and West Valley Fire Districts 14 Revision Date: April 24, 2020



Credit for Prior Seniority

Rehires shall be considered new employees, except where federal or state law requires otherwise
(e.g., the Employee Retirement Income Security Act rules which apply to pensions, where state law
applies to health insurance benefit reinstatement).

Employment Classifications

Employee status is categorized to make distinctions in employment-related conditions and to aid in
a better understanding of employment relationships within the Districts. Employees may be
constdered introductory, full-time or part-time, temporary, or on-call as described below:

Introductory*: Newly hired or promoted employees within the introductory period. New
hires normally earn, but cannot use, benefits.

Regular Full-time:  An employee who is regularly scheduled to work 30 hours or more per week.
Classification normally is eligible for benefits. (For health insurance
coverage, 30 hours per week is considered full-time.)

Regular Part-time: ~ An employee who is regularly scheduled to work at least 15 but less than 30
hours per week. This classification is normally eligible for benefits, but on a
pro-rata basis.

[emporary*: An employee who is hired for a specified period of time, usually no more
than six (6) months. This classification is not eligible for benefits, except for
those mandated by law.

On-Call*: An employee who does not have a set schedule and works only when called
upon. This classification is not eligible for benefits, except for those
mandated by law.

*NOTE: This category may be eligible for benefits under the Affordable Care Act
depending on hours worked.

Employees are further classified according to federal and state wage and hour laws as exempt or
non-exempt, as defined below. Management will make the appropriate designation regarding the
status for each new position or when a position changes substantially. If you are uncertain as to
your status, ask your supervisor.

Exempt: An employee who is exempt from the overtime pay and minimum wage
requirements under federal and state laws. Exempt employees include managers,
executives, supervisors, professional staff, outside sales representatives, owners, and
others who are generally paid a salary and whose duties and responsibilities allow
them to be exempt under federal and state law.

Non-exempt: An employee who is paid an hourly wage and whose job generally calls for the

payment of minimum wage and overtime as specified under state or federal
regulations.

Sheridan, SW Polk and West Valley Fire Districts 15 Revision Date: April 24, 2020



EMPLOYMENT RECORD KEEPING

Access to Personnel Files

The Districts maintain a personnel record for each employee, and access to those records is
restricted to authorized persons only. The records contain applications, written evaluations,
performance counseling notices, correspondence, and other information pertinent to employment.
Authorized persons are individuals in a direct line of supervision over the employee to whom the
file applies or any management representative involved in a pending personnel action.

Your personnel file is available for review (except for any references and other material exempt
from disclosure under state law) by making advance arrangements with the Fire Chief. We will
provide copies of personnel records or files as required by law, but you may be asked to reimburse
us for the reasonable cost of providing copies.

Change in Personal Data

Keeping your personnel records current can be important to you with regard to pay, payroll
deductions, benefits, and other matters. If you have changes in any of the following items of
information, please notify the Finance Officer and Administrative Assistant:

Name

Marital status

Address

Telephone number

Dependents

Beneficiary(ies)

Person to be notified in case of emergency

Job-related physical or other limitations that impact employment
Other information having a bearing on your employment

A Change in Personal Data form is available for your use in reporting any changes in your personal
information.

Sheridan, SW Polk and West Valley Fire Districts 16 Revision Date: April 24, 2020



EMPLOYMENT RELATIONS
AND CONDUCT

Sheridan, SW Polk and West Valley Fire Districts 17 Revision Date: April 24, 2020



ETHICS

We believe in treating people with respect and adhering to ethical and fair practices in business.
We expect employees to avoid situations that might cause their personal interests to conflict with
the interests of our Districts or to compromise our reputation or our integrity. Employees who
violate the Ethics Policy or who create an equally detrimental impact on the Districts will be
subject to corrective action, depending upon the circumstance, up to and including termination.

Conflict of Interest

Employees may not solicit, obtain, accept, or retain any personal benefit from any supplier, vendor,
customer/client, or any individual or Districts doing or seeking business with Sheridan, SW Polk
and West Valley Fire Districts. This means you may not maintain an outside business or financial
interest or engage in any outside business or financial activity that conflicts with the interests of the
Districts or interferes with your ability to fully perform job responsibilities. For example, if job
responsibilities include purchasing, or being in a position to influence purchasing, the individual
responsible must have no proprietary or financial interest in any business that furnishes products,
materials, or services to the District or in any related transaction. An employee may not benefit
directly or indirectly from a third party who furnishes products, materials, or services to the
Districts either.

Misrepresentation

As an employee, you should consider how you represent Sheridan, SW Polk and West Valley Fire
Districts in your transactions and interactions. You should be careful not to misrepresent the
District’s policies, practices, procedures, or prices, or misrepresent your status and authority to
enter into agreements. You should also avoid using the District’s name, likeness, facilities, assets,
resources, or the authority of your position with the Districts for personal gain or private interests.

Gratuities/Gifts

No employee may receive, give, pay, promise, or offer to our customers anything of value, whether
cash or any other property, to secure or appear to secure preferential treatment. This includes any
form of gratuity to or from employees of our customers or members of their families.

The following exceptions to this policy may be permitted, but you must have supervisor approval
in advance:

e Purchase of business meeting meals

o Gifts of food or other consumable products offered to the entire work group during the holiday
season when rejection of the gift would damage business relationships

Sheridan, SW Polk and West Valley Fire Districts 18 Revision Date: April 24, 2020



Outside Employment

While employed at Sheridan, SW Polk and West Valley Fire Districts, you may not engage in
outside employment that conflicts with the nature of the District’s business, competes with the
Districts, or that otherwise interferes with your ability to perform according to established
standards of performance and work rules. Additionally, you may not work at an organization that
conducts business with Sheridan, SW Polk and West Valley Fire Districts. During hours you are
scheduled to work for Sheridan, SW Polk and West Valley Fire Districts or use District equipment
for such purposes, you may not conduct any business connected with outside employment.

Off-Duty Conduct

Generally, we regard off-duty activities of employees to be their own personal matters. However,
certain types of off-duty activities concern us because of the potentially negative impact on the
District’s reputation within the communities we serve. Therefore, employees who engage in or are
associated with illegal or otherwise harmful conduct (i.e., that which adversely affects the Districts,
its public image, or their own ability or credibility to carry out employment responsibilities) may be
subject to corrective action, up to and including termination.

Solicitation and Bulletin Boards
To make sure employees aren’t disturbed or interrupted while on work duty, we have established
the following non-solicitation policy:

Individuals who are not employed at the Districts may not solicit our employees or distribute
literature on Districts property at any time.

If you wish to solicit or distribute literature to other employees by or on behalf of any individual,
organization, club, or society, you may do so only during times when you are on a rest or lunch
break. You may solicit or distribute literature only to those employees who are also on a rest or
lunch break. The distribution of literature in work areas is prohibited at all times, but you may
place it in established break areas or lunchrooms.

Obscene, profane, or inflammatory items and political advertisements or solicitations are strictly
prohibited.

You may not solicit, expect, or accept contributions from vendors, clients, or anyone doing
business with the Districts.

You may not sell merchandise or collect funds of any kind without prior approval from the Fire
Chief.

We use our Districts’ bulletin boards to keep you up-to-date and to post notices and information
required by law. We also use them to announce activities and other items of interest to employees.
We ask that you check the bulletin board regularly to obtain information that may be important to
you. Bulletin boards are to be used only for posting or distributing notices or announcements of a
business nature that apply equally and are of interest to all employees or are directly concerned
with District business.

Sheridan, SW Polk and West Valley Fire Districts 19 Revision Date: April 24, 2020



CONFIDENTIALITY

District and Customers

At Sheridan, SW Polk and West Valley Fire Districts, employees have access to highly confidential
and proprietary information, including information about our business plans and customers. Our
customers trust us with confidential information and disclosing this information without
authorization would have a materially adverse impact on our integrity and on our relationships with
our customers. Employees must not disclose any of the above information pertaining to the
Districts or their customers without prior explicit approval of their supervisors and must sign a
form stating such.

No District records or information, including documents, files, records, computer files, and similar
materials may be removed from our premises without permission from the Fire Chief, except in the
ordinary course of performing duties on behalf of Sheridan, SW Polk and West Valley Fire
Districts. Additionally, the contents of District records or information otherwise obtained in regard
to business may not be disclosed to anyone except where required for a business purpose. This
prohibition also applies to items posted in a blog or website. Employees are subject to appropriate
corrective action, up to and including termination, for revealing confidential information.

Employee Records

Sheridan, SW Polk and West Valley Fire Districts’ philosophy is to safeguard personal employee
information in its possession to ensure the confidentiality of this information. Additionally, the
Districts will only collect personal information that is required to pursue its business operations and
to comply with government reporting and disclosure requirements. Personal information collected
by the Districts includes employee names, addresses, telephone numbers, e-mail addresses,
emergency contact information, EEO data, social security numbers, date of birth, employment
eligibility data, benefit plan enrollment information, which may include dependents’ personal
information, and school/college or certification credentials. All pre-employment inquiries,
including reference check records, as well as former employee files are maintained securely in
electronic form, and are not used by the Districts in the course of business operations.

Personal employee information will be considered confidential and, as such, will be shared only as
required and with those who have a need for access to such information. All hard copy records will
be maintained in locked, secured areas with access limited to those who have a need for such
access. Personal employee information used in business system applications will be protected
under District proprietary electronic transmission/Virtual Private Network use and security
systems. Participants in Districts’ benefit plans should be aware that personal information will be
shared with plan providers as required for claim handling or record keeping needs.

District-assigned information, which may include organizational charts, department titles and staff
charts, department budgets, District coding and recording systems, telephone directories, and e-
mail lists is considered by the Districts to be proprietary District information to be used for internal
purposes only. The Districts retain the right to communicate and distribute such information as it
feels necessary to conduct business operations.

[f an employee becomes aware of a breach in maintaining the confidentiality of any personal
information, the employee should report the incident to the Deputy Chief. The Deputy Chief has
the responsibility to investigate the incident and take corrective action. Please understand that the
reasonableness of actions taken in these circumstances will be taken into consideration. Examples
Sheridan, SW Polk and West Valley Fire Districts 20 Revision Date: April 24, 2020



of the release of personal employee information that will not be considered a breach include the
following:

Release of partial employee birth dates (i.e., day and month, which is not considered
confidential and will be shared with supervisors/managers who elect to recognize
employees on such dates).

Personal telephone numbers or e-mail addresses may be distributed to supervisors/managers
in order to facilitate District work schedules or business operations.

Employee identifier information used in salary or budget planning, review processes, and
for timekeeping purposes will be shared with supervisors/managers.

Employees’ District anniversary dates will be distributed to appropriate
supervisors/managers periodically.

Employee and dependent information may be distributed in accordance with open
enrollment processes, for periodic benefit plan changes, or for benefit statement updates.

Should a security breach occur, you will be notified in writing as soon as possible.

Sheridan, SW Polk and West Valley Fire Districts 21 Revision Date: April 24, 2020



WORKPLACE RULES

Sheridan, SW Polk and West Valley Fire Districts believes policies and procedures are essential for
the orderly operation of our business and for the protection and fair treatment of all employees. As
a result, we have clearly identified performance expectations so that each employee behaves
according to our workplace standards. Courtesy and common sense should always prevail. The
following work rules are not all-inclusive, but serve as guidelines to demonstrate the work
behaviors considered important to Sheridan, SW Polk and West Valley Fire Districts.

1. You are expected to be at work on time, to stay until your workday ends, and to do the
work assigned or requested of you. If you are unable to be at work on time, you are
expected to contact your immediate supervisor promptly.

2. You are expected to regard your workplace with respect and attention. Sheridan, SW Polk
and West Valley Fire Districts records, equipment, and property are to be treated carefully
and appropriately. You are responsible for those items in your custody and will be held
accountable for their maintenance, appropriate use, and accuracy.

3. You are expected to act in accordance with all appropriate codes, laws, regulations, and
policies, regardless of whether they are set by Sheridan, SW Polk and West Valley Fire
Districts or by outside regulatory bodies.

4. You are expected to conduct yourself in a professional manner, exhibiting a high regard
for our customers, vendors, business associates, and for co-workers. No breach of
professional behavior (abusive language, harassment, personal business during work time,
etc.) will be condoned.

5. You are expected to maintain the confidentiality of District information or customer
information in your possession (i.e., personnel information, trade secrets, etc.).

6. You are expected to wear clothing that is neat in appearance and consistent with a
professional atmosphere, keeping in mind the impression it has on customers, visitors, and
other employees as well as the need to promote District and employee safety. Good
individual judgment is the best guideline, but management retains the right to decide what
dress is appropriate.

This information regarding our behavioral expectations should help guide employee actions. You
are urged to use reasonable judgment and to seek advice in doubtful or unclear situations. If all
employees do their best to meet both the spirit and intent of these guidelines, disciplinary issues
will be minimal. It is our policy to resolve conduct and performance problems in the most informal
and positive manner possible; however, conduct which falls outside of the above guidelines will
result in corrective action, up to and including termination.

We also believe that all of our employees should have an opportunity to be heard in matters

involving discipline; therefore, we have adopted a formal Grievance Procedure, which can be found
in Lexipol.

Sheridan, SW Polk and West Valley Fire Districts 22 Revision Date: April 24,2020



WHISTLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS

Sheridan, SW Polk and West Valley Fire Districts encourages any employee with knowledge of an
illegal or dishonest District activity to report it to their supervisor. All such issues will be promptly
investigated with the intent to determine fault and institute any appropriate corrective measures.
Examples of illegal or dishonest activities are violations of federal, state, or local laws; billing for
services not performed or for goods not delivered; and other fraudulent financial reporting. Any
employee wishing for more information can obtain further details from the Fire Chief.

If an employee has knowledge of or a concern of illegal or dishonest fraudulent activity, the
employee should immediately contact a direct supervisor or the Fire Chief. The employee must
exercise sound judgment to avoid baseless allegations. An employee who intentionally files a false
report of wrongdoing will be subject to corrective action, up to and including termination.

Whistleblower protections are provided to maintain confidentiality and to prevent retaliation.
Although someone’s identity may have to be disclosed to conduct a thorough investigation, to
comply with the law, and to provide accused individuals their due course, the privacy of the
individual making the report will be protected to the extent possible. Sheridan, SW Polk and West
Valley Fire Districts will not retaliate against a whistleblower. This includes, but is not limited to,
protection from retaliation in the form of an adverse employment action such as termination,
compensation decreases, or poor work assignments as well as threats of physical harm. Any
whistleblower who believes retaliation has occurred must contact the Fire Chief immediately. The
right of a whistleblower to protection against retaliation does not include immunity for any
personal wrongdoing that is alleged and investigated.

All reports of illegal and dishonest activities will be promptly submitted to their supervisor who is
responsible for investigating and coordinating corrective action.

Sheridan, SW Polk and West Valley Fire Districts 23 Revision Date: April 24, 2020



DRESS CODE

Employees contribute to the atmosphere and reputation of Sheridan, SW Polk and West Valley Fire
Districts in the way they present themselves. A professional appearance is essential to a favorable
impression with consumers. Good grooming and appropriate dress reflect employee pride and
inspire consumer confidence.

Managers have the discretion to determine appropriateness in appearance. Employees who do not
meet a professional standard may be sent home to change and may not be paid for that time off. A
basic essential of appropriate dress includes the need for clothing to be neat and clean. A
reasonable standard of dress rules out overly-revealing clothing, tank tops, halter-tops, or any
extreme in dress, accessory, fragrance, or hairstyle.

Additionally, clothing, jewelry, and hair should not be loose or dangle in such a way that creates
any kind of safety hazard.

Body piercing jewelry and body art that does not convey a professional image should not be
visible.

Management may make exceptions to the Dress Code for special occasions. An employee unsure
of what is appropriate should check with the designated manager or supervisor.

Sheridan, SW Polk and West Valley Fire Districts 24 Revision Date: April 24, 2020



COMMUNICATION AND SOFTWARE SYSTEMS

Electronic Communications Systems

Sheridan, SW Polk and West Valley Fire Districts provides electronic communication systems to
maintain superior communications both within the Districts and with outside clients and vendors.
You are encouraged to learn about these tools and how to use them. This policy provides
directions for you regarding access and disclosure of information when using these communication
systems. All employees and others outside the Districts who may use the systems are expected to
be aware of and support this policy.

Our electronic communication systems include computers, software, electronic mail (e-mail),
copiers, fax machines, telephones, cell phones, voice mail, messengers, and various online services.
All of these systems are operated and managed based upon this policy.

These systems and any other informational, storage, or retrieval services that the Districts provide
are District tools and are to be used for business purposes only during business hours. Use of
District systems during business hours for other than work-related purposes should be minimal and
must not impact business operations.

The use of these systems is not private or confidential. Within the bounds of current and future
laws, the Districts reserve and intends to exercise the right to review, audit, intercept, access, and
search these business systems at will, monitor data and messages within them at any time and for
any reason, and disclose selected contents without notice or other restrictions. Messages sent
through these systems remain the property of the Districts.

Any messages or communications used through this system are subject to our anti-harassment, anti-
discrimination, and non-solicitation policies. You are expected to carefully compose and review
the wording, tone, and content of your communications before transmission.

You should check with your supervisor if you have any questions about the proper use of
communication or software systems. All system users who discover violations of this policy are
expected to notify their supervisors or managers immediately. Improper use or violation of this
policy can result in corrective action, up to and including termination.

Electronic Mail System

You are reminded to be courteous to other users of the e-mail system and to always conduct
yourself in a professional manner. E-mail messages are sometimes misdirected or forwarded and
may be viewed by persons other than the intended recipient. You should write e-mail
communications with no less care, judgment, and responsibility than you would use for letters or
internal memoranda written on District letterhead.

You should know that even when a message is erased through e-mail, it is still possible to retrieve
and read that message. Even though the Districts reserve the right to retrieve and read any e-mail
messages, those messages are to be treated as confidential by other employees and accessed only
by the intended recipient. We expect employees to respect others’ privacy and not retrieve or read
electronic messages for which they are not the intended recipient unless authorized. The use of
passwords for security does not guarantee confidentiality; all passwords to District systems must be
disclosed to the District's Administrative Assistant.

Sheridan, SW Polk and West Valley Fire Districts 25 Revision Date: April 24, 2020



Laptop Security

All staff that are issued laptops and other computer-related equipment shall review the Lexipol
computer-related equipment guidelines. These guidelines include security precautions and
procedures as recommended by Sheridan, SW Polk and West Valley Fire Districts.

Mobile Devices

Allowing Remote Wipe Provisions/Data Liability

If you are connected to the Districts’ server, understand that making this connection via a mobile
device may compromise the privacy of certain sensitive information. Confidential electronic
information, including personally identifiable information, must be protected to prevent it from
being exposed if the device on which the information was accessed is lost or stolen. In order to
protect this information, the Districts retain the right to delete data and applications from any
device that contains the District’s information. This right to delete such information may be
exercised remotely or on-site if the Districts determine such action is necessary to protect
confidential, sensitive, or proprietary information. Please understand that in downloading any
such information to a personal mobile device, you are consenting to the Districts’ ability to delete
this information at any time. This policy covers mobile devices such as smart phones, tablets,
laptops, and any similar devices. Please ensure that you regularly sync any personal data (e.g.,
applications, information, photos) to another device/computer for safekeeping, as the wipe
command does not differentiate between business and personal information.

Obviously, it is critical that any loss or theft of a mobile device, including laptops, be immediately
reported to Administrative Assistant. Security of these devices should consider including two (2)
levels (i.e., locked in a trunk if kept in a car; locked in a hotel safe, not left out in a hotel room; etc.)
of safeguarding. Failure to ensure this minimum level of protection may leave an employee
responsible for the cost of the device or loss of District-related information addressed in this policy,
and further corrective action, up to and including termination.

Use of Internet, VPN (Virtual Private Network), and Commercial Online Systems
See Lexipol policies.

Social Media and Networking

Social networking websites and online communities, such as Twitter, LinkedIn, Facebook, and
Instagram are increasingly used and can be accessed by individuals not only from computer
systems, but also from smart phones. These tools have value because they can be used to market
Sheridan, SW Polk and West Valley Fire Districts’ services and share information; employees may
also use these systems as a quick communications and networking tool to complete projects. It is
not the intent of this policy to unduly limit employees’ access to these conduits, however,
guidelines and expectations surrounding their use are necessary as there are liabilities inherent in
such use. When any employee is using District-provided computers or cell phones or is
representing the Districts via social networking activity, that individual is expected to represent the
Districts in a professional and positive light. Sheridan, SW Polk and West Valley Fire Districts
wish to use social networking exclusively to its advantage, preventing and minimizing any negative
outcomes. This includes ensuring that all employees will be free from harassment and
unprofessional behavior when utilizing or consuming social media; therefore, employees
authorized for its use must abide by all applicable laws (including copyright) and ethical
considerations.

Posting

Business Use
Sheridan, SW Polk and West Valley Fire Districts 26 Revision Date: April 24, 2020



Employees may use social networking websites to conduct District business, as long as such use is
authorized and complies with the Districts’ policies. Districts’ logos or other District information
must conform to pre-approved marketing concepts and standards. We do not endorse making
business references on behalf of others on sites such as LinkedIn.

Ownership of Social Media Accounts

In the case that a social media account is set up for business purposes, the Districts have the right to
review, edit, and delete content associated with the account. The Districts will have access to
information associated with the account such as the username and password, and any content
associated with the account will be considered the property of the District. If an employee
separates from Sheridan, SW Polk and West Valley Fire Districts, the Districts have the right to
assume control of this account.

Monitoring

While the Districts do not routinely monitor social networking sites, other employers, agencies, and
individuals do monitor and share information found on social networking websites. Again, posted
information is public information.

Protection

Social networking sites collect profile information for advertising opportunities and criminal
reasons. Phishing (e-mail messages asking for username and passwords, etc.) and spamming are
two downsides. Never click on links asking for personal or confidential information. Heed
security warnings and pop-ups. Use of these sites may mean more SPAM sent to your e-mail
account. If possible, disable the ability of others to post HTML comments to your home page.
When accessing these sites, use caution when you see a posting or link that looks suspicious; when
in doubt, delete it. Viruses and spyware may damage the Districts’ operating system, compromise
data, or expose your privacy and that of others you communicate with via e-mail and social media
sites.

Be aware that others may piece together personal information for identity theft purposes. Be
prudent in making comments or posts which reveal your or others’ travel plans or divulge other
safety-sensitive and private information.

Prohibited Conduct

Behavior and judgment in an electronic environment should mimic behavior in a physical setting.
Employees are expressly prohibited from posting content that is malicious, abusive, threatening,
intimidating, coercing, profane, disruptive, discriminatory, or harassing. Defamatory statements
are prohibited and employees should be aware they are personally responsible for the legal
consequences of such statements.

Nothing in this policy should be interpreted as limiting an employee’s right to engage in legally
protected speech or other activity. Failure to adhere to these standards and to use appropriate
protocols will lead to further corrective action, up to and including termination.

Telephone Usage

Sheridan, SW Polk and West Valley Fire Districts realizes that employees must occasionally make
and receive personal telephone calls at work. Such calls must be kept to a minimum and should

Sheridan, SW Polk and West Valley Fire Districts 27 Revision Date: April 24, 2020



impact your work as little as possible. Unauthorized use of the telephone, including charging long
distance calls to the Districts, will result in corrective action, up to and including termination.

Voice Mail System

The voice mail system at Sheridan, SW Polk and West Valley Fire Districts is the property of the
Districts and is provided for use in conducting District business. All communications and
information transmitted by, received from, or stored in this system are District records and property
of Sheridan, SW Polk and West Valley Fire Districts. The voice mail system is to be used for
business only; use of the system for personal purposes is prohibited. You have no right to personal
privacy in any matter stored in, created, received, or sent over the voice mail system. Sheridan,
SW Polk and West Valley Fire Districts, in its discretion as owner of the voice mail system,
reserves the right to monitor, access, retrieve, and delete any messages stored in, created with,
received by, or sent over the system for any reason and without employee permission. You are not
authorized to retrieve or listen to any voice mail messages that are not sent to you. Any exception
to this policy must receive prior approval from the Fire Chief.

Cell Phones

Where job or business needs necessitate immediate access to an employee, the Districts may
provide/require a business cell phone for work-related communications. This phone is provided for
business use only. Business cell phones are not to be used for purposes not related to work. Keep
in mind that cell phone internet usage, phone records, voice mail, and text messages are not private
and may be accessed. If an District-provided phone is used for personal business, any phone
charges incurred by an employee related to the personal usage will be the sole responsibility of the
employee.

Personal calls during the workday using personal cell phones can be distracting to others and can
interfere with employee productivity. Use of a personal phone for any reason should therefore be
limited to breaks and lunches.

Any use of a cell phone while driving may present an unsafe condition for the driver, other
employees, and the general public. The Districts prohibit the use of cell phones while driving,
except when hands-free accessories are used. In cases where a cell phone call is necessary,
employees must adhere to all federal, state, and local rules and regulations regarding such to help
ensure the safe operation of both District-owned and private vehicles. If an employee is using a
cell phone while driving and has an accident, any costs, fees, and fines shall be solely the
responsibility of the employee.

Sheridan, SW Polk and West Valley Fire Districts 28 Revision Date: April 24, 2020



PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT AND REVIEW

To establish a meaningful performance evaluation system upon which Sheridan, SW Polk and West
Valley Fire Districts can continuously monitor the effectiveness of Districts operations and
employee performance, all employees will receive regularly scheduled formal performance review
annually.

The objectives of our performance management and formal review process are to:

e Ensure that employees know their individual performance against established performance
standards;

e Determine how well the Districts are doing in assisting employees with work performance
and meeting goals;

e Ensure communication and two-way feedback;

e Provide a consistent, objective, and fair method of making compensation decisions;

e Provide a tool for career planning; and,

e Provide a permanent record of employee performance and Districts’ contributions.
Managers and supervisory personnel are accountable for providing employee development actions
designed to improve and enhance employee performance such as:

e Reasonable employee training;

e Assigning, directing, controlling, and reviewing employee work;

e Assisting employees in correcting deficiencies; and,

e Objectively evaluating employee performance during the evaluation period.

The performance review is intended to be participatory and equally involves both your input and

your supervisor’s. This allows you to contribute to the growth and improvement of the District.
You are encouraged to:

e Inquire about your performance periodically;
e Accept additional responsibilities and show initiative;
e Review opportunities for advancement within the Districts;

e Ask for assistance in developing a goal-oriented path for advancement within the
department or Districts; and,

e Learn about training available to assist you in improving your skills or qualify you for a
promotion or lateral transfer.

Performance reviews serve as one factor in decisions related to employment such as training, merit
pay increases, job assignments, employee development, promotions, and retention. Reviews
identify specific performance levels as compared to established standards, acknowledge the merit
of outstanding performance, and prescribe the means and methods of improving performance
deficiencies.

Sheridan, SW Polk and West Valley Fire Districts 29 Revision Date: April 24,2020



CORRECTIVE ACTION

Everyone benefits when we work together and conduct ourselves in a manner that reflects the best
interests of both the Districts and its employees. It is the philosophy of Sheridan, SW Polk and
West Valley Fire Districts to correct performance deficiencies and address violations of policies
and work rules in order to correct situations and avoid repetition.

You will be informed if corrective action is necessary as soon as possible after any performance
problem has been identified. Your supervisor will discuss the situation with you, explaining this
policy and the necessity of corrective action to avoid other disciplinary actions.

Although one or more corrective action measures may be taken in connection with a particular
performance problem, no formal order will be followed. Corrective action may include any of a
variety of actions depending on the circumstances and severity of the particular situation.

Corrective actions taken at the discretion of management may include any of the following:

e Verbal counseling with you, which may be confirmed in writing by your supervisor and
placed in your personnel file.

e Written warning, which will be placed in your personnel file.

e Suspension, which will be confirmed in writing for your personnel file. Suspension is
normally used to remove an employee from the Districts’ premises during an investigation
or as a disciplinary action. A suspension may be paid or unpaid. If you are suspended, it
will be documented in your personnel file.

e Termination, which will be documented in your personnel file.

The corrective action process will not always commence with verbal counseling or include every
step. The above options are not to be seen as a process in which one step always follows another.
Some acts, particularly those that are intentional or serious, warrant more severe action on the first
or a subsequent offense. Consideration will be given to the seriousness of the offense, any change
in behavior, and the circumstances surrounding the offense.

Sheridan, SW Polk and West Valley Fire Districts 30 Revision Date: April 24, 2020



COMPENSATION

Sheridan, SW Polk and West Valley Fire Districts 31 Revision Date: April 24, 2020



PAY ADMINISTRATION

Sheridan, SW Polk and West Valley Fire Districts value high quality work from its employees and
is committed to compensating employees for their efforts and results. It is our intent to provide a
competitive compensation package that will attract, retain, and motivate employees. It is also our
intent that policies and pay practices be administered consistently throughout the Districts to ensure
internal equity is achieved.

Your pay as a new employee is established based on the pay level of current employees performing
work of comparable character and based upon factors such as your previous knowledge, skill,
responsibility and effort. This policy will be administered and interpreted in accordance with
applicable federal and state laws and regulations.

Pay Increases

It is Sheridan, SW Polk and West Valley Fire Districts’ intent to reward you with increases in pay
for dedication in your work, extra effort, and contributory performance. Management does not
award increases on an automatic basis or at preset intervals. Your supervisor will determine if an
increase is warranted at the time of your performance review; factors considered will include
knowledge, skill, responsibility and effort. Recommended increases are not effective until approved
by both the next level of management and the Fire Chief.

Because information about your rate of pay and any increases is sensitive and personal, we ask that
you exercise discretion and care regarding the discussion of these matters.

Sheridan, SW Polk and West Valley Fire Districts 32 Revision Date: April 24, 2020



PAY PRACTICES

Paydays

You will be paid monthly. Paydays are the last business day of the month. If a payday fallson a
Saturday, Sunday, or banking holiday, paychecks will be distributed on the Friday prior to the
established payday. If a payday falls on a District holiday, you will receive your check on the last
workday prior to the holiday.

Payroll Deductions

Certain mandatory and elective deductions which are made from employee pay are noted on the
paycheck stub. The only deductions made are those mandated by law or authorized by you in
writing.

Pay Advances

Pay advances are not provided by the Districts. Employees are encouraged to find other
appropriate resources for any financial difficulties. An Employee Assistance Program offers some
form of financial counseling, please see in-station postings

Delivery of Paychecks
Your paycheck will be direct deposited into an account provided by you. Final paychecks may be
provided in paper form.

Method of Payment
A statement showing gross earnings, deductions, and net salary will accompany ecach paycheck or
notice of direct deposit. Employees are paid by direct deposit.

Employee Withholding Allowance Certificates (Form W-4)

You are required to furnish the Districts with an Employee Withholding Exemption Certificate (W-
4) at the time of hire. You may file a new W-4 form any time. When you submit an updated Form
W-4, the Districts will implement the desired changes by the start of the first payroll period ending
on or after the 30" day from the submission date. We encourage employees to seek tax advice if
they have questions about withholding amounts.

Time Records for Non-Exempt Employees

The time card/time sheet is a record of time worked and must be filled out in CrewSense. It
provides a permanent record of time spent on the job, indicating the exact time you worked. Each
non-exempt employee will be granted access to CrewSense upon start of employment.

Time cards should be reviewed carefully for completeness and accuracy at the end of each week, as
they will be used to calculate pay. Supervisors will review time cards each pay period. Time cards
must be completed via computer. If an error needs to be corrected, the time card should be taken to
the supervisor for appropriate action. All manual entries or corrections must be made, reviewed,
and initialed by the supervisor or other appropriate management member. Time cards should be
reviewed, signed, and turned in at the end of the pay period. Your signature on the time sheet each
pay period verifies that the times and dates are true and accurate to the best of your knowledge.
You should never allow someone else to make entries on your time card. Willfully falsifying a
time card will be grounds for corrective action, up to and including termination.

Time Records for Exempt Employees

Employees classified as exempt do not fill out time cards and no deduction of pay will be made for
hours worked fewer than eight (8) hours per day, unless authorized by law. However, because
Sheridan, SW Polk and West Valley Fire Districts 33 Revision Date: April 24, 2020



Sheridan, SW Polk and West Valley Fire Districts does have vacation and sick pay benefits
programs, if you have earned time in these bank(s), you must use this time first vacation to cover
any time off that is less than your normal work day.

Dispute Resolution Process for Paycheck Errors
If you have any questions regarding your pay or feel a manager or supervisor has made a change to
your pay that you do not believe is accurate, please contact the Fire Chief.

Final Paycheck

While we request that you give us at least 10 working days’ advance notice prior to departure when
resigning or retiring from the Districts, if you provide us with at least 48 hours’ notice (excluding
holidays and weekends) you will receive your final paycheck on the last day worked. If less notice
is given, the final paycheck will be provided within five business days (excluding weekends and
holidays) or on our next regularly scheduled payday, whichever occurs first. Final paychecks will
include all wages earned through the last workday plus payment for any accrued and vested
benefits that are due and payable at separation.

Sheridan, SW Polk and West Valley Fire Districts 34 Revision Date: April 24, 2020



HOURS OF WORK AND WORK SCHEDULES

District Hours
The general office hours at Sheridan, SW Polk and West Valley Fire Districts are 8:00 a.m. to 5:00
p.m., Monday through Friday.

Specific workday and workweek schedules for each employee will be determined from time-to-
time by the appropriate supervisor based on the Districts’ needs. We will attempt to notify you of
any changes in workdays or workweek schedules two weeks prior to the effective date of change.
Management reserves the right to modify schedules consistent with the needs of the Districts.

The normal shifts are 8, 12, 16, 24, 48 hours are as assigned. The total hours in a normal
workweek 40, 45, or 56 Sunday through Saturday. If you are a non-exempt employee, you should
not begin work before your normal starting time or continue working beyond the normal quitting
time without explicit advance approval from your supervisor.

Overtime

You may occasionally be required to work overtime. Overtime hours will be paid to non-exempt
employees at one and one-half times (1.5) the regular rate of pay for all hours worked in excess of
the employee’s normal assigned workweek, or as otherwise required by state and federal laws.
Paid time off will not be considered when computing overtime. Your department supervisor must
approve any overtime hours in advance or else you may face corrective action, up to termination.

Meal and Rest Periods

Meal and rest periods will be provided for you according to any applicable state regulations. Non-
exempt employees not permitted to work through a meal period unless approval from a supervisor
(in an emergency situation) is obtained before the scheduled meal break. In these situations, the
meal period will be paid time. Non- exempt emergency response employees may be required to
work through meal and rest periods during emergency incidents.

Lactation

Sheridan, SW Polk and West Valley Fire Districts promotes and supports the practice and need for
employees to express breast milk on its premises upon their return to work.

Until their babies are 18 months old, employees may take reasonable rest periods of no less than 30
minutes during every four-hour work period (or major part thereof) to express breast milk. Nursing
breaks may be taken concurrently with regular meal and rest breaks, although additional reasonable
break time will be made available, as required. Management and employees should work together
to find mutually agreeable hours of work and breaks which support the continuation of expressing
breast milk.

If an employee perceives or observes adverse treatment with respect to the expression of breast
milk, a supervisor/manager should be informed immediately.

Sheridan, SW Polk and West Valley Fire Districts will provide a private space with an electrical
outlet, within the office building, to express breast milk. This space may vary according to
available empty rooms. Hand washing facilities and a refrigerator will also be available at all sites
and appropriate signage for privacy will be supplied.

Sheridan, SW Polk and West Valley Fire Districts 35 Revision Date: April 24, 2020



Employees will be responsible for the storage of the expressed milk. The milk, if stored in the
refrigerator provided, must be clearly labeled with the employee’s name. To ensure the safety of
stored breast milk, it is recommended that the container used to store the milk be sealed in a plastic
bag to prevent contamination.

Social and Recreational Activities

Participation in off-duty social or recreational activities such as District picnics and holiday parties
is entirely voluntary. Participation or nonparticipation will not affect your wages, hours, working
conditions, or present or future employment opportunities.

Inclement Weather and Emergency Closures

Emergencies such as severe weather, fires, power failures, earthquakes, and other natural disasters
can disrupt District operations. In extreme cases, these circumstances may require the closing of
our office.

In the event that Sheridan, SW Polk and West Valley Fire Districts makes the decision to close the
office prior to the start of the business day, the closure will be announced via a District-wide
communication from the administration. A closure message may also be recorded on Sheridan, SW
Polk and West Valley Fire Districts’ general voice message line. It is the responsibility of each
employee to check e-mail and call their supervisor for an update, if there is any doubt regarding
office operations.

If a decision is made to close the office after the business day has already begun, the closure
message will also be announced via District-wide communication.

Exempt employees will be paid for all absences related to emergency closures.

Non-exempt employees will not be paid for time away from work due to office closure; however,
with supervisory approval, available vacation time may be used. Non-exempt employees who have
reported to work before the decision to close is made will be paid for time worked, or a minimum
of two (2) hours, whichever is greater. Non-exempt emergency response employees are expected to
fulfill all assigned work hours.

Sheridan, SW Polk and West Valley Fire Districts 36 Revision Date: April 24, 2020



EMPLOYEE-INCURRED EXPENSES AND REIMBURSEMENT

Sheridan, SW Polk and West Valley Fire Districts will pay all actual and reasonable business-
related expenses you incur while performing your job responsibilities. All such expenses must be
pre-approved by your supervisor before payment will be made.

Expense reports must be supported by proofs of purchase, e.g., receipts. Expense reports are due to
the Administrative Assistant within five (5) days following the purchase date.

Mileage Reimbursement

The three districts discourage the use your own vehicle for District business. Any reimbursement
for personal vehicle use must be submitted and pre-approved with the submittal of the Travel
Request Form.

You assume liability for your vehicle when you use it for business purposes. All employees who
want to use their personal vehicles for District business must verify that they have a current driver's
license and the minimum vehicle liability insurance required by state law. This insurance will be
primary.

PAY EQUITY STATEMENT

Sheridan, SW Polk and West Valley Fire Districts strive to ensure all employees receive an
equitable total compensation package based on a variety of factors relating to their knowledge,
skill, responsibility and effort. From time-to-time, employees performing work of comparable
character may have different compensation levels. Any such differences will be based on Sheridan,
SW Polk and West Valley Fire Districts’ objective processes for evaluating an employee’s work
and one or more of the following factors: seniority, merit, quantity or quality of work, workplace
location, regular and necessary travel, education, training, experience, or any combination of those
factors. Employees who believe they are not being compensated fairly are encouraged to discuss
the matter with the Deputy Chief.

Sheridan, SW Polk and West Valley Fire Districts 37 Revision Date: April 24, 2020



BENEFITS

Sheridan, SW Polk and West Valley Fire Districts 38 Revision Date: April 24, 2020



PURPOSE AND POLICY

Sheridan, SW Polk and West Valley Fire Districts strives to provide the most equitable and cost-
effective benefits for employees in recognition of the influence benefits have on employees’
economic and personal welfare. Paid in various benefit forms on your behalf, the total cost of
providing the benefit program is a significant supplement to your pay and should be viewed as
additional compensation.

Policies, provisions, and procedures that govern the Districts’ benefit program apply to all regular
full-time and part-time employees, whether exempt or non-exempt, unless otherwise stated in a
particular benefit plan. Benefits do not apply to temporary or on-call employees.

Some benefits may accrue during your new-hire introductory period, but in most cases eligibility to
use these benefits will not occur until you obtain regular employee status or meet other conditions
of employment specified in the Handbook or contained in the benefit policy/plan booklets.

Benefit Pro-ration and Employee Cost Sharing

If you are a regular part-time employee, your benefits are prorated based upon the number of hours
you work. Essentially, you accrue sick leave benefits at a lower rate than a full-time employee
because your accrual rate is based on fewer hours.

Discretionary employee benefits not mandated by state or federal law are selected and controlled
by Sheridan, SW Polk and West Valley Fire Districts. Decisions to provide these benefits are
based on such considerations as cost, composition of our workforce, operational efficiency, and
desirability of benefit provisions. When costs of discretionary insurance benefit plans exceed the
District's interest in or ability to pay the full premium, we will require you to share in the cost of
your coverage.

Benefit Design and Modification

Sheridan, SW Polk and West Valley Fire Districts reserves the right to design plan provisions and
to add, eliminate, or otherwise modify the benefits described in this Handbook or elsewhere in plan
documents when it is in the Districts’ best interest. Consider that changes to benefits may occur at
management’s discretion prior to making a serious, long-term decision based solely on current
benefit offerings.

Benefit Plan Documents

You’ll receive summary plan descriptions upon eligibility and enrollment. The benefit programs
are explicitly defined in legal documents, including insurance contracts, official plan texts, and
trust agreements. In the event of a conflict between these documents and this policy, the plan
documents govern. These official documents are available from the Finance Officer for your
review. We ask that you refer any questions about this information to the Finance Officer.

Individual benefits may be modified, become more expensive, or may even be eliminated in the
future because of cost increases or as a result of changes in our business situation or economic
conditions. We encourage you to be thoughtful about relying solely on these benefits, given that
they are subject to change. Upon separation from employment, employees may be eligible for the
continuation of benefits consistent with state and federal law. Any benefits described in this
Handbook apply only so long as the Handbook is current; employees do not have vested rights.

Sheridan, SW Polk and West Valley Fire Districts 39 Revision Date: April 24, 2020




HEALTH INSURANCE BENEFIT

Sheridan, SW Polk and West Valley Fire Districts currently provides health insurance coverage for
all employees and their dependents if they are otherwise eligible to participate in the plan. You
will be provided with information about the plan at the time you become eligible to participate.
You are asked to review the summary plan description for answers to questions you may have.
Any need for further information should be referred to the Finance Officer.

Eligibility

This benefit is provided for all regular full time employees. If otherwise eligible, you may begin to
participate in the plan after you have completed 30 days of continuous employment. Insurance
plan coverage begins on the first day of the month following completion of 30 days of
employment. Part-time, temporary, and on-call employees are generally not eligible to participate
in the health insurance plan.

Plan Enrollment

Once you are eligible, you may complete enrollment forms available through the Finance Officer.
If you don’t want to enroll at the time of eligibility and later decide to request enrollment, you will
only be allowed to enroll if you can demonstrate that a qualifying event has occurred which
qualifies you for a special enrollment period.

The Districts pay the full monthly premium for enrolled employees.

Insurance coverage for your dependents is also available. The Districts provide assistance with the
cost by contributing 70% of the monthly premium.

An eligible employee who chooses not to enroll in the insurance plan is not entitled to any other
form of compensation in lieu of coverage and is required to sign a written waiver of participation.

Medical information is covered by HIPAA regulations. Sheridan, SW Polk and West Valley Fire
Districts realize the responsibility we have to treat your private health information with great care
and discretion. We have implemented safeguards to protect this information.

Premium Cost

Specific types of coverage and benefit payment schedules are described in the Districts’ health care
plan booklet that is available to all eligible employees. At the time of eligibility and during open
enrollment each year, you will be informed of how much the Districts will contribute toward your
monthly premiums if you are eligible to participate in the plan. Premium rates are established by
the insurance carrier and are subject to change, usually based on increased costs to provide medical
services and the amount of services our employees require.

Any premium co-payment and dependent coverage you are required to pay is funded through a
monthly payroll deduction. Sheridan, SW Polk and West Valley Fire Districts determine the
payroll deduction schedule.

Termination of Coverage

In the event that you or your dependents lose eligibility to participate in the health plan, you may
have the option of extending your health plan coverage for a period of time under the continuation
coverage provided for by state law. Eligibility can be lost if certain “qualifying events” occur that

Sheridan, SW Polk and West Valley Fire Districts 40 Revision Date: April 24, 2020



would otherwise cause your or a dependent’s group health coverage to terminate. Examples of
qualifying events include termination of employment, a reduction in hours, being absent without
leave, death of the covered employee, divorce, entitlement to benefits under Medicare, and a
qualified beneficiary losing dependent child status.

You, your spouse, and dependents may continue group health insurance for up to nine (9 months at
your own expense if you were enrolled in the plan for at least three (3) months. However,
continuation does not occur automatically. You must elect coverage within insurer’s required
response time or you and any dependent will lose the right to state continuation coverage. Payment
of the premium must then occur within a specified timeframe for coverage to continue. You and
any covered dependent(s) will receive information about the provisions of the law when you first
enroll in benefits and again if a qualifying event occurs.

Portability/Conversion of Health Plan

If you’ve been continuously covered under our group medical insurance policy for at least 180 days
and your employment with us ends, you may be eligible to convert to an individual policy with our
insurance carrier. You may request this portability coverage before, during, or at the end of the
benefit extension period described above. However, you must apply for portability coverage from
our insurance carrier within 60 days after your group coverage ends. Please contact the insurance
carrier for more information about this coverage.

DENTAL INSURANCE BENEFIT

Sheridan, SW Polk and West Valley Fire Districts provides a Dental Insurance plan for employees.

Eligibility

Employees regularly scheduled to work 30 hours or more per week are eligible for dental insurance
coverage on the first day of the month after 30 days of employment. Part-time, temporary, and on-
call employees are not eligible to participate in dental insurance.

Cost
At the time of eligibility and during open enrollment each year, you will be notified of how much
the Districts will contribute towards monthly premiums.

Employees may enroll dependents in the dental care plan, but must pay 30% of the premium costs
associated with this coverage, which will be deducted from the employee’s paycheck.

OTHER INSURANCE BENEFITS

Group Life Insurance

We provide group life insurance coverage for eligible employees. Employees who are regularly
scheduled to work 30 hours per week or more become eligible for this coverage on first day of the
month after 30 days of employment. The amount of insurance coverage is $25,000, further
coverage is available at the employee’s expense. Sheridan, SW Polk and West Valley Fire
Districts pay the full premium.

Sheridan, SW Polk and West Valley Fire Districts 41 Revision Date: April 24, 2020



Long Term Disability

Sheridan, SW Polk and West Valley Fire Districts provide a Group Long-Term Disability plan.
Employees who are regularly scheduled to work 30 hours or more per week become eligible for
this plan on first day of the month after 30 days of employment. Sheridan, SW Polk and West
Valley Fire Districts pay the full premium.

Sheridan, SW Polk and West Valley Fire Districts 42 Revision Date: April 24,2020



VACATION BENEFIT

All full-time and regularly scheduled part-time employees are eligible for vacation based on the
schedule below. All accruals begin after the completion of 30 days of employment. At the end of
the specified initial employment period, credit is given from the first day of employment. No
vacation time may be taken or paid during the introductory period, unless specific arrangements
have been made at the time of hire.

You will earn vacation benefits according to the following monthly schedule:

Length of completed service 40/45 hours per week 56 hours per week
1 through 12 7 10
13 through 60 8 13
61 through 120 10 17
121 through 180 14 19
181 plus 15 24

We provide vacation so you can enjoy periods of time away from work. Vacation is intended for
rest and recreation and vacation pay may not be taken instead of time off. Vacation accrual will be
paid out at separation in accordance with this policy and any applicable law.

Time is not to be banked and never used; therefore, accrual cannot exceed 240 hours. Vacation
benefits will stop accruing when the maximum allowed has been reached. The benefit will begin
accruing again when you reduce the total to less than the allowed maximum.

Employees who want to use vacation time should request time off as early as possible so that
arrangements for coverage can be made. Requests for vacation time are to be made in CrewSense
and submitted to your Battalion Chief. Generally, employees won’t be allowed more than two
(2)weeks off at a time. We’ll try to grant each request, but we cannot guarantee your request will
be approved. In the event of competing requests for times submitted concurrently, approval will be
given to the employee with the longest tenure.

Exempt employee vacation leave

The Districts grant an additional 40 hours of vacation leave per year in lieu of compensatory time
or overtime for exempt employees. This exempt vacation leave is granted at the beginning of each
fiscal year (July 1) and must be used during the fiscal year. Any unused portion of the exempt
vacation leave remaining at the end of the fiscal year (June 30) is forfeited.

Sheridan, SW Polk and West Valley Fire Districts 43 Revision Date: April 24, 2020



SICK LEAVE

Sheridan, SW Polk and West Valley Fire Districts provide paid sick leave to all employees in
accordance with state law. For any questions about sick leave, please contact the on-duty Battalion

Chief or the Deputy Chief.

The accrual of sick time begins on the first day of employment at the rate of 8 hours for 40/45 hour
per week employees and 10 hours for 56 hour per week employees of sick time earned for every
one month worked, up to a maximum of 960 hours. Employees will be granted 40 hours for 40/45
hour per week employees and 48 hours for 56 hour per week employees on their first day of
employment. Sick time may be used as it is acctued moving forward.

Sick time may be used for an employee’s own serious or non-serious illness, for preventative care
appointments, or to care for an immediate family member with an illness. Sheridan, SW Polk and
West Valley Fire Districts do not allow employees to donate sick time to other employees in need.
Unused sick time is not paid out upon separation from employment.

PAID HOLIDAY BENEFIT

Sheridan, SW Polk and West Valley Fire Districts observe the following holidays each year and
our offices are officially closed on these days:

New Year’s Day - January 1

Martin Luther King, Jr.’s Birthday — 3rd Monday in January
Presidents’ Day - 3rd Monday in February

Memorial Day - last Monday in May

Independence Day - July 4

Labor Day - First Monday in September

Veterans Day - November 11

Thanksgiving Day - the 4th Thursday in November

Day after Thanksgiving Day- the 4" Friday in November
Christmas Day - December 25

®e & e © o © o & o o

These holidays or any additional time observed, such as Christmas Eve or New Year's Eve, will be
determined each year at management’s discretion.

Eligibility

Employees regularly scheduled to work 20 hours or more per week will be paid for the above
holidays. Part-time employees between 20 and 40 hours will receive a prorated amount of paid
time based on their regularly scheduled time. For instance, a part-time employee working 20 hours
per week would receive four (4) hours of holiday pay because 50% of a full-time schedule is
worked.

Non-Exempt Employees
If a regular or probationary nonexempt employee is required to work on a holiday, unless otherwise
specified as a condition of the employee’s position (such as part-time employees) or as otherwise

Sheridan, SW Polk and West Valley Fire Districts 44 Revision Date: April 24, 2020



provided in this Handbook, the employee shall be compensated by payment at a rate of one and
one-half times the hourly rate of base pay.

Exempt Employees

If a regular or probationary exempt employee is required to work on a holiday, the employee shall
be compensated by time off at a rate of one hour per hour worked.

OTHER BENEFITS

Employee Assistance Program

The Districts recognize that employees and their family members may, from time-to-time, face
personal issues that affect their careers and personal lives or both. Solutions to some of these
problems may not be readily apparent. To this end, we offer, at no expense to you, the services of
outside professional counseling for you and your family to help deal with personal problems such
as family relationships, substance abuse, etc. You or a member of your family may consult with
these professionals on a confidential basis at no cost, within the guidelines of the program.
Literature describing plan provisions and how to contact our providers is made available during
your introductory period and to all staff members as plan provisions change.

Employees regularly scheduled to work 30 hours or more per week become eligible on the first day
of the month following hire.

Employee-Funded 457 Deferred Compensation Plan
As a public sector employee, you have the opportunity to build your retirement investments —
with tax advantage — through an employee-funded 457 deferred compensation plan.

Deferred compensation is a program that allows you to invest today for your retirement. Federal,
and in most cases state, income taxes are deferred until your assets are withdrawn, usually during

retirement when you may be in a lower tax bracket.

Under Section 457 of the Internal Revenue Code, you may defer each year a maximum of 100% of
your “gross compensation” or an annual dollar limit, whichever is less.

The Districts will provide employees who qualify for a 457 plan with an enrollment information at
the time of eligibility.

Sheridan, SW Polk and West Valley Fire Districts 45 Revision Date: April 24, 2020



LEAVES OF ABSENCE

Sheridan, SW Polk and West Valley Fire Districts 46 Revision Date: April 24, 2020



LEAVE OF ABSENCE

We realize that our employees may encounter situations that require a temporary short-term or
extended absence from work. We address several different types of leaves of absence for the

following purposes:

Bereavement Leave Family and Medical Leave Leave to Donate Bone Marrow
Civic Duty Military Leave Domestic Violence Leave
Personal Leave Crime Victims’ Leave

The type of leave requested may determine which employees are eligible and what procedure
should be followed in requesting and obtaining the leave. The effect of the leave on benefit
accruals, benefits, and reinstatement rights also varies according to the type of leave you are
requesting. Each of these leaves is discussed on the following pages. If you have any questions
about your potential eligibility for a leave or your benefits and rights while on a leave, please
review the Lexipol Policy or contact the Deputy Chief.

Sheridan, SW Polk and West Valley Fire Districts 47 Revision Date: April 24, 2020



BEREAVEMENT LEAVE

You are eligible to take a Bereavement Leave in the event of the death of the following immediate
family members:

Spouse/Domestic Partner

Biological, Adoptive, Foster, or Stepchild
Parent

Grandparent/Grandchild

Parent-in-law

Another Person of “In Loco Parentis” Relation

Leave to attend the funeral of a non-immediate family member with whom you had an especially
close relationship may also be granted at the discretion of management.

This leave may be taken to attend the funeral (or alternative) of the family member, to make
arrangements necessitated by the death of a family member, or to grieve the death of a family
member. The leave must be completed within 60 days after the date on which you received notice
of the death of your family member.

Length of Leave

The total length of leave you may be granted for bereavement is situational and may be decided
based upon the unique circumstances of your need and applicable law. If you qualify for OFLA, at
a minimum, you are allowed to take up to two weeks off per death of an immediate family member.
If you need additional time off for any bereavement-related purpose, you may ask for more time
which may be granted according to applicable law or at the discretion of management.

Request Procedure

If possible, you should provide notice of the need for leave 10 days in advance. You are required to
at least provide oral notice within 24 hours of taking leave, but someone else can do this on your
behalf, if necessary. You must provide written notice of the request for time off within three (3)
days of returning to work.

Pay While on Leave

You will continue to receive regular pay for up to three (3) days or 24 shift hours, which is the
maximum District-paid absence allowed. Employees may choose to cover an additional period of
absence with any available sick time.

Status of Benefits

District-paid bereavement leave won’t affect your eligibility for benefits or the continuation of
benefit accruals. If you are granted additional time off, the effect of the additional leave on your
benefits will be determined by our sick time policy.

Sheridan, SW Polk and West Valley Fire Districts 48 Revision Date: April 24, 2020



Civic DUTyY LEAVE

Jury or Witness Duty Leave

Employees subpoenaed to serve as witnesses or for jury duty may obtain a protected leave of
absence. If we feel that your absence would cause an undue hardship to you or the Districts, we
may instead request, with your agreement, that jury duty be postponed. You may choose to use
your accrued paid vacation time available for voluntary service as a witness or for court
appearances you must make as part of your own legal proceedings or lawsuit.

Length of Leave
Jury or witness duty leave is available for the period of time covered by the initial subpoena or
court order and any involuntary extensions.

Request Procedure

You must notify your manager or supervisor as soon as is practicable after you receive notice
asking you to serve as a witness or on a jury so that arrangements can be made to cover your
position. You are expected to provide us with a copy of the subpoena or notice within five (5) days
after you received it.

Pay While on Leave

You will be compensated for the difference between the civic pay received and your regular rate of
pay for up to one week if you are a non-exempt employee; after that period, you may utilize paid
time off if desired. For exempt employees, any partial day or partial week worked will be paid in
full; employees are required to remit any jury fees received in connection with their service.

Status of Benefits
Benefits are not affected by jury or witness duty leaves.

Sheridan, SW Polk and West Valley Fire Districts 49 Revision Date: April 24, 2020



CRIME VICTIMS’ LEAVE

If you or a member of your immediate family suffers financial, social, psychological, or physical
harm as a result of a personal felony or an employee is a victim of harassment (under the public
offenses statutes), you may be entitled to take protected leave from work to attend criminal
proceedings.

Safety Measures
The Districts will provide reasonable safety measures, if you are the victim of harassment or a
threat of harm that would be expected to cause concern.

Eligibility
You will be eligible to take crime victims’ leave if you have worked an average of more than 25
hours per week for the Districts for at least 180 days immediately before the leave would begin.

Length of Leave

The amount and length of leave time you may take is limited to that which does not create
significant difficulty and expense (undue hardship) to the District. If the Districts must limit your
leave due to undue hardship, we will notify the prosecuting attorney in the criminal proceeding,
who is required by law to notify the court. The court will then take your work schedule into
consideration when scheduling the criminal proceedings.

Request Procedure

You must provide your manager or supervisor with reasonable notice of your intention to take
crime victims’ leave, and provide copies of any notices of scheduled criminal proceedings that you
receive from a law enforcement agency. We will treat such documentation as confidential
information.

Pay While on Leave

Crime victims’ leave is unpaid; however, eligible employees who take this type of leave are
required to use any accrued paid vacation time available to them. Exempt employees working
partial days or a partial week will be paid in full for the entire week, although accrued time must be
used first.

Status of Benefits
Benefits are not affected by crime victims’ leave.

Sheridan, SW Polk and West Valley Fire Districts 50 Revision Date: April 24,2020



DOMESTIC VIOLENCE LEAVE

An employee who is a victim of domestic violence, harassment (under the public offenses statutes),
sexual assault, or stalking or whose minor child or dependent is a victim may be entitled to take
unpaid protected leave from work.

Eligibility
All Sheridan, SW Polk and West Valley Fire District employees are eligible to take domestic
violence leave.

Types of Services/Treatment

An employee may take leave to seek legal or law enforcement assistance, to secure medical
treatment, to obtain counseling or victim services, to relocate, or to take other reasonable steps to
ensure one’s own health and well-being or that of a child or legal dependent.

Length of Leave
The amount of leave taken will be reasonable and that which does not create a significant difficulty
and expense (undue hardship) for the Districts.

Request Procedure

An employee accessing this leave provision needs to request time off from a manager or supervisor
as much in advance as possible to aid in scheduling. We understand that instances of violence are
usually not predictable, and these requests may be made with little forewarning. We will treat any
information you share as confidentially as possible.

Safety Measures
The District will provide reasonable safety measures, if you are the victim of domestic violence,
harassment, sexual assault, or stalking.

Pay While on Leave

Domestic violence leave is unpaid; however, eligible employees who take this type of leave are
required to use any accrued paid vacation time available to them. Exempt employees working
partial days or a partial week will be paid in full for the entire week, although accrued time must be
used first.

Status of Benefits
Benefits are not affected by domestic violence leave. We would also strongly encourage any
employee experiencing such an issue to avail themselves of the EAP’s services and support.

Sheridan, SW Polk and West Valley Fire Districts 51 Revision Date: April 24, 2020



FAMILY AND MEDICAL LEAVE
OREGON AGENCIES WITH 25-49 EMPLOYEES

NOTE: Sheridan, SW Polk and West Valley Fire District do not individually meet the
requirements for Family and Medical Leave.

Sheridan, SW Polk and West Valley Fire Districts 52 Revision Date: April 24, 2020



LEAVE TO DONATE BONE MARROW

Eligibility
Employees working 20 or more hours per week are eligible for this leave.

Length of Leave

An employee may use up to 40 hours of leave which may be taken as paid. In extenuating
circumstances, approval to take more unpaid time off unpaid may be granted by a supervisor or
manager.

Request Procedure

You must notify your manager or supervisor as soon as is practicable after you become aware that
you will be donating bone marrow. You are expected to provide a copy of the doctor’s verification
for bone marrow donation. If there is a medical determination that you do not qualify as a bone
marrow donor, the paid leave of absence used before that determination was made will not be
affected.

Status of Benefits
Benefits are not affected by this leave.

Sheridan, SW Polk and West Valley Fire Districts 53 Revision Date: April 24, 2020



PERSONAL LEAVE OF ABSENCE

Full-time, regular employees may be granted an unpaid personal leave of absence under certain
circumstances. A personal leave of absence is an approved period of time away from work for
personal reasons that do not fall under the guidelines of the Family and Medical Leave Policy or
any other leave policy. A personal leave of absence is granted at our discretion and is normally
granted to protect the length of service and benefit rights of an employee whose service might
otherwise be terminated.

Eligibility
You become eligible for a personal leave of absence after 12 months of service; all earned paid
leave must be exhausted first. If you want to take a personal leave of absence, you must make

arrangements with your supervisor.

Length of Leave

The leave may be requested for any time over 30 consecutive days. A personal leave of absence
starts on the first regular workday following the last day worked. The maximum leave allowed
under this policy is 90 days.

Request Procedure

A written request, using the Leave of Absence Request Form, should be submitted at least one-
week before time off that will exceed 30 days, except in emergencies. Leave requests must include
an expected date of return. If you do not return after three (3) days of that date and no extension
has been requested, we’ll assume you have resigned.

Pay While on Leave
Personal leaves of absence are without pay.

Status of Benefits

Insurance coverage will not be maintained for you while on a personal leave of absence of more
than 30 days; leaves longer than 30 days may require continuation of benefits through state
continuation provisions. You may continue insurance coverage by paying the full premium by the
first of each month. Benefits do not accrue during this type of leave of absence, but are instead
retained at the same level.

Reinstatement

Sheridan, SW Polk and West Valley Fire Districts will attempt to arrange employment for
individuals returning from a personal leave of absence, but no guarantees are made. While you are
on a personal leave of absence, you are required to check in with your supervisor on a regular basis
bi-weekly to inform us of your status and to notify us of any change in personal data. You may be
required to present a doctor’s release before being reinstated if the leave was medically-related.

Sheridan, SW Polk and West Valley Fire Districts 54 Revision Date: April 24, 2020



UNIFORMED SERVICES LEAVE AND RE-EMPLOYMENT

Regular employees requiring a leave of absence for service in the uniformed services are provided
leave and will be re-employed at the end of the leave. Policies governing this leave are designed
according to the Uniformed Services Employment and Re-employment Rights Act and applicable
state regulations. The policy covers employees who enter active military duty voluntarily and
extends to Reservists or National Guard members who are called to limited active duty or extended
training duty, including regularly scheduled annual training and military summer camp training.
These military members, and those with previous or current military service, are protected from
discrimination and harassment.

Eligibility
All employees of the Districts except those hired on a brief, non-recurrent basis are eligible for
leave.

Length of Leave

Given that the requirements regarding this type of leave are subject to change, the length of this
leave will be administered under the current provisions of all applicable laws at the time of
occurrence.

Request Procedure

You must provide oral or written notice, using the Leave of Absence Request Form, of your
obligation or intention to perform service in the uniformed services, unless notice is precluded by
military necessity or is otherwise unreasonable or impossible. Failure to do so may result in loss of
re-employment rights.

Pay While on Leave
Military leaves are without pay unless you elect to utilize vacation benefits earned before the
commencement of the leave.

Status of Benefits

Reservists, National Guard members, and veterans returning from military service in the Armed
Forces have and retain rights with respect to seniority, vacation, compensation, and length of
service pay increases, as may be provided by applicable statutes of the United States and the State
of Oregon. For any leave extending beyond 30 days, you may maintain health care insurance
benefits for up to 24 months while on leave by paying the full insurance premiums.

Reinstatement
If you are returning from a USERRA leave, you generally must report to work or request re-
employment within prescribed time limits, which are based on the length of the leave as follows:

1 to 30 days: You are expected to report to work on the first regularly scheduled work
day following the completion of your service and an eight-hour rest period.
You will most likely be reinstated to a position you would have held had
you not taken leave or to the same position you held prior to the leave.

31 to 180 days: You should submit an application for reemployment no later than 14 days
after an honorable release from service unless it is impossible or
unreasonable through no fault of your own. You will generally be
reinstated to the position you would have attained if continuously

Sheridan, SW Polk and West Valley Fire Districts 55 Revision Date: April 24, 2020



employed, so long as you are qualified for the job or can become qualified
after reasonable efforts by Sheridan, SW Polk and West Valley Fire
Districts, or to the same position you held prior to leave. In some cases,
reinstatement may be made to a position of like seniority, status, and pay to
either of the aforementioned positions or to their nearest approximation.

181 daysor  You must apply for re-employment no later than 90 days after the

longer: completion of satisfactory service, absent extenuating circumstances. You
will generally be reinstated to the position you would have attained if
continuously employed, so long as you are qualified for the job or can
become qualified after reasonable efforts by Sheridan, SW Polk and West
Valley Fire Districts, or to the same position you held prior to leave. In
some cases, reinstatement may be made to a position of like seniority,
status, and pay to either of the aforementioned positions or to their nearest
approximation.

For service of 31 days or more, Sheridan, SW Polk and West Valley Fire Districts will request that
you provide documentation to verify your rights to re-employment, including your separation
papers.

Time limits for applications for re-employment are extended for up to two years for disabled
veterans, unless extenuating circumstances beyond a veteran’s control may warrant another
minimal extension beyond that period. Failure to file an application within the required time
periods may otherwise result in a loss of the right to re-employment.

Sheridan, SW Polk and West Valley Fire Districts 56 Revision Date: April 24, 2020



OREGON MILITARY FAMILY LEAVE

NOTE: Sheridan, SW Polk and West Valley Fire Districts do not individually meet the
requirements for Oregon Military Family Leave. See Lexipol policies for military leave.

Sheridan, SW Polk and West Valley Fire Districts 57 Revision Date: April 24, 2020



HEALTH AND SAFETY

Sheridan, SW Polk and West Valley Fire Districts 58 Revision Date: April 24, 2020



DRUGS AND ALCOHOL

The objective of this policy is to provide a workplace and environment that are free from the effects
of substance abuse. Furthermore, Sheridan, SW Polk and West Valley Fire Districts and the union
believe that we have a responsibility to our employees, to those who use or come into contact with
our products and services, and to the general public to ensure safe operating and working
conditions. To satisfy our drug free workplace objective and meet these responsibilities, we must
establish a work environment where employees are free from the effects of drugs, alcohol, or other
impairing substances. Accordingly, we have adopted this drug and alcohol policy in addition to the
Lexipol Policies.

The following conditions and activities are expressly prohibited on District premises or property or
during work time or while representing us in any work-related fashion and will lead to corrective
action, up to and including termination:

e Manufacturing, selling, attempting to sell, using, distributing or possessing alcohol or other
controlled or illegal substances that impair job performance or pose a hazard when use or
possession occurs;

e Reporting for or being at work with the presence of alcohol, illegal drugs, or controlled
substances in your system.

If your doctor prescribes over-the-counter or pharmaceutical drugs, you are responsible for
ensuring that your ability to maintain work performance standards, including safety, will not be
affected by the medication. If you are in doubt, please discuss this with the Deputy Chief before
beginning work. Any medical issues discussed will be kept confidential.

If you have a problem with drugs or alcohol and wish to undertake rehabilitation, you may be
granted an unpaid leave of absence for this purpose, as long as your work performance warrants
and there have been no violations of this policy. It is your responsibility to seek help before the
problem adversely affects your work performance or results in a violation of this policy. If you
need assistance in seeking this help, you may talk to the Deputy Chief. No one will be
discriminated against for undertaking rehabilitation.

For purposes of this policy, having any detectable level of alcohol or drugs in one's system while
covered by this policy will be considered to be a violation. Where we have a reasonable basis to
believe that an employee is in violation of this policy, the employee will be required to submit to
testing to determine presence of, use of, or involvement with alcohol or drugs. We reserve the right
to determine whether reasonable basis exists.

The following definitions apply:

Reasonable suspicion is defined as specific, describable observations concerning such
circumstances as the work performance, appearance (including, for example, noticeable odor of an
alcohol), behavior, or speech of the employee, or as being involved in an accident on District
premises that results in physical injury or property damage.

Presence of is defined as any detectable level of alcohol or drugs in an employee's blood or urine,
or any noticeable or perceptible impairment of the employee's mental or physical faculties.

Sheridan, SW Polk and West Valley Fire Districts 59 Revision Date: April 24,2020



Controlled Substances are defined as any product causing potential impairment of an employees’
mental or physical faculties and whose availability is restricted by law.

Over-the-counter drugs are defined as those that are generally available without a prescription from
a medical doctor.

Prescription drugs are defined as those drugs that are used in the course of medical treatment and
have been prescribed and authorized for use by a licensed practitioner/physician or dentist.

Any employee who is found to be in violation of this policy and who refuses to submit to testing, or
refuses to cooperate, or attempts to subvert the testing process will be subject to corrective action,
up to and including termination. We also reserve the right to involve law enforcement officials for
any conduct that we believe might be in violation of state or federal law.

If a professional assessment is made that you have a problem with alcohol or drugs, your continued
employment may be conditioned upon your entering into and completing a treatment program
(including follow-up recommendations) approved by the Districts. You also may be required to
sign and live up to the terms of a performance agreement in order to demonstrate your commitment
to rehabilitation and staying alcohol- and drug-free. This course of action is likely if you come
forward on your own and ask for help in overcoming your problem. If you are caught selling,
distributing, using, or having the presence of drugs or alcohol in your system while at work, we
may terminate your employment without offering you the opportunity to participate in a treatment
program.

Testing Paragraphs

If you voluntarily request assistance in dealing with a personal drug or alcohol problem, you may
do so through the Employee Assistance Program. The request for assistance will not jeopardize
your employment as long as this assistance is sought before work performance has deteriorated or
disciplinary problems have begun. Other treatment programs for drug and alcohol problems may
be available through our health insurance coverage.

As a result of corrective action arising from a drug or alcohol problem, you may be required to
participate in a drug or alcohol treatment program. If so required, you will regularly be evaluated
for drug and alcohol use by a professional. When such an evaluation is scheduled, we will pay the
cost. You may also be required to participate in follow-up care as part of a comprehensive alcohol
and drug treatment program. Depending upon the nature of the conduct that led to your mandated
participation in an alcohol and drug treatment program, you may be required to submit to random
or unannounced screening for alcohol or drugs for a specified period of time. You may also be
required to meet various performance standards that are imposed as a condition of continuing
employment.

If you are involved in a job-related accident resulting in property damage in excess of $1,200, or
physical injury requiring off-site medical attention, you will be required to submit to testing to
determine the presence or absence of a controlled substance. We may waive the requirement if we
do not have a reasonable basis to conduct drug or alcohol testing or, if we determine, at our
discretion, that the accident could not have been caused by the use of a controlled substance.

You will be subject to testing upon transfer or promotion into another position.
You may be required to submit to testing on a random or unannounced basis to determine the

presence of, use of, or involvement with drugs or alcohol. This may include testing by random
Sheridan, SW Polk and West Valley Fire Districts 60 Revision Date: April 24, 2020



selection, testing of an entire department or work unit, or testing of specific identified categories of
employees as a group.

We will also conduct testing as required or recommended under the provisions of any state or
federal government regulations. If you are within a regulated group requiring testing, you will be
required to abide by policy as well as any government programs.

When being tested, you may request that any sample be split into two parts, with one part tested
and the other retained by the testing laboratory for future re-testing in the event of a positive test
result. If you request a re-test, it will be at your expense and must be conducted by a laboratory
that is acceptable to us. A list of approved laboratories will be provided upon request.

If you believe that your specimen was not collected in accordance with established procedures, you

must report any deficiencies within 24 hours of the collection. Deficiencies reported after 24 hours
have expired and will not be considered.

Sheridan, SW Polk and West Valley Fire Districts 61 Revision Date: April 24, 2020



WORKPLACE VIOLENCE

Sheridan, SW Polk and West Valley Fire Districts recognize the importance of a safe workplace for
employees. A work environment that is safe and comfortable enhances employee satisfaction with
work as well as employee productivity.

To foster a safe workplace, these Districts specifically prohibit any employee, customer, or vendor
from bringing any kind of weapon, knife (other than folding pocket-knife), or firearm on premises.
If you have a question whether something may be considered a weapon in violation of this policy,
you must ask your supervisor prior to bringing the item onto our premises. Our premises include
areas such as personal vehicles parked in our designated parking area.

Situations may occur, despite our best efforts to prevent them, which present a risk of harm to
employees and others. All employees have an obligation to report any incidents that pose a risk of
harm to employees or others associated with the Districts or that threaten the safety, security, or
financial interests of the Districts. Employees should make such reports directly to their supervisor
or the Deputy Chief.

All information related to the reports, including the name of the reporting employees, will be kept
as confidential as possible under the circumstances. We will generally notify the reporting
employee of action taken in response to the report.

We may, out of business necessity, conduct an investigation of a current employee when the
employee’s behavior raises concerns about work performance, reliability, honesty, or potential
threat to the safety of co-workers or others. An employee investigation may include investigation
of criminal records and a search of the Districts’ property such as desks, work areas, lockers, file
cabinets, voice mail systems, and computer systems.

If an employee is found to have violated any part of this policy, corrective action up to and
including termination may occur.

Sheridan, SW Polk and West Valley Fire Districts 62 Revision Date: April 24, 2020



EMPLOYEE HEALTH AND SAFETY

Sheridan, SW Polk and West Valley Fire Districts are committed to providing our employees with
a safe and healthful work environment. To accomplish this goal, both management and employees
must make diligent efforts to promote safety within applicable laws and standards.

We develop and implement safety rules and regulations through supervisors. This process is
ongoing and requires periodic safety audits. Safety audits are undertaken to determine the
necessity and feasibility of providing devices or safeguards to make the workplace safe and
healthful. We also educate employees about workplace hazards and the proper and safe methods to
use in performing job tasks.

You are expected to give your full skill and attention to the performance of your duties, using the
highest standard of care and good judgment. You are also expected to always follow safety rules
and regulations, including using appropriate protective clothing, shoes, and equipment, attending
all training sessions offered, and following directions of warning signs, signals, and supervisory
personnel.

While we respect personal taste in clothing, jewelry, and body modification, when any of these
areas have the potential to make an employee more vulnerable to injury, we reserve the right to
prohibit the attire or behavior or ask the employee to take some steps for safety.

All job-related injuries or illnesses are to be reported to your supervisor immediately, regardless of
severity. In the case of serious injury, your reporting obligation will be deferred until
circumstances reasonably permit a report to be made. Failure to report an injury or illness may
preclude or delay the payment of any benefits to you and could subject Sheridan, SW Polk and
West Valley Fire Districts to fines and penalties. No one will be retaliated against for filing a
workers’ compensation claim in good faith.

Safety rules and regulations will be issued or modified from time-to-time and will be effective
immediately upon communication. Rules and regulations will be distributed to you.

If an injury occurs you are required to:

Take remedial first aid actions; seek emergency care if necessary.

Report the injury as soon as possible.

Fill out the accident and injury report form and workers’ compensation form.
Provide your supervisor with a medical release from a doctor.

Review the incident with our Deputy Chief.

= PR

Early Return to Work Program

Our Return-to-Work program provides guidelines for returning you to work as early as possible
after you have suffered an on-the-job-injury. The program is not intended to be a substitute for a
reasonable accommodation when an injured employee also qualifies as an individual with a
disability.

The Return to Work program consists of a team effort by supervisors, injured employees and their
treating physicians, management, and our workers’ compensation insurance carrier. All team
members will take an active role in returning injured employees to productive work. Through this

Sheridan, SW Polk and West Valley Fire Districts 63 Revision Date: April 24, 2020



team effort, we hope to help our employees recover and return to full employment as soon as their
medical condition permits.

If you are injured on the job and your doctor determines that you are able to perform modified
work, the Districts will attempt to provide such a job until you are able to resume your regular
duties, except where provided as an accommodation for a permanent disability. All modified work
1s temporary and may be offered at any location or on any shift. If you are offered a modified
position that has been medically approved, failure to report at the designated time and place may
affect time loss compensation.

A return to work from non-work-related injuries will typically require the use of accrued leave
and/or long term disability and will be reviewed on a case-by-case basis.

Smoking in the Workplace

Sheridan, SW Polk and West Valley Fire Districts are non-smoking facilities. This includes the use
of electronic cigarettes and vaping devices. Places outside the office may be designated as
smoking areas; smoking is limited to these areas. Please do not smoke or vape within 10 feet of
any entrance, exit, window, or air intake device. If any employee has a concern about the areas
designated, that individual should speak with the appropriate supervisor.

Employee Right to Know/Hazard Communication Program

Sheridan, SW Polk and West Valley Fire Districts provide a Hazard Communication Program so
that all employees are aware of chemical hazards in the workplace. By becoming familiar with this
information you can help prevent injuries and illnesses from chemical exposure. If you have any
questions regarding chemical hazards, do not delay in asking your supervisor or Battalion Chief.

The following safety precautions have been taken to prevent injuries and illnesses from chemical
exposure:

Container Labeling
The Battalion Chief will verify that all containers received for use will:

e Beclearly labeled as to the contents with a product identifier.

e Note the appropriate hazard warning with a precautionary statement, pictogram, hazard
statement, and supplemental information.

e List the manufacturer/supplier name, address, and emergency phone number.

It is our policy that no container will be released for use until the above data is verified.

The supervisor in each section will ensure that all secondary containers have either an extra copy of
the original manufacturer's label or a generic label that has identification and hazard warning
blocks. For help with labeling, see the Battalion Chief.

Safety Data Sheets (SDS)

Copies of safety data sheets for all hazardous chemicals that employees of this District may be
exposed to will be kept electronically and all employees shall have access. Safety data sheets will
be available to all employees in their work areas for review during each work shift. Never use a
chemical or associated machinery if its safety data sheet is not available; you should immediately
contact the Battalion Chief before using the chemical or the machine containing it.

Sheridan, SW Polk and West Valley Fire Districts 64 Revision Date: April 24, 2020



Employee Information and Training
Before starting work, you will attend a health and safety orientation and receive information and
training about the following:

e An overview of the requirements contained in the Globally Harmonized Hazard
Communication System;

e Chemicals present in your workplace operations;

e Location and availability of our written hazard communication program;

e Physical and health effects of the hazardous chemicals;

e Methods and observation techniques used to determine the presence or release of hazardous
chemicals in the work area; and,

e How to reduce or prevent exposure to these hazardous chemicals through the use of
control/work practices and personal protective equipment.

After attending the training class, you will sign a form to verify that you attended, received our
written materials, and understand our policies on hazard communication.

Prior to a new hazardous chemical being introduced into any section of these Districts, each
employee of that section will be given information as outlined above. The Battalion Chief is

responsible for ensuring that Safety Data Sheets (SDS) on new chemicals are available.

For more information on health and safety policies, please login to Lexipol.

Sheridan, SW Polk and West Valley Fire Districts 65 Revision Date: April 24,2020



Emergency Preparedness

Sheridan, SW Polk and West Valley Fire Districts may be subject to major disruptions as a result of
occurrences beyond the control of the Districts. All employees should exercise good judgment in
responding to these events as the situation necessitates. Sheridan, SW Polk and West Valley Fire
Districts will try to provide emergency and limited services during periods of disruptions. The Fire
Chief shall make the determination to close the Districts, suspend activities, or make the Districts
available for community support.

In the event of potential or actual disruptions that may be weather-related or a result of a
catastrophic event such as an earthquake, fire, explosion, or public health emergency, contact your
Supervisor.

Compensation of employees will be determined in accordance with all applicable regulations when
individual facilities or activities are closed as a result of emergency conditions. Employees not

compensated during an emergency-related closure may be able to use available vacation.

Should a threat to District property or an employee be received, it should be reported immediately
to your supervisor.

Sheridan, SW Polk and West Valley Fire Districts 66 Revision Date: April 24, 2020



EMPLOYMENT SEPARATION

Sheridan, SW Polk and West Valley Fire Districts 67 Revision Date: April 24, 2020



SEPARATION FROM EMPLOYMENT

Separation from employment with Sheridan, SW Polk and West Valley Fire Districts occurs when
you voluntarily resign, are laid off, or are discharged by the District.

Resignation

Employment with us is “at-will,” which means you are free to resign at any time, with or without
cause or notice. However, in order to achieve an orderly transition, we would appreciate receiving
notification of your resignation at least 10 working days before the intended date of departure. For
supervisors and management-level personnel, at least 30 days’ notice of a resignation is requested.

Job Abandonment

To maintain a safe and productive work environment, employees are expected to be reliable in
reporting for scheduled work. Absenteeism and tardiness place a burden on other employees and
on the Districts; poor attendance and excessive tardiness are disruptive. Either may lead to
corrective action, up to and including termination of employment. If an employee fails to call in or
show up for work, job abandonment and voluntary resignation will be assumed after the third day
of absence.

Job Elimination, Reduction in Work Hours

Our desire is to avoid circumstances that require a reduction in hours or staff, but we also recognize
that situations may arise where such reductions are necessary. Depending upon the circumstances,
we may respond in a variety of ways, including offering a voluntary reduction in hours or days of
work, reducing your work hours or days of work, reducing the workforce, or reducing expenses by
other means. Among the factors we will consider in selecting employees for any reduced hours or
reduction in force are:

Your department, location, or job;

Your job knowledge, skills, and ability to do the required work;

Your performance, attendance, and safety and corrective action history and records;
Your possession of licenses, registrations, and certifications required by the job;
Your creativity and teamwork skills, if required for the job;

Your demonstrated willingness to go the extra mile for the Districts, co-workers, and
customers; and,

e The efficiency of our operation.

Evaluation of these factors is at our discretion. When we conclude that all the factors are
substantially equal, we will reduce the hours of or lay off the employee with the shortest term of
service. An immediate supervisor/manager will personally notify employees of a layoff. After
explaining the layoff procedure, you will be given a letter describing the conditions of the layoff,
such as the effects on benefits, the possibility of reemployment, procedures, and any outplacement
services.

If practicable at the time of layoff or upon an employee being placed in an inactive status, we may
provide limited re-employment rights for a period of twelve (12 ) months. The order of recall will
be determined using the above factors. An offer of re-employment may be made orally or in
writing to the last address reflected in your personnel records. It is your obligation to keep us
informed of any changes to your telephone number, email address, and physical address. The offer
will identify the available job and the date you are to report to work. If you are not rehired during

Sheridan, SW Polk and West Valley Fire Districts 68 Revision Date: April 24, 2020



the period specified, your re-employment rights end; if you decline re-employment or fail to report
on the date specified in an offer, you generally waive any re-employment privileges.

Discharge

Our philosophy and general practice is to provide employees who have completed the initial
introductory period of employment with an opportunity to correct minor performance and conduct
problems before discharge is implemented.

The Districts have a corrective action policy found on page 29 of this Handbook that describes
action management may take, at its discretion, to correct performance infractions prior to
discharging employees. The decision to discharge employees is based not only on the seriousness
of the current performance infraction, but also on the individual’s overall performance record and
length of service.

We also believe that our employees should be given an opportunity to be heard in matters involving
corrective action, including discharge, and we have provided a formal dispute resolution procedure
found on page 29 of this Handbook for that purpose. You are encouraged to use this procedure to
resolve any issues you may have that cannot be resolved by consulting with your supervisor.

EXxit Interview

An exit interview may be arranged to give you an opportunity to address unresolved issues before
leaving the Districts. It also allows us to solicit your opinions about our Districts and any
suggestions you may have for its improvement. We encourage all employees invited to participate
in an exit interview when they separate from employment to do so, and we value all opinions and
suggestions we receive in the process.

At the exit interview session, you will be given information regarding your benefit continuation
rights and responsibilities and how you will receive your final paycheck.

Return of District Property

Upon separation from employment, either voluntarily or otherwise, you must return all District
property in your possession. Such property may include credit cards, District vehicles, keys, ID
cards, pagers, tools, software, electronic devices, uniforms, this Handbook, and any other items in
your possession that belong to the Districts.

Sheridan, SW Polk and West Valley Fire Districts 69 Revision Date: April 24, 2020



Employee’s Notes

Sheridan, SW Polk and West Valley Fire Districts 70 Revision Date: April 24, 2020



Sheridan, SW Polk and West Valley Fire Districts
HANDBOOK RECEIPT ACKNOWLEDGMENT FORM

As an employee of Sheridan, SW Polk and West Valley Fire Districts, [ acknowledge the following:

[ have been given access to the Employee Handbook. [ understand that the Handbook contains important
information about Sheridan, SW Polk and West Valley Fire Districts’ policies, work rules, and my benefits.
[ have both read and understood the information in the Handbook and have asked my supervisor for the
clarification of any information I did not understand.

I acknowledge the Handbook is neither a contract of employment nor a guarantee of specific treatment in
any situation; that the District has the right to change, modify, add to, substitute, eliminate, interpret, and
apply, in its sole judgment, the policies, rules, and benefits described in this Handbook; and that the current
Handbook supersedes all prior handbooks, policies, and understandings related to the subjects it contains.

The Fire Chief is the only person authorized to make changes to the Handbook and all such changes must be
in writing to be valid. Any changes to the content will be communicated to employees via official notices.

I understand that, unless stated otherwise in an employment contract, my employment relationship
with the Districts is “at-will” and either the Districts or I can end the relationship at any time, with or
without reason or notice. The Fire Chief is the only person who has the authority to enter into an
employment contract, which must be in writing and signed by both parties to be valid.

Lastly, I am aware that [ may be given confidential information during my employment, including customer
lists, proprietary District plans, and other information. I understand this information is critical to the success
of Sheridan, SW Polk and West Valley Fire Districts and I agree not to disseminate or use it outside of the
District, even in the event of my separation, either voluntary or involuntary.

[ also acknowledge that before signing this form, I asked for and received clarification on any of the items
discussed above that [ did not understand.

Employee Signature Date

Print Employee's Name

Sheridan, SW Polk and West Valley Fire Districts 71 Revision Date: April 24, 2020



Staff Report:

To: Chief Schulze
From: BC Hoxie
RE: M0412 (WVFD white ford Medic unit)

The 2004 medic unit that has been kept as a reserve back-up unit potentially to be used as a
Rehab unit, no longer serves a viable function to any of the districts. The unit was purchased
used in 2008 with 174K miles and was purchased and used exclusively for the medical unit
responses West Valley held a previous contract for. The unit currently has 238K miles on it,
service records are no accessible, currently the unit runs and drives all EMS equipment has long
since been removed and it has not functioned as a medic unit since July of 2019. The unit has
an undersized patient compartment, older electronic, and mechanical system that have
questionable reliability, most will require replacement as parts are no longer available for these
systems. The intent of keeping this unit as a rehab and support unit is not a viable option until
the Fire Corps programi is fully functional and there will be other suitable vehicles at that time
to take the place of this unit which is far past it’s usable service life.

With the anticipated purchase of a new medic unit later this year to replace the 2011 medic
unit and the limited staffing at West Valley | would recommend removal of this unit from our
inventory of rolling stock. This will leave two front line medic units and a single district wide
reserve. This unit could be sent to surplus as soon as decals are removed resulting in a small
return of cash to the district along with the reduction in insurance, maintenance, etc. costs.



N —

>

10.

11.

WILLAMINA BOARD MEETING
AGENDA ITEMS
JULY 2020 MEETING

. Monthly bills will be paid as usual

Raises to Admin staff without board input we need to know what this
will cost? (What about Board approval of raises?)
West Valley credit cards used for West Valley purchases only
Union negotiations are taking for ever and we have not input on
anything concerning what it will cost. All we have talked about is
insurance
Anything incurring a cost of over $1500.00 needs board approval this
includes Grants; it would not include hiring of line staff to fill the
positions as they become empty or the positions opened up by levy
money
We need to start the process of ordering a chassis for the new
ambulance :
All payments to Sheridan will be detailed so that each month we can
track the differences and where they went and what they were for
WVFD Admin payments to Sheridan. Anytime they exceed more
than $1,000 above the budgeted amount | would like to see the
amount over the line item itemized and it requires Board approval.
Make a motion or resolution
A financial projection on how to pay the bills the next 2-6 months.
This assumes that the levy money is destined as promised the tax
payers, and is not available for expenses

If borrowing enters here, anywhere, how can we pay it back?
Written plan
How to cut the budget to make up for our share of the
unbudgeted $380,000 = $152,000. Written plan, new budget? [fthe
proposed budget is so bare bones, how do we cut other than Admin
salaries?

12. Board members and records request '
13. Are we expecting money from the State/Fed Covid to backfill for

Damon, and is this a 40/40/20 split? And what formula is used to
calculate what each district receives if not.



West Valley Fire District Board Meeting
Agenda ltems
July 2020 Meeting

1. Monthly bills paid as usual.

a.

Over the last 18 months the Administrative Team has transitioned the financial system into one
process for all three Districts. In West Valley we had a temporary process with Accuity LLC. to pay
bills through Bill.com that required electronic signatures for approval. This was a necessary short-
term fix until our Finance Officer took over administration of all three Districts’ finances. Standard
financial accounting practices are in place and effective. As of today, current processes are similar to
previous practices prior to any transitions. We are currently accountable and paying our bills on
time.

2. Raises to admin staff without board input we need to know what this will cost? (What about Board approval
of raises?)

a.

All cost of living raises within our organization are either tied to performance reviews, collective
bargaining agreements or established step raises. The boards fiduciary responsibility is to approve
funding through budgetary processes and by adopting these budgets you are authorizing the
Administrative Team to continue these practices as previously and traditionally established. The
adopted 2020-2021 budget includes a proposed three (3%) percent cost of living raise to all eligible
employees. We discussed the proposed 3% wage increases specifically during the budget process. We
will bring the CBA to the board for final approval and adoption. Should the board wish to revisit the
proposed Administrative Team increases, we could bring them to the board for final approval.

3. West Valley credit cards being used for West Valley purchases only.

a.

Due to the three Districts working as one at the operational level, we have been able to divide some
expenses that would have previously burdened all three districts, which equates to equitable sharing.
We are working with staff to limit usage of cards for other District purchases but our current financial
system and our agreement of the 40/40/20 split does not allow for exclusive use. Logistically we are
trying limit the use when a singular purchase is identified for only one District going forward. The use
of any District credit card for joint purchases does not incur any cost to that District, as these are
reconciled monthly upon payment and each district is reimbursed appropriately without incurring
any additional fees, etc. We understand that this use does not create the most transparent financial
reporting, however, this is a temporary practice that supports and works towards our goal of
formation into one new District.

4. Union negotiations are taking forever, and we have no input on anything concerning what it will cost. All we
have talked about is insurance.

a.

We are currently in union negotiations, as you know. As you are aware, the union is going through a
massive transition in combining both Sheridan and West Valley employees into one bargaining group.
Given this transition, it created the opportunity to update practices, including the Employee
Handbook which is being presented to the Boards. This Handbook provides direction from the
Boards to allow for guidance during negotiations. We have presented to the Oversight Committee
the insurance plans that are available to us which were researched and presented and received
direction as to guide the process. The union has been very good to work with and the negotiations
are moving forward. Due to the laws outlining the process we are currently not able to publicly



discuss specifics. We could establish a monthly executive session to report progress and receive
general guidance/direction on major items in the labor agreement.
5. Anything incurring a cost over $1500 needs Board approval, this includes grants. It would not include hiring of
line staff to fill the positions as they become empty or the positions opened up by the levy money.

a. We have been operating within state regulations imposed upon us for fiscal security measures.
Please below for the ORS that grants authority for direct procurement of goods or services or
contractual agreements up to the amount of $10,000 dollars, permitting the monies are available in
the approved budget. Rarely do our line items allow for large dollar purchases. The proposed $1,500
Board approval requirement would not even allow staff to purchase turnouts for a new employee. In
the absence of any additional policy or procedure, we handle purchases per applicable laws. Should
the Board wish to limit spending beyond this ORS, they certainly can, it may require seeking legal
advice for creation of a resolution or adoption of a financial policy.

b. ORS 279B.065 Small procurements

(1) A contracting agency may award a procurement of goods or services that does not exceed
$10,000 in any manner the contracting agency deems practical or convenient, including by direct
selection or award. A contract awarded under this section may be amended to exceed $10,000 only
in accordance with rules adopted under ORS 279A.065 (Model rules generally).

6. We need to start the process of ordering a chassis for the new ambulance.

a. Staff has made this a priority and the process is already underway. Rough guidelines have been
established based on the levy dollars and this task has been assigned to our EMS Committee to
formalize specific designs and features. This Committee has made this a priority and put in countless
hours of research. Although a Committee by design may lengthen the development process, we feel
it is essential to make sure that this new ambulance meets the needs and reasonable desires of staff
who will be working on the unit. Additionally, we hope that this new ambulance will be the model
for future purchases to allow for consistency of equipment. We anticipate having final specifications
outlined by August. Final approval and purchase of the unit will be completed through proper fiscal
processes including Board approval.

7. All payments to Sheridan will be detailed so that each month we can track the difference and where they
went and what they were for.

a. We believe this statement refers to the monthly reconciliation process of credit cards, the 40/40/20
purchases and reimbursements. The financial office creates spreadsheets that details the monthly
reconciliations. If it is the Board direction that they receive/review the spreadsheets we are happy to
provide those. We are only one year into the formation of our financial processes and every month
we have shown improvement including the creation of these referenced spreadsheets as an effort to
enhance our transparency. We are constantly reviewing and modifying our plan to strive for
improvement. This week we will meet with a third-party finance professional to potentially begin a
review process of our financial accounting and look for ways to enhance the efficiency, quality and
transparency of our system.

8. WVFD admin payments to Sheridan. Anytime they exceed more than $1,000 above the budgeted amount, |
would like to see the amount over the line item itemized and it requires Board approval. Make a motion or
resolution.

a. The Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA) outlines a financial 40/40/20 split where necessary, which is
a contractual obligation for each of the Districts to fulfill their portion of this allocation. Failure to



satisfy this financial obligation would violate the IGA. The Board has the ability to monitor monthly
expenditures through our monthly reports. Chief Hertel made an oversight in his calculations when
preparing the budget, as discussed at last month’s Board meeting. Because of this oversight each
payment will be over the $1,000 dollar stated cap until one of our proposed fixes is enacted. As we
adopted the budget, the Board received both a solution to repair this before adopting the budget or
looking at a resolution later in the year. The Board chose to adopt the budget including the oversight
and directed staff to attempt to manage the finances to overcome the oversight deficit. If the Board
wishes to change this direction, it may require seeking legal advice for creation of a resolution or
adoption of a financial policy.

9. Afinancial projection on how to pay the bills the next 2-6 months. This assumes that the levy money is
destined as promised the taxpayers and is not available for expenses.

a.

We have prepared a financial projection and will be presented to the board at our regular meeting on
July 9™, As you can see, the financial projection document demonstrates we will have a mere $13,000
in October. It further demonstrates we will be able to cash flow through to the November tax
revenue without any large unanticipated expenditures and receipt of expected revenues. This is too
close for comfort for both staff and the Board, staff is working diligently improve our financial
stability. The levy dollars will not be received until November. No levy expenses will be paid out until
levy monies have been received. The anticipated start date for employee’s hired under the levy is
October 25, with first payroll expenses being paid at the end of November, after receiving levy
dollars. We do not anticipate making a payment on the ambulance until after November.

10. If borrowing enters here, anywhere, how can we pay it back? Written plan.

a.

Per our financial projections presented to address question 9, we do not anticipate borrowing any
money at this time. However, as noted, any large unanticipated or delay of expected revenues may
require us to borrow money. Any plan to borrow money and subsequent payment plans would be
presented to and approved by the Board should it be required. The only other borrowing being
considered is for the procurement of the levy funded ambulance. This will take a flex lease, payment
plan, or other borrowing method. This will also be presented to and approved by the Board prior to
execution.

11. How to cut the budget to make up for our share of the unbudgeted $380,000=5152,000. Written plan, new
budget? If the proposed budget is so bare bones, how do we cut other than Admin salaries?

a.

During last year’s budget we encountered more than $140,000 dollars of unanticipated expenditures.
We also managed through the error in personnel cost calculations that you note in this question.
With the early identification in this year’s budget and minimal or no unanticipated expenditures staff
is willing to attempt to manage through this shortfall as directed by the Board. We will continue to
work with all staff to minimize expenses and work within the budget until a budgetary change is
made as stated at budget adoption. This deferment of expenses, like repairs and maintenance, does
hurt our long-term forecasting but is not insurmountable. This is less than a 10% effect on our
budget. If the Board wishes to change this direction, it may require seeking legal advice for creation
of a resolution or motion.

12. Board members and records request

a.

Per public record regulations mandated by the state as well as our policies, public members are
eligible and encouraged to request public record documentation for full transparency. However,
there is a defined process established to allow sufficient time to gather, ensure exempt information is
redacted and recover costs associated with staff time to fulfill the request. As an individual board



member, outside of a public meeting, working without direction made during a public meeting, then
a board member is to be considered a member of the public and standard records requests are to be
honored. This is to ensure compliance as well to ensure that no ethical violations are made showing
favoritism to one based on their voluntary elected position in office. These ethical issues can create
personal liability and create liability issues for the board. Please refer to this link for the Oregon
Ethics Public Officials Guide

https://www.oregon.gov/ogec/Documents/2010-10 PO Guide October Final Adopted.pdf

13. Are we expecting money from the State/Fed COVID to backfill for Damon, and is this a 40/40/20 split? And
what formula is used to calculate what each district receives if not.

a.

Yes, there will be a reimbursement for expenses incurred and the request has been submitted to the
state. Because Chief Schulze is a salary employee that is paid at 40/40/20, the reimbursement of his
salary will be at a 40/40/20 split. The Finance Officer chose to host his overtime costs/expenses at
Sheridan holistically, thus Sheridan will receive reimbursement for all overtime costs incurred for
Chief Schulze. During his absence, his position was mostly backfilled by Battalion Chiefs on overtime,
which is a covered expense by the State Emergency Mobilization Plan. Battalion Chief backfill
overtime expenses were also hosted by Sheridan. Thus, Sheridan will receive the reimbursement for
those overtime expenses, as well. At times, when Battalion Chiefs were unavailable, line staff
backfilled the position. The costs associated with line staff overtime will be reimbursed to the
employing agency.

We appreciate your openness and candor in bringing these questions to us, as we are always open to discuss and
eager to bring transparency. Your active interest in the Districts’ wellbeing is a vital component to our success.
Having each of you understand these mostly operations level financial questions is important to the future of
these Districts. Please remember that operating these three Districts as one requires extraordinary practices,
procedures, and processes. We hope that these answers shed light on operational functions so that the Board
can make appropriate policy level decisions.


https://www.oregon.gov/ogec/Documents/2010-10_PO_Guide_October_Final_Adopted.pdf

CHIEF'S REPORT

<> Upcoming Events
» Sheridan Volunteers are setting trigger points for a decision on the annual
September Sheridan Pancake Breakfast.

o Recent Events
» Conflagration reimbursement came in for the October 2019 California fire.
> Presentations for cooperative services study were held on July 15tand 2™, We
anticipate the final reports will come in the next couple months.
> OnJuly 1, 2020,

< COVID-19 (Coronavirus)-
» Yamhill County and Polk County have entered phase 2.
> Stations remain closed to the public.
» Contact tracing sign in sheets have been place at all stations should there be
any necessary entry to the stations besides our personnel.
> There is a statewide order to wear masks in any public venue.

& SW Polk stations
> ODOT permits have been issued for all three stations.
> Septic permits have been issued for all three stations.
> Building permits have been issued for Rickreall and Salt Creek.

<> Firefighter/Paramedic Hiring
» Ron Malcomson resigned. Henry Heiser was hired as a replacement.
> Enough candidates remain on this list to fill the positions made available by the
West Valley levy.

< GEMT
> Due to COVID-19, the GEMT process was delayed. We have received the
request for payment this week. The payment is due by July 15t and we should
receive the reimbursement amount in the next few weeks.

< Special Districts Insurance Services (SDIS) Board of Trustees is soliciting
applications for a Fire Chief interested in servicing on the SDIS Board of Trustees.
» I would be interested in submitting my name for consideration.
> There is a commitment of 10-15 days per year; all travel expenses are
reimbursed by SDIS.



o Pay Equity

» We are nearing the end of the Pay Equity compliance project.

> By most accounts we are, as suspected, compliant as individual Districts but as
our three Districts come together, we will need to make benefit adjustments.

» These adjustments are being reviewed as part of our union contract
negotiations. We have discussed many of these items at our Oversight
Committee meetings, ie... differing amounts of sick leave between the two
Districts.

& West Valley 2018/19 financial audit
» Finance has submitted all documents and awaiting the transaction testing
portion of the audit. We are completing the last of the questionnaires and
anticipating the audit to be completed in August.

< Civil Service
» The chief examiner position applications closed with 3 interested parties. We
will be getting these applications to the Civil Service Commission.

°» Monthly Activity Report
> Please find attached the Monthly Activity Report for all three districts

<> Revenue vs. Expenditure Trends
» Please find attached Revenue vs. Expenditure graphs for all three districts



Sheridan Fire District
JUNE 2020 MONTHLY REPORT

Fire Stats EMS Stats
Structure Fire 1 Public Assist 2
Vehicle fire 2 Cancelled 10
EMS incident 20 Patient Dead on Scene 2
Equipment problem 2 Not Transported 24
Public service assistance 1 Standby 14
Move-up 2 Transported 74
Cancelled 2
Controlled burning 3
Total 33 Total 126

Training Hours 530.83




SW Polk Fire District

JUNE 2020 MONTHLY REPORT

Fire Stats EMS Stats
Vehicle fire 1 Excessive heat, burns 1
Natural vegetation fire 3 Medical assist 4
Smoke, odor problem 1 EMS incident 6
Cancelled 5 Extrication, rescue 2
Controlled burning 1 Move-up 1
Total 11 Total 14
Training Hours 147.33




West Valley Fire District

Fire Stats

Structure Fire

Vehicle fire

Natural vegetation fire
Medical assist

EMS incident

Spills & leaks
Equipment problem
Other

Cancelled

Total

0 O

PO WRRRRRLRPRPR

N

JUNE 2020 MONTHLY REPORT

EMS Stats

Public Assist
Cancelled

Not Transported
Transported

Total

15
22
59

97

Training Hours 308




IUR|RY - JBIA JO PUF === SDINYPUIAXT |RIO| =l  SINUIAIY |RIO | s

+0Z0ZAd 6TOTAd BIOTZAd (TOTAd 9TOCZAd STOZAd VIOTAS

A103SIH - @in}ipuadx3 SA 3NUIAJY
PUISIQ 2414 uepliays

"$
000005 $
000°000°t$
000°005°T$S
000°000°T$
000°00S°T$
000°000°€$



aouR|eq - JEIA JO PUF ==l SAINYPUIAXT [RIO] vl SINUIAIY P10 | v

+020T A4

6T0CAd 8TOTAd LTOTAS 9TOTAd STOTAd VIOT Ad

AJO3SIH - 21n}1puadx3 SA aNUIAJY
PLISIQ 9414 )|O0d MS

000’0019
000°00Z$S
000°00E$
00000¥$
000’0059
0000099
000°00L$S
000°008%



IdUeR|eq - JCIA JO PUTF wie SAUNYPUICXF [BJO | e SINUIAIY |10 | i

«0T0TAd ,6TO0TAd SBIOTAJ LTIOTAS 9TOT A4 STOZAd  VIOTAS

'//\I‘l QOO.OOAMW

000'000°T$

% 08.8m.ﬂm
+

000°000°Z$

AJOJSIH - 21nlipuadx] SA aNUIA3Y
013s1Q 3414 A9 |eA 1S9



